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2022
42 2,473
GAAP
2022 38
7,429
2022 17,765
( )
GAAP
2021 2022
) 12 31 ) 12 31
) 479 141 (25) (9%) 501
467 76 (50) (85) 408
211 29 (35) (38) 167
636 94 (67) (111) 552
1,793 340 Qam (328) 1,628
46 38 (3% — 50
1,839 378 (11) (328) 1,678
2020 2021
) 12 31 ) 12 31
) 359 86 (20) 54 479
379 100 (54) 42 467
177 42 (30) 22 211
509 113 (58) 72 636
1,424 341 (162) 190 1,793
48 30 (32) — 46
1,472 371 (194) 190 1,839
2019 2020
) 12 31 12 31
) 322 48 (25) 14 359
313 63 (43) 46 379
155 33 (28) 17 177
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435 86 7 45 509
1,225 230 (153) 122 1,424
42 28 (22) — 48
1,267 258 (175) 122 1,472
(1) 2022 750 (
@
(3) 2021 430 (
(€))
( bps) 2022 2021 2020
12 14 14
94 95 99
81 82 85
92 93 94
66 72 73
6 5 5
65 70 70
o
( )
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)
2022 2021 2020 2022 2021
5,332 5,576 3,013 () 85
@ 43 644 721 (93) 11)
5,375 6,220 3,734 (14) 67
2,273 2,373 1,542 [0) 54
2,295 2,169 1,322 6 64
4,568 4,542 2,864 1 59
807 1,678 870 (52) 93
162 356 171 (54) 108
645 1,322 699 ) 89
(15) (25) 84 40 (130)
660 1,347 615 (1) 119
@
2021
2022 5,332
AUM
AUM
2022
93 43
2022
4,568
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(
AUM
2021 12 31 395 207 466 1,068 497 1,565
56 66 102 224 2,224 2,448
(74) (78) (83) (235) (2,268) (2,503)
(106) (16) “n (169) ®) (175)
(12) (6) ) (25) ®) (30)
2022 12 31 259 173 431 863 442 1,305
(
AUM
2020 12 31 242 98 153 493 288 781
100 67 95 262 1,940 2,202
(85) (55) (78) (218) (1,852) (2,070)
34 — 51 85 6 91
[€)) 119 103 251 473 116 589
(15) (6) (6) (¢2)) (€3] (28)
2021 12 31 395 207 466 1,068 497 1,565
(
AUM
2019 12 31 138 79 139 356 196 552
87 37 26 150 1,584 1,734
(51) 29) (29) (104) (1,493) (1,597)
69 4 5 78 1 79
(€)) 7 7 13 — 13
2020 12 31 242 98 153 493 288 781
€Y
AUM
( 2022 2021 2020
298 362 174
186 181 86
435 380 145
AUM 919 923 405
462 430 252
AUM 1,381 1,353 657
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@
( bps) 2022 2021 2020
70 74 76
35 38 29
34 36 58
AUM 46 51 60
11 5 15
AUM 34 37 42
) ( )
10 15
(€9)
( ) 2022 12 31 2021 12 31

— 66.9 81.6

73/415



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
— 56.4 61.7
123.3 143.3
54.4 44.2
() 91.7 85.0
( ) 146.1 129.2
6.9 6.5
37.1 33.1
10.2 10.4
6.0 6.3
( ) 60.2 56.3
391.0 386.1
?) 350.6 346.2
(€))
@)
(©) — — —
( )
2022 12 31
) 2022 2021 2020
761 810 1,263
(716) 526 856
45 1,336 2,119
) 2022 2021 2020
') 372 851
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11 798 1,000
131 166 268
45 1,336 2,119
(€D)
( )
2022 12 31 @0B) 4,880
2023 (@) (729)
2022 12 31 €)) 1,096
2023 2022 €)) 384
®) 5,631
(1) 2022
@) 2022 12 31
©)
O]
) 20 70
10
(
)
(€H)
( )
2023 478
2024 292
2025 710
1,480
(1) 2022
2022
( )
20
( FASB )
2023
— ( TOR )
(

)
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2024

2022 12



31

1.1

2021 12 31
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1.4
( )
O] (i)
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22
( FRC )
( BRC )
) 2022 12 31
IS WM I
88,362 39,539 226 128,127
294,884 1,971 4,460 301,315
40,481 119,450 — 159,931
102,511 11,396 — 113,907
132,619 755 — 133,374
47,515 29,620 1,405 78,540
@ 67,676 146,105 4 213,785
@) 15,789 24,469 10,994 51,252
789,837 373,305 17,089 1,180,231
) 2021 12 31
IS WM I

91,251 36,003 4 127,725
288,405 1,921 4,543 294,869
41,407 141,591 — 182,998
112,267 7,732 — 119,999
128,154 1,559 — 129,713
57,009 37,643 1,366 96,018
@ 58,822 129,307 5 188,134
@ 14,820 22,682 11,182 48,684
792,135 378,438 17,567 1,188,140
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IS —

W —

IM —

@ ( )

( 10 )
)
( ) 2021 12 31
1,880 2022 12 31 1,800

( )
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
(
) ( HQLA )
HQLA HQLA HQLA
LCR
( ) 2022 12 31 2022 30
58,818 61,447
HQLA €))
136,020 132,788
87,591 89,279
@ 20,583 15,812
694 607
HQLA (1) 303,706 299,933
(. HOLA) 8,544 8,068
312,250 308,001
(1) HQLA HQLA

&)
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( )
2022 12 31 2022 30
134,845 133,306
6,980 7,607
141,825 140,913
56,111 54,189
54,813 55,098
110,924 109,287
59,501 57,801
170,425 167,088
312,250 308,001
100 LCR NSFR
LCR 30
HQLA
LCR HQLA
( ) HQLA HQLA
NSFR
2022 12 31 LCR NSFR (100 )
( )
2022 12 31 2022 30
HQLA(L)
52,765 57,133
[©) 186,551 183,102
HOLA (1) 239,316 240,235
LCR 132 136
(1) LCR HQLA HQLA

@
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LCR HQLA
) 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
247,281 249,712
78,213 74,487
(€D) 9,954 10,504
)
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
261,627 236,327
77,268 69,565
(€))
(
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(
14 )
( ) 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
€Y 202,592 298,352
117,356 34,395
319,948 332,747
36,698 14,827
(@) 356,646 347,574
(€))
(2) 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
60 90
2022
2022 12 31 D
( )
— 4,191 4,191
2023 11,007 7,903 18,910
2024 19,618 10,224 29,842
2025 21,462 8,773 30,235
2026 23,622 5,376 28,998
2027 17,072 6,489 23,561
2028 76,855 25,466 102,321
169,636 64,231 233,867
169,636 68,422 238,058
(€))

2022 12 31 2,380 2021 12 31 2,330
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2023 17
DBRS R-1( ) AC )
F1 A+
P-1 Al
a-1 A
S&P A-2 A-
MSBNA
F1+ AA-
P-1 Aa3
S&P A-1 A+
MSPBNA
P-1 Aa3
S&P A-1 A+
2022 17 S&P BBB+ A-
2022 11 A A+ MSBNA
A+ AA-
MSBNA F1 F1+

2022 12 16
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2022 2021 2020

) 113 126 29

( ) 87.25 91.13 46.01

) 9,865 11,464 1,347

18

2023 17

0.775
2023 15
2023 31

18
( SPE ) ( )
SPE
16
15
FRB FRB
0cC
1
FRB
0cC

CFTC SEC
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17
TLAC
TLAC
RWA
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31 zgggl 1§2 3§1
_ _ 2.5
( sCB H(@) 5.8 5.7 N/A
6-SIB @ 3.0 3.0 3.0
( CCyB )(3) 0 0 0
8.8 8.7 5.5
(1) sc8
(2) G-SIB G-SIB
(3) CCyB 2.5 FRB
( )
RWA
RWA ( )
SCB G-SIB cCyB RWA RWA
RWA ( )
2.5 G-SIB ccyB
2022 12 31 2021 12 31 zgggl 1f2 3%1
(¢H)
4.5 13.3 13.2 10.0
6.0 14.8 14.7 11.5
8.0 16.8 16.7 13.5
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(€D)
( RWA )
RWA
— (
)
(1) (i)
RWA
RWA
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
SLR
SLR
2021 12 31
RWA
( CECL ) 2020
2022
25 2025
( ) 2022 2021
D 12 31 D 12 31
68,670 75,742
77,101 83,348
86,575 93,166
RWA 447,849 471,921
13.3 15.3 13.2 16.0
14.8 17.2 14.7 17.7
16.8 19.3 16.7 19.7
( ) 2022 2021
1 12 31 12 31
68,670 75,742
77,101 83,348
86,159 92,927
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RWA 438,806 435,749
10.0 15.6 17.4
11.5 17.6 19.1
13.5 19.6 21.3
2022 2021
( ) 1 12 gl 12 31
) 1,150,772 1,169,939
4.0 6.7 7.1
(©) 1,399,403 1,476,962
SLR 5.0 5.5 5.6
@
@
(
)
(€)
O)
( ) (i)
(i)
( ) 2022 2021
12 31 12 31
2,782 11,361 (8,579)
95,047 89,679 5,368
(6,253) (3.102) (3,151)
(16,393) (16,641) 248
(6,048) (6.,704) 656
) (465) 1,149 (1,614)
68,670 75,742 (7,072)
8,750 7,750 1,000
552 562 (10)
9,302 8,312 990
(781) (706) (75)
77,191 83,348 (6,157)
7,846 8,609 (763)
1,613 1,155 458
(75) 54 (129)
9,384 9,818 (434)
86,575 93,166 (6.591)
7,846 8,609 (763)
1,197 916 281
(75) 54 (129)
8,968 9,579 (611)
86,159 92,927 (6,768)

o ( VA )
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RWA
( )
RWA
2021 12 31 416,502 285,247
(21,332) 1,738
(8.217) 24
(2,853) (8,348)
12,698 4,881
(3,738) (3,909)
4,215 6,005
RWA (19,227) 391
2022 12 31 397,275 285,638
RWA
2021 12 31 55,419 55,419
VaR 3,700 3,700
VaR 1,585 1,585
(4,641) (4.641)
(281) (292)
(5,208) (5,208)
RWA (4,845) (4,856)
2022 12 31 50,574 50,563
RWA
2021 12 31 N/A 95,083
RWA N/A 7,522
2022 12 31 N/A 102,605
RWA 447,849 438,806

VaR — ( VaR )
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2022 RWA
2022 RWA
VaR
2022 RWA
G-SIB
G-SIB G-SIB
G-SIB
G-SIB G-SIB
( )
( )
FRB G-SIB ( ) TLAC
( LTD )
SPOE LTD LTD
TLAC
( —_ —_ J—
)
TLAC LTD LTD
LTD 2016 12 31
(1)RWA 18 (i) (SLR
) 7.5 TLAC
(i)RWA
G-SIB (i)
4.5 LTD
TLAC
TLAC TLAC 2.5
G-SIB CCyB( ) (RWA )

TLAC
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TLAC (
)
TLAC LTD
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
( ) @
TLAC(2) 245,951 235,681
RWA TLAC 18.0 21.5 54.9 49.9
TLAC 7.5 9.5 17.6 16.0
LTD(3) 159,444 144,659
RWA LTD 9.0 9.0 35.6 30.7
LTD 4.5 4.5 11.4 9.8
@
@ TLAC ( ) LTD
(3) TLAC LTD( 50
)
LTD
TLAC 2021
G-SIB (TLAC LTD
)
2022 12 31 2021 12 31 TLAC
FRB
FRB ( CCAR )
FRB
FRB FRB
2,500
( ) FRB
FRB
FRB

SCB
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SCB
(2.5 ) SCB (i)
RWA (ii)2.5
RWA
SCB 10 FRB
FRB 10 SCB
FRB
2022 2022
FRB 2022 23 FRB FRB
4.7
4.6
2022 10 2023 30
SCB 5.8 SCB
13.3
(IR)
2022 14 0.70
0.775 2022
200
( )
(
)
(€D)
) 2022 2021 2020
48.8 43.5 42.8
@ 31.0 28.6 20.8
©) 10.6 8.8 2.6
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3.5 16.2 14.0
93.9 97.1 80.2
@ GAAP GAAP
(2) 2022 2021 2020 10
E*TRADE
(3) 2021 2021
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2021
FRB FDIC(
2019
SPOE
)
(

LIBOR

2021

2021

SPOE
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2022 11
SPOE
)
(
TLAC
TLAC
)
(
21
2022 12 31
230



FRB
IBOR )

LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
FCA )

(ICE

LIBOR
LIBOR

2024
2023

LIBOR
LIBOR

LIBOR

2022 12 31 LIBOR

1BOR

LIBOR
IBOR

IBOR

LIBOR

2021 12

« D
LIBOR

LIBOR 2023

LIBOR

FCA 2024

LIBOR

IBOR
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(2022 12 31 )
( 001 ) 3,500,000, 000 2,038,893,979 1,461,106,021
( 0.00 ) 30,000,000 1,227,382 28,772,618
(2022 12 31 )
0.01 2,038,893,979 —
0.01 ( ) 44,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 519,882 )
0.01 ( ) 34,500 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 34,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 40,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 40,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 20,000 ( ) —
0.01 (M ) 400,000 _
0.01 ( ) 3,000 —
0.01 ( ) 52,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 40,000 ( ) &)
— 2,040,121,361 — —

@ MUFG
@ 2022
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(2022 12 31 )
®
[O16) ( ) (O
44,000 1,000 25,000
©) 1,160,791 N/A 1,100
34,500 1,000 25,000 2023 10 15
34,000 1,000 25,000 2024 15
40,000 1,000 25,000 2024 10 15
40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
20,000 1,000 25,000 2025 15
(6) 400,000 N/A 1,000 2026 15
(6) 3,000 100 100,000 2025 10
@ 52,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 10 15
(€)) 0.01
@
©) ( ) (
)
( )
O
Q)
(1) ( ) 0 (
)
®)
1,000 10
(6) M E*TRADE 2020 10
@) 2021 10 25
( (
) ) 2022 2021 2020
@ @ @
1,061 47 1,022 44 1,017 44
100 52 100 52 100 52
1,781 60 1,781 60 1,781 60
1,719 59 1,719 60 1,719 60
(&) — — 719 38 1,143 60
1,594 64 1,594 64 1,594 64
) — — 253 15 1,213 74
1,463 59 1,463 59 1,463 59
1,219 24 1,219 24 1,219 23
(0)) 59 24 59 24 — —
(©) 5,300 16 5,300 16 — —
6) 1,063 55 236 12 — —
736 29 — — — —
489 468 496
2.950 5,108 2.100 3,818 1.400 2,295
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00O00000000(E0s871)
Ooooooog
2018 2022
( ) ( ) |( )« ) ( )
2017 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 |2,038,893,979 23,545
( 1,199,360 ) ( 2,815 ) ( 3,314,430 )
2018 249
2018 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 |2,038,893,979 23,794
( 1,199,360 ) ( 2,815 ) ( 3,349,481 )
2019 500 20,000 ®) D)
(500) (20,000) « )
131
13
2019 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 |2,038,893,979 23,935
( 1,199,360 ) ( 2,815 ) ( 3,369,330 )
2020 730 403,000 (
)
518
1,093 | E*TRADE
2020 12 31 9,250 1,247,382 20 [2,038,893,979 25,546
( 1,302,123 ) ( 2,815 ) ( 3,596,110 )
2021 1,300 52,000 (25) )
(2,800) | (112,000) (
)
1,117
2,185
— | E*TRADE
18
2021 12 31 7,750 1,187,382 20 |2,038,893,979 28,841
( 1,090,968 ) ( 2,815 ) ( 4,059,948 )
2022 1,000 40,000 6) )
503
1
2022 12 31 8,750 1,227,382 20 |2,038,893,979 29,339
( 1,231,738 ) ( 2,815 ) ( 4,130,051 )
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SEC 2023 2022
( 2023 )
(€))
MUFG(2) 22.6
( ) 7.2
(©)
(
6.7
)IO)
(
5.3
()
58.2
100.00
@ 2023 20 ) ) SEC
(2) MUFG 2022 2022 13D/A 13D/A
MUFG 378,708,971
13D/A 378,708,971 1,623,804 2022
MUFG
MUFG
(€)
2023 2022 12 31 136/A
136/A O) 120,747,195
113,410,907 (i)
96,422,247 96,413,342
92,076,628
@) 2023 2022 12 30 136/A
136/A 107,189,825
1,812,693 5,484,288
) 2023 2022 12 31 136/A
136/A 80,050,731 89,304,670
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2023 20
€))
2023
( ) ( )@
MUFG(3) 378,708,971 22.6
O] 120,966,594 7.2
) 112,674,113 6.7
(6) 89,304,670 5.3
¢y
® 2023 20 €)) ) SEC
(3) MUFG 2022 2022 13D/A 13D/A
MUFG 378,708,971
13D/A 378,708,971 1,623,804 2022
MUFG
MUFG
O]
2023 2022 12 31 13G/A
13G/A O) 120,747,195
113,410,907 (i)
96,422,247 96,413,342 92,076,628
) 2023 2022 12 30 13G/A
13G/A 107,189,825
1,812,693 5,484,288
6) 2023 2022 12 31 13G/A
13G/A 80,050,731 89,304,670
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2023

( NYSE )

) www.morganstanley.com/about-us-governance

)

Giii) (@)
(b)

@iv)
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®
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120,000

)

)
( ) (i)

107/415



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
(
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(
( )
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(
)
(
)
14 11 (
2022 21
2022
( )
(
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NYSE
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) NYSE
2022 (
)
2022 15 2022
75
(
)
2022
(www.morganstanley.com/about-us-governance)
(NYSE )
1934 ( )(
) 16
NYSE
SEC
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1) |
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( ESG )
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(
)
2022
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( ) ( ERM )
(
)
2022
( ) i
(
)
(1) 2022
(2) 2022 10 14
(3) 2022 26
(4) 2022 26
( )
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(b)

2022 10-K

( 13a-15(e) )

GAAP

GAAP
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2022 2021 2020
$ 5,599 7,882 $ 10,994 15,476 $ 7,674 10,803
13,928 19,606 12,810 18,033 13,983 19,684
15 21 1,376 1,937 986 1,388
4,938 6,951 5,521 7,772 4,851 6,829
19,578 27,560 19,967 28,108 14,272 20,091
283 398 1,042 1,467 678 954
44,341 62,419 51,710 72,792 42,444 59,748
21,595 30,399 9,411 13,248 10,162 14,305
12,268 17,270 1,366 1,923 3,849 5,418
9,327 13,130 8,045 11,325 6,313 8,887
53,668 75,548 59,755 84,117 48,757 68,635
280 394 4 6 761 1,071
23,053 32,452 24,628 34,669 20,854 29,356
3,458 4,868 3,341 4,703 2,929 4,123
3,493 4,917 3,119 4,391 2,465 3,470
3,070 4,322 2,933 4,129 2,205 3,104
1,729 2,434 1,725 2,428 1,559 2,195
905 1,274 643 905 434 611
3,591 5,055 3,694 5,200 3,132 4,409
39,299 55,321 40,083 56,425 33,578 47,268
14,089 19,833 19,668 27,687 14,418 20,296
2,910 4,096 4,548 6,402 3,239 4,560
$ 11,179 15,737  $ 15,120 21,284 $ 11,179 15,737
150 211 86 121 183 258
$ 11,029 15,526 $ 15,034 21,163  $ 10,996 15,479
489 688 468 659 496 698
$ 10,540 14,837 _$ 14,566 20,505 _$ 10,500 14,781
$ 6.23 877 $ 8.16 1,149 $ 6.55 922
6.15 866 8.03 1,130 6.46 909

1,691 1,785 1,603
1,713 1,814 1,624
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2022 2021 2020
$ 11,179 15,737 $ 15,120 21,284  $ 11,179 15,737
(337) 474) (331) (466) 170 239
(4,437) (6,246) (1,542) (2.171) 1,580 2,224
43 61 (53) (75) 146 206
1,502 2,114 696 980 (1,028) (1,447)
*) (6) - - - -
$ (3,233) 4,551) $ (1,230) (1,731) $ 868 1,222
$ 7,946 11,186  $ 13,890 19,553 $ 12,047 16,959
150 211 86 121 183 258
(82) (115) (90) 127 42 59
$ 7,878 11,000  $ 13,894 19,559 $ 11,822 16,642
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31

$ 128,127 180,364  $ 127,725 179,798
(124,411
104,186 ) 301,315 424,161 294,869 415,087
(84,297 102,830
) 159,931 225,135 182,998 257,606
(
) 113,907 160, 347 119,999 168,923
133,374 187,751 129,713 182,597
78,540 110,561 96,018 135,165
(839 654
) 198,997 280,128 174,302 245,365
14,788 20,817 13,832 19,471
16,652 23,441 16,833 23,696
(4,253 3,819

) 7,618 10,724 8,360 11,768
26,982 37,983 23,491 33,068

$1,180,231 1,661,411 $1,188,140 1,672,545
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3,500,000,000
2,038,893,979

1,675,487,409

0

0.01
266,667,449 )

791

5,133

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 356,646 502,051  $ 347,574 489,280
154,438 217,402 158,328 222,878
62,534 88,029 62,188 87,542
15,679 22,071 12,299 17,313
8,158 11,484 10,041 14,135
216,134 304,252 228,685 321,920
27,353 38,505 29,300 41,246
238,058 335,114 233,127 328,173
1,079,000 1,518,908 1,081,542 1,522,487
8,750 12,317 7,750 10,910
20 28 20 28
29,339 41,301 28,841 40,599
94,862 133,537 89,432 125,893
4,881 6,871 3,955 5,567
(6,253) (8.,802) (3,102) (4,367)
(26,577) (37,412) (17,500) (24,635)
(4,881) (6.871) (3.955) (5.567)
100,141 140,968 105,441 148,429
1,090 1,534 1,157 1,629
101,231 142,503 106,598 150,058
$1,180,231 1,661,411  $1,188,140 1,672,545
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2022 2021 2020

$ 7,750 10,910 $ 9,250 13,021 $8,520 11,994
1,000 1,408 1,300 1,830 730 1,028
- - (2,800) (3,942) - -
8,750 12,317 7,750 10,910 9,250 13,021
20 28 20 28 20 28
28,841 40,599 25,546 35,961 23,935 33,693
503 708 1,117 1,572 518 729
®) ® (25) (3%) - -

- - 2,185 3,076 - -

- - - - 1,093 1,539

1 1 18 25 - -
29,339 41,301 28,841 40,599 25,546 35,961
89,432 125,893 78,694 110,778 70,589 99,368
_ - - - (100) (141)
11,029 15,526 15,034 21,163 10,996 15,479
(489) (688) (468) (659) (496) (698)
(5.108) (7,191) (3.818) (5.375) (2,295) (3.,231)
@ (©) (10 14) - -
94,862 133,537 89,432 125,893 78,694 110,778
3,955 5,567 3,043 4,284 2,918 4,108
926 1,304 912 1,284 125 176
4,881 6,871 3,955 5,567 3,043 4,284
(3,102) (4,367) (1,962) (2,762) (2,788) (3,925)
(3,151) (4,436) (1,140) (1,605) 826 1,163

(6,253) (8.802) (3,102) (4,367) (1,962) (2,762)
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(17,500)  (24,635) 9,767)  (13,749)  (18,727)  (26,362)
1,794 2,525 1,210 1,703 932 1,312
(10,871)  (15,303)  (12,075)  (16,998) (1,890) (2,661)
- _ 3,132 4,409 _ _
- - - - 9,918 13,962
(26,577)  (37,412)  (17,500)  (24,635) 9,767)  (13,749)
(3,955) (5.,567) (3.,043) (4,284) (2,918) (4,108)
(926) (1,304) (912) (1,284) (125) (176)
(4,881) (6,871) (3,955) (5,567) (3,043) (4,284)
1,157 1,629 1,368 1,926 1,148 1,616
150 211 86 121 183 258
(82) (115) (90) @27) 42 59
(135) (190) (207) (291) ) 0
1,090 1,534 1,157 1,629 1,368 1,926
$ 101,231 142,503  $ 106,598 150,058  $ 103,149 145,203
18
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$ 11,179 15,737 $ 15,120 21,284 $ 11,179 15,737
(849)  (1,195) 4 6 (250) (352)
1,875 2,639 2,085 2,935 1,312 1,847
3,998 5,628 4,216 5,935 3,769 5,306
280 394 4 6 761 1,071
618 870 147) (207) 274 386
(39,422)  (55,494) 9,075 12,775 15,551 21,891
(3.661)  (5,154)  (17,322) (24,384) (5.,076) (7.145)
3,380 4,758 4,568 6,430 (1,541) (2.,169)
14,664 20,643 774 1,090 (29,774)  (41,913)
(4,897)  (6,894) 7,758 10,921 10,187 14,340
6,002 8,576 (3,765)  (5,300)  (28,010)  (39,430)
346 487 11,601 16,331 (3.613) (5.086)

(6,397)  (9,005) 33,971 47,821 (25,231)  (35,518)

(3,078)  (4,333) (2,308)  (3,249) (1,444) (2,033)
(23,652)  (33,295)  (36,106) (50,826)  (17,949)  (25,267)

(24,602)  (34,632)  (42,469) (59,784)  (39,478)  (55,573)
22,014 30,989 20,652 29,072 13,750 19,356
13,435 18,912 26,375 37,128 15,664 22,050

(5,231)  (7,364)  (27,102) (38,151)  (20,299)  (28,575)
9,829 13,836 14,541 20,469 8,853 12,462

- - (2,648)  (3,728) - -

_ _ _ _ 3,807 5,359
(347) (488) (832) (1,171) (802) (1,129)

(11,632)  (16,374)  (49,897) (70,240)  (37.898)  (53,349)
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(884) (1,244) (625) (880) 2,794 3,933
1,659 2,335 36,897 51,940 75,417 106,165
994 1,399 1,275 1,795 - -
72,460 102,002 90,273 127,077 60,726 85,484

(34,898)  (49,126)  (70,124) (98,714) (50,484)  (71,066)

(10,871)  (15,303)  (12,075) (16,998) (1,890)  (2,661)
(5,401) (7,603) (4,171)  (5.872) (2,739)  (3,856)
(345) (486) 97 137 (40) (56)
22,714 31,974 41,547 58,486 83,784 117,943
(4,283) (6,029) (3,550)  (4,997) 2,828 3,981
402 566 22,071 31,069 23,483 33,057
127,725 179,798 105,654 148,729 82,171 115,672

$ 128,127 180,364 $ 127,725 179,798 $ 105,654 148,729

$ 9,819 13,822 $ 1,303 1,834 $ 4,120 5,800
4,147 5,838 4,231 5,956 2,591 3,647
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87
69 53 34
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2021

$ 691

445

299

52

331

5,270

3,956

836

$ 11,880

$ 399

2,147

678

$ 3,224
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$ 2,120

16 1,455

23 221

16 160

$ 3,956

1,818 413 2021 2021 12 31
( )
2021 2020
$60,051 $50,371
15,220 10,779
2020
2020 10 100
119
1.0432
233 110 M N
( )
2020
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$ 3,807

1,124
44
48,855
975
12,267

462
4,270
3,282
1,351

$ 76,437

$ 44,890
766
15,488
1,688
1,665

$ 64,497

28 17

2020 10 2020 12 31
600

( )

2020 2019
$ 50,203 $ 44,192
11,459 9,839

190/415



EDINETOOOO

0000000000(E05871)
ooooood
2019
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 5,409 $ 8,394
122,718 119,331
$ 128,127 $ 127,725
$ 35,380 $ 40,887
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2022 12 31
1
$ 38,462 $ 42,263 $ 17 $ - $ 80,742
24,644 4,769 169 - 29,582
_ 1,503 145 - 1,648
MABS - 1,774 416 - 2,190
9 - 6,380 2,017 - 8,397
- 23,351 2,096 - 25,447
3 97,869 1,019 116 - 99,004
4,481 166,392 517 - 171,390
- 7,876 425 - 8,301
49 115,766 183 - 115,998
2,778 40,171 406 - 43,355
5,609 21,152 3,701 - 30,462
1 (9,618) (258,821) (1,078) (55,777) (325,294)
3,299 92,536 4,154 (55,777) 44,212
4 652 685 923 _ 2,260
- 2,379 - - 2,379
4 164,926 176,659 10,053 (55,777) 295,861
53,866 30,396 35 - 84,297
_ 8 _ - 8
$ 218,792 $ 207,063 $ 10,088 $ (55,777) $ 380,166
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1

$ - $ 4,776 $ 20 $ - $ 4,79
20,776 228 - - 21,004
23,235 2,688 3 - 25,926
_ 8,786 29 - 8,815
59,998 518 42 - 60,558
3,446 161,044 668 - 165,158
- 7,987 315 - 8,302
89 113,383 117 - 113,589
3,266 46,923 1,142 - 51,331
6,187 17,574 2,618 - 26,379

(9,618) (258,821) (1,078) (57,107) (326,624)
3,370 88,090 3,782 (57,107) 38,135
107,379 100,310 3,856 (57,107) 154,438
_ 352 512 — 864
- 4,459 o1 - 4,550
- 77,133 1,587 - 78,720
$ 107,379 $ 187,030 $ 6,066 $ (57,107) $ 243,368
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1
$ 45,970 $ 29,749 $ 2 $ - $ 75,721
28,041 4,533 211 - 32,785
- 1,905 13 - 1,918
MABS - 1,237 344 - 1,581
9 - 8,821 3,806 - 12,627
- 27,309 1,973 - 29,282
3 91,630 832 115 - 92,577
1,364 153,048 1,153 - 155,565
- 8,441 509 - 8,950
28 74,571 132 - 74,731
1,562 68,519 251 - 70,332
4,462 20,194 3,057 - 27,713
1 (5.,696) (241,814) (794) (50,833) (299,137)
1,720 82,959 4,308 (50,833) 38,154
4 735 846 1,125 - 2,706
- 2,771 - - 2,771
4 168,096 160,962 11,897 (50,833) 290,122
59,021 43,809 - - 102,830
_ 7 - - 7
$ 227,117 $ 204,778 $ 11,897 $ (50,833) $ 392,959

194/415



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2021 12 31
1
$ - $ 1,873 $ 67 $ - $ 1,940
16,433 319 - - 16,752
20,771 2,062 - - 22,833
- 8,707 16 - 8,723
3 75,181 226 45 - 75,452
1,087 145,670 445 - 147,202
_ 9,090 411 - 9,501
19 73,096 80 - 73,195
2,119 77,363 1,196 - 80,678
4,563 16,837 1,528 - 22,928
1 (5,696) (241,814) (794) (50,632) (298,936)
2,092 80,242 2,866 (50,632) 34,568
114,477 91,556 2,927 (50,632) 158,328
_ 140 651 — 791
- 4,730 403 - 5,133
- 74,183 2,157 - 76,340
$ 114,477 $ 172,482 $ 6,205 $ (50,632) $ 242,532
MABS
1.
2.
3.
4. NAV
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ - $ 8
6 _
528 863
2,020 3,011
5,843 7,845
$ 8,397 $ 12,627
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2022 2021 2020
$ 2 $ 9 $ 22
« ) ©) - 1
14 2 -
) (©) (22)
5 - 8
$ 17 $ 2 $ 9
C ) $ () $ - $ —
$ 211 $ 268 $ 5
«C ) ®) (€)) -
116 146 265
(107) (192) ()
(46) (10) -
$ 169 $ 21 $ 268
« ) $ 1D $ - $ -
$ 13 $ — $ 1
«C ) O] - -
91 4 _
(82) O] -
127 13 (€D)
$ 145 $ 13 $ _
C ) $ - $ - $ _
MABS
$ 344 $ 322 $ 438
C ) (342) 51 (66)
511 254 175
(130) (215) (244)
33 (68) 19
$ 416 $ 344 $ 322
« ) $ 2 $ (10 $ (49
$ 3,806 $ 5,759 $ 5,073
« ) (80) 51 (65)
793 2,446 3,479
(740) (2,609) (957)
(1,526) (1,268) (2,196)
1 (236) (573) 425
$ 2,017 $ 3,806 $ 5,759
C ) $ 29 $ @) $ 58
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2022 2021 2020
$ 1,973 $ 3,435 $ 1,39
456 (140) 318
1,165 1,355 2,623
(1,889) (785) (617)
@n - (311)
418 (1,892) 26
$ 2,096 $ 1,973 $ 3,435
$ 160 $ (25 $ 31
$ 115 $ 86 $ 97
N ® (55)
73 121 36
(22) (50) an
47 (34) 25
$ 116 $ 115 $ 86
$ 11 $ [€) $  (39)
$ 1,125 $ 828 $ 858
(409) 382 32
63 226 61
(107) (115) (106)
251 (196) an
$ 923 $ 1,125 $ 828
$  (397) $ 359 $  (45)
$ - $ 2,804 $ -
(€)] @ 5
- - 2,799
- (203) -
38 (2,597) -
$ 35 $ - $ 2,804
$ (©)) $ - $ 5
$ - $ 3 $ —
- ®3)
$ — $ — $
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2022 2021 2020

$ 708 $ 682 $ 777
(643) 284 (150)

1 67 174
- (52) (44)

(92) 14 40
(125) (287) (115)

$ (151) $ 708 $ 682
$  (3271) $ 292 $ (3%
$ 98 $ 49 $ 124
84 95 (91)

5 18 98
(10) (46) (112)

(61) 58 %4
(6) (76) (64)

$ 110 $ 98 $ 49
$ 70 $ 122 $ (111
$ 52 $ 61 $ (3
® (89) 156

1 2 4

- (15) -
(46) 16 an
67 77 (51)

$ 66 $ 52 $ 61
$ 43 $  (62) $ 94
$  (945) $ (2,231) $ (1,684)
201 344 72

77 70 179
(339) (443) (713)
348 160 (354)

(78) 1,155 269
$  (736) $  (945) $ (2,231)
$ 328 $  (103) $ (210)
$ 1,529 $ 1,709 $ 1,612
315 529 251

185 44 89
(210) (86) €
(510) (599) (183)
(226) (68) (©)

$ 1,083 $ 1,529 $ 1,709
$  (935) $ 141 $  (309)
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( )
2022 2021 2020

$ 67 $ 126 $ 179
C ) - - 15
11 - 21

(©) (10) an

(55) (49) (72)
$ 20 $ 67 $ 126
) $ - $ - $ 15
$ 61 $ 79 $ 37

C D (86) (1) (18)

(35) (30) (35)
93 43 27
_ _ 3
41 (10) 65
$ 74 $ 61 $ 79

) $ 17 $ (D $ (18)
$ 651 $ 444 $ _

C D ®) 1 @7
17 - 470
(22) - -
(126) 206 1
$ 512 $ 651 $ 444

) $ - $ 1 $ (@D
$ 403 $ 516 $ 109
«C ) ©) an 21
39 449 208

(342) (518) 17
®3) @7 395
$ 91 $ 403 $ 516
) $ (6) $  (16) $ 21
$ 2,157 $ 4,374 $ 4,088
« ) (133) (99) 204
513 717 980

(285) (448) (461)

(665) (2,387) (437)
$ 1,587 $ 2,157 $ 4,374
) $  (138) $ (114 $ 201
> ol (35) an 63

895 2020
857 707

206/415
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2021

2021

VIE

25

20
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22
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
1
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 169 $ 21
57 124 (89 ) 100 140 (120 )
$ 145 $ 13
86 100 97 ) N/M
MABS $ 416 $ 344
0 95 (68 ) 0 86 (59 )
$ 2,017 $ 3,806
2 4 3) 1 4 @3)
87 105 (99 ) 89 101 97 )
$ 2,096 $ 1,973
51 132 (90 ) 50 163 (99 )
54 84 (62 /54 ) 54 84 (62 /54 )
$ 116 $ 115
100 100
$ 923 $ 1,125
15 17 (16 ) 10 16 (15 )
7 17 (14 ) 8 17 (12 )
EBITDA 7 21 (11 ) 8 25 (10 )

24 100 (89 )

43 100 (99 )

$ (151)

105 130 (113 /109 )
47 100 (80 /84 )
N/M
22 65 (43 /38 )

4 5 (5 /5 )

$ 708

39 79 (64 /63 )
62 98 (83 /84 )
5 32 (12 /9 )
24 65 (44 /40 )
4 4 (@4 14 )

208/415
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OooooOodd
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1
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 110 $ 98
7 7
0 83 3 0 83 (46 )

10 528bps(115bps)
18 590bps(93bps)

14 477bps(68bps)
15 433bps(55bps)

$ 66

N/M
N/M
2 38 (8 /4 )
10 10 (10 /10 )
95 95 (95 /95 )

$ 52

53 56 (55 /54 )
39 79 (64 /63 )
17 @ /0)
-4 2 (3 /-3)
90 95 (94 /95 )

$ (736)

5 9 (25 )
4 0 (-1 )
10 93 (71 )

=79 65 (<26 )
10 30 (14 )

$ (945)

5 99 (24 )
4 0 (-1 )
5 99 (73 )

-85 37 (-42 )
13 30 (15 )

$ 1,083

$1 $292($43)/Mh
12 169 (34 )
70 100 (94 )

$ 1,529

$4  $263($39)/Mih
8 385 (22 )
43 100 (94 )

$ 20

N/M

$ 67

$ 512

96 165bps(131bps)

$ 651

112 127bps(120bps)

209/415
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( )
1
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 91 $ 403
23 101 (75 ) 30 100 (83 )
$ 1,587 $ 2,157
7 86 (23 ) 7 85 (20 )
2 0 () -1 0 ()
39 98 (86 ) 41 95 (81 )
-50 0 (-21 ) -55 25 (-30 )
N/M -26 8 (-5 /-5 )
47 136 (74 /59 ) N/M
54 84 (62 /54 ) 54 84 (62 /54 )
$ 6,610 $ 1,576
91 1276bps(776bps) 108 565bps(284bps)
36 80 (65 ) 40 80 (61 )

110 319bps(245bps) 182 446bps(376bps)

IR
FX

2022

210/415
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EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA

01S

WACC WACC
WACC
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

oOoOooodn

)

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 2,622 $ 638 $ 2,492 615
2,642 239 2,064 248
190 3 191 2
$ 5,454 $ 880 $ 4,747 865

NAV
23

213/415



10

10

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2022 12 31
$ 1,086 $ 1,013
1,051 1,598
485 31
$ 2,622 $ 2,642
)
2022 12 31
1
4,193 $ 6,610 $ 10,803
— 7 7
4 - 4
4,197 $ 6,617 $ 10,814
275 $ 153 $ 428
275 $ 153 $ 428
)
2021 12 31
1
$ 4,035 $ 1,576 $ 5,611
— 8 8
16 - 16
$ 4,051 $ 1,584 $ 5,635
$ 173 70 $ 243
$ 173 70 $ 243

214/415

EDINETOOOO



EDINETOOOO
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OooooOodd
( )
2022 2021 2020
$  (563) $  (89) $  (354)
_ ©) _
- (©) @
14 (€D (56)
®) 14 (45)
11) (25) (23)
$  (594) $  (196) $ (480)
$  (137) $ 37 $  (5)
$  (137) $ 37 $  (5)
CDS

215/415
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2022 12 31

$ 128,127 $ 128,127 $ — $ - $ 128,127
75,634 26,754 37,218 1,034 65,006
113,899 - 111,188 2,681 113,869
133,374 - 133,370 - 133,370
73,248 - 69,268 3,664 72,932
213,785 - 24,153 181,561 205,714
704 - 704 - 704
$ 351,850 $ - $ 351,721 $ — $ 351,721
61,670 - 61,620 - 61,620
15,679 - 15,673 - 15,673
3,608 - 3,608 - 3,608
216,018 - 216,018 - 216,018
159,338 - 157,780 4 157,784
$ 136,241 $ - $ 1,789 $ 1,077 $ 2,866

216/415



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2021 12 31

$ 127,725 $ 127,725 $ — $ — $ 127,725
80,168 29,454 49,352 1,076 79,882
119,992 - 117,922 2,075 119,997
129,713 - 129,713 - 129,713
91,664 - 88,001 3,442 91,533
188,134 - 25,706 163,784 189,490
528 - 528 - 528
$ 345,634 $ — $ 345,911 $ — $ 345,911
61,397 - 61,419 - 61,419
12,299 - 12,296 - 12,296
4,908 - 4,910 - 4,910
228,631 - 228,631 - 228,631
156,787 - 162,154 4 162,158
$ 133,519 $ - $ 890 $ 470 $ 1,360

217/415
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2021

2020

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 38,945 $ 37,046
26,077 28,638
10,717 7,837
1,564 1,347
1,417 1,472
$ 78,720 $ 76,340
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 12,370 $ 899 $ (5,135)
293 305 341
$ 12,077 $ 5% $ (5,476)
( )
ocl
$  (108) $ -
12) -
- 4)
- 2,006
$ 278 $ _
2 _
_ 17
(36) 901
$  (116) $ -
(€©)) -
- 19
(26) (1,340)

218/415
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OooooOodd
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
AOCI DVA $  (457) $ (2,439)
1.
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 11,916 $ 12,633
2 9,128 9,999
5,203 (2.,106)
1.
2.
3.
VIE
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 585 $ 989
90 116 $ 363

219/415
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2022 12 31
$ 62 $ 1 $ - $ 63
15 44 — 59
77 45 — 122
2 59 — 61
141,291 29,007 1,029 171,327
5,888 2,352 — 8,240
113,540 2,337 62 115,939
16,505 — 26,850 43,355
24,298 — 6,164 30,462
301,524 33,755 34,105 369,384
$ 301,601 $ 33,800 $ 34,105 $ 369,506
(214,773) (32,250) (32,212) (279,235)
(44,711) (1,348) - (46,059)
$ 42,117 $ 202 $ 1,893 $ 44,212
(19,406) _ - (19,406)
$ 22,711 $ 202 $ 1,893 $ 24,806
( ) $ 4,318

220/415
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2022 12 31
$ 457 $ 4 $ — $ 461
550 101 — 651
1,007 105 — 1,112
9 368 - 377
135,661 28,581 455 164,697
5,535 2,390 — 7,925
110,322 2,512 104 112,938
23,138 - 28,193 51,331
19,631 - 6,748 26,379
294,296 33,851 35,500 363,647
$ 295,303 $ 33,956 $ 35,500 $ 364,759
(214,773) (32,250) (32,212) (279,235)
(45,884) (1,505) _ (47,389)
$ 34,646 $ 201 $ 3,288 $ 38,135
(2,545) - (1,139) (3,684)
$ 32,101 $ 201 $ 2,149 $ 34,451
( ) $ 6,430

221/415
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
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( )
2021 12 31
$ 594 $ 1 $ - $ 595
191 6 — 197
785 7 — 792
_ 15 — 15
147,585 7,002 383 154,970
5,749 3,186 - 8,935
73,276 1,219 39 74,534
28,877 — 41,455 70,332
22,175 — 5,538 27,713
277,662 11,422 47,415 336,499
$ 278,447 $ 11,429 $ 47,415 $ 337,291
(201,729) (9,818) (42,883) (254,430)
(43,495) (1,212) _ (44,707)
$ 33,223 $ 399 $ 4,532 $ 38,154
(10,457) _ _ (10,457)
$ 22,766 $ 399 $ 4,532 $ 27,697
( ) $ 6,725

222/415
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2021 12 31
$ 86 $ 1 $ — $ 87
57 50 — 107
143 51 — 194
17 412 - 429
140,770 6,112 233 147,115
5,609 3,463 — 9,072
71,851 1,196 41 73,088
39,597 — 41,081 80,678
17,188 - 5,740 22,928
275,032 11,183 47,095 333,310
$ 275,175 $ 11,234 $ 47,095 $ 333,504
(201,729) (9,818) (42,883) (254,430)
(43,305) (1,201) — (44,506)
$ 30,141 $ 215 $ 4,212 $ 34,568
(5,866) ® 39 (5,913)
$ 24,275 $ 207 $ 4,173 $ 28,655
( ) $ 6,194

223/415
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2022 12 31
$ 62 $ - $ 64
2 - 4
4 64 - 68
— 3 — 3
3,404 7,609 614 11,627
190 130 - 320
3,477 126 15 3,618
488 - 358 846
141 - 59 200
7,700 7,868 1,046 16,614
7,704 $ 7,932 $ 1,046 $ 16,682
( )
2022 12 31
3 $ 187 $ - $ 190
12 2 - 14
15 189 - 204
— 15 — 15
3,436 7,761 497 11,694
199 125 - 324
3,516 123 35 3,674
488 - 552 1,040
101 - 79 180
7,740 8,024 1,163 16,927
7,755 $ 8,213 $ 1,163 $ 17,131

224/415
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oOoOooodn
( )
2021 12 31
$ 104 $ - $ 108
1 - 9
12 105 - 117
3,488 7,082 570 11,140
216 105 - 321
3,386 95 10 3,491
495 - 407 902
139 - 73 212
7,724 7,282 1,060 16,066
7,736 $ 7,387 $ 1,060 $ 16,183
( )
2021 12 31
- $ 99 $ - $ 99
3 - 8
102 - 107
1 12 - 13
3,827 6,965 445 11,237
225 106 - 331
3,360 88 12 3,460
552 - 735 1,287
110 - 81 191
8,075 7,171 1,273 16,519
8,080 $ 7,273 $ 1,273 $ 16,626

225/415
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0Cl
AOCI
AOCI

2022

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
)
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 1,928 $ 742 $ 75
(1,838) (629) (33)
$ (15,159) $ (4,306) $ 4,678
124 88 (100)
15,042 4,214 (4,692)
$ 657 $ 664 $  (366)
(33) (53) 16
1
$ 4 8 - $ -
C ) - - —
O] - -
2022 12 31 12 AOCI
«C ) 0.2
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 34,073 $ 17,902
1 $ (1,628) $  (591)
$ 3,735 $ 6,279
1 $  (119) $ 5
$ 146,025 $ 122,919
$ (12,748) $ 2,324
$  (715) $  (743)
( )
( )
2022 2021 2020
(62) (285) 9
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

226/415
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CDS
CDS
CDS
CDS
CDS

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno

$ 20,287 $ 20,548

12,268 14,789

( )

2022 12 31

$ 577

412

1 $ 937

S&P
( )
2022 12 31

12 $ 29 $ 29 $ $ 79
5 13 16 36
17 $ 42 $ 45 $ 11 $ 115
$ 13 $ 37 $ 3 $ 56

17 108 19 152

11 $ 30 145 $ 22 208
28 $ 72 190 $ 33 323
28 $ 72 $ 190 $ 33 $ 323
$ 262
( )

2021 12 31

10 $ 26 $ 29 $ 9 $ 74
5 13 17 2 37
15 $ 39 $ 46 $ 11 $ 111

227/415



CDS
CDS
CDS
CDS
CDS
CDS
1.

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
11 $ 106 $ 15 $ 134
14 37 12 72
1 25 $ 143 27 206
26 64 $ 189 38 $ 317
26 64 $ 189 $ 38 $ 317
$ 278
« D!
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 762 $ 1,428
(808) (370)
$ (46) $ 1,058
$ 859 $ 1,393
(1,812) (650)
$  (953) 743
$  (999) 1,801
@ ®3)
$ (1,000) $ 1,798

228/415
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CDS
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

$ 140 $ 126

173 204

26 18

$ 339 $ 348

( )

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ (33) $ (1,338)
1,248 (563)
217 (451)
$ 998 $ (2,352)
CDS
CDS
CDS CDS
CDS
CcDS CDS CDS

CDS

229/415
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CDS
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oOoOooodn

CDO CLN CDO
)
2022 12 31
1

$ 56,103 $ 17 $ 2,254 $ 53,866
23,926 1 2,753 21,174
5,998 - 470 5,528
2,598 71 42 2,627
1,147 - 45 1,102
89,772 89 5,564 84,297
28,599 - 1,845 26,754
44,038 - 8,487 35,551
1,819 - 152 1,667
1,178 - 144 1,034
75,634 - 10,628 65,006

$ 165,406 $ 89 $ 16,192 $ 149,303

230/415
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

2021 12 31

$ 58,974 $ 343 $ 296 $ 59,021

2 26,780 274 241 26,813

14,476 289 89 14,676

613 37 2 648

FFELP 3 1,672 11 11 1,672
102,515 954 639 102,830

28,653 882 81 29,454

2 48,195 169 1,228 47,136

2,267 - 51 2,216

1,053 28 5 1,076

80,168 1,079 1,365 79,882

$ 182,683 $ 2,033 $ 2,004 $ 182,712

CMo

95

231/415



EDINETOOOO

000000000 0(E05871)
ooooooo
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
12 $ 42,144 $ 1,711 $ 31,459 $ 296
12 11,454 543 - -
53,598 2,254 31,459 296
12 13,662 1,271 12,283 219
12 7,060 1,482 1,167 22
20,722 2,753 13,450 241
12 5,343 448 2,872 89
12 185 22 10 -
5,528 470 2,882 89
12 2,106 40 21 2
12 65 2 7 -
2,171 42 28 2
FFELP
12 627 23 320 1
12 476 22 591 10
1,103 45 911 11
12 63,882 3,493 46,955 607
12 19,240 2,071 1,775 32
$ 83,122 $ 5,564 $ 48,730 $ 639
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
34 33
2022 12 31 2021
12 31
VIE
FFELP 16

232/415
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oOoOooodn
( )
2022 12 31

! 2 3

$ 15,047 $ 14,752
38,454 36,529 .

10 2,602 2,585 1.3
56,103 53,866

6 7 1.0

406 375 1.4

10 852 777 1.8

10 22,662 20,015 2.7
23,926 21,174

7 7 1.7

1,548 1,466 1.8

10 3,170 2,983 2.0

10 1,273 1,072 1.3
5,998 5,528

40 40 3.4

66 68 3.7

10 148 152 3.7

10 2,344 2,367 3.7
2,598 2,627

FFELP

115 109
10 120 114
10 912 879
1,147 1,102

89,772 84,297 1.8

233/415
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2022 12 31
1 2
$ 5,437 $ 5,328 1.7
17,736 16,744 1.9
10 3,866 3,528 2.4
10 1,560 1,154 2.3
28,599 26,754
10 378 348
10 43,660 35,203
44,038 35,551
68 67 0.9
1,399 1,303 1.3
10 220 189 1.4
10 132 108 1.6
1,819 1,667
198 197 4.0
210 191 4.0
10 735 616 3.8
10 35 30 3.6
1,178 1,034
75,634 65,006 1.9
$ 165,406 $ 149,303 1.8
1.
2.
3. 2022 12 31
1.1 2.3
« )
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 164 $ 237 $ 168
C ) (94) @7 31
1 $ 70 $ 210 $ 137

234/415
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

OooooOodd
( )

2022 12 31
1
$ 240,355 $(126,448) $ 113,907 $(109,902) $ 4,005
145,340 (11,966) 133,374 (128,073) 5,301
$ 188,982 $(126,448) $ 62,534 $ (57,395) $ 5,139
27,645 (11,966) 15,679 (15,199) 480
« )
$ 1,696
624
3,861
250
( )
2021 12 31
1
$ 197,486 $ (77,487) $ 119,999 $(106,896) $ 13,103
139,395 (9,682) 129,713 (124,028) 5,685
$ 139,675 $ (77,487) $ 62,188 $ (53,692) $ 8,496
21,981 (9,682) 12,299 (12,019) 280
« )

$ 12,514
1,041
8,295
139

236/415
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
)
( )
2022 12 31
30 30 90 90
54,551 $ 77,359 $ 20,586 $ 36,486 $ 188,982
15,150 882 1,984 9,629 27,645
69,701 $ 78,241 $ 22,570 $ 46,115 $ 216,627
22,880 - - - 22,880
92,581 $ 78,241 $ 22,570 $ 46,115 $ 239,507
( )
2021 12 31
30 30 90 90
29,271 $ 53,987 $ 17,099 $ 39,318 $ 139,675
11,480 364 650 9,487 21,981
40,751 $ 54,351 $ 17,749 $ 48,805 $ 161,656
30,104 - - - 30,104
70,855 $ 54,351 $ 17,749 $ 48,805 $ 191,760

237/415
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
)
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 57,761 $ 30,790
98,839 73,063
19,340 25,881
13,042 9,941
$ 188,982 $ 139,675
$ 862 $ 748
26,289 20,656
494 577
$ 27,645 $ 21,981
$ 216,627 $ 161,656
$ 22,833 $ 30,048
47 56
$ 22,880 $ 30,104
$ 239,507 $191,760
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 34,524 $ 32,458

238/415
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( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 637,941 $ 672,104
486,820 510,000
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 32,254 $ 20,092
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
9 9
12 12




10

14

VIE

16
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Doooooo
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 38,524 $ 71,532




EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2022 12 31

$ 6,589 $ 10,634 $ 17,223
35,606 3,176 38,782
8,515 926 9,441
54,460 4 54,464
94,666 48 94,714
199,836 14,788 214,624
(839) (839)

$ 198,997 $ 14,788 $ 213,785
$ 23,651

( )

2021 12 31

$ 5,567 $ 8,107 $ 13,674
31,471 3,879 35,350
7,227 1,777 9,004
44,251 7 44,258
86,440 62 86,502
174,956 13,832 188,788
(654) (654)

$ 174,302 $ 13,832 $ 188,134
$ 24,322

241/415
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( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ - $ 17,223 $ — $ 13,674
- 38,782 - 35,350
204 9,237 343 8,661
24,903 29,561 18,966 25,292
24,077 70,637 22,832 63,670
$ 49,184 $ 165,440 $ 42,141 $ 146,647
15

242/415
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31

$ 2,554 $ 3,456 $ 6,010 $ 2,356 $ 2,328 $ 4,684

2022 6 107 113

2021 - 139 139 - 85 85
2020 - 58 58 111 26 137
2019 - 154 154 - 176 176
2018 - - - 196 - 196
2017 115 - 115 229 60 289

$ 2,675 $ 3,914 $ 6,589 $ 2,892 $ 2,675 $ 5,567

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

$ 9,445 $ 21,243 $ 30,688 $ 7,603 $ 20,172 $ 27,775

2022 1,135 1,336 2,471

2021 254 208 462 32 467 499
2020 - 98 98 35 160 195
2019 60 486 546 43 819 862
2018 - 274 274 297 703 1,000
2017 215 852 1,067 144 996 1,140

$ 11,109 $ 24,497 $ 35,606 $ 8,154 $ 23,317 $ 31,471

( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

$ - $ 204 $ 204 $ 3 $ 149 $ 152
2022 379 2,201 2,580
2021 239 1,609 1,848 423 1,292 1,715
2020 - 728 728 91 819 910
2019 659 1,152 1,811 976 1,266 2,242
2018 127 645 772 527 416 943
2017 84 488 572 189 1,076 1,265

$ 1,488 $ 7,027 $ 8,515 $ 2,209 $ 5,018 $ 7,227

243/415



2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017

2021
2020
2019
2018
2017

2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
)
2022 12 31
FICO
740 680 739 679 80 80
$ 90 $ 29 $ 5 $ 124 $ - $ 124
11,481 2,533 411 13,276 1,149 14,425
11,604 2,492 257 13,378 975 14,353
7,292 1,501 115 8,452 456 8,908
4,208 946 137 4,968 323 5,291
1,635 447 52 1,965 169 2,134
6,853 2,072 300 8,492 733 9,225
$ 43,163 $ 10,020 $ 1,277 $ 50,655 $ 3,805 $ 54,460
)
2021 12 31
FICO
740 680 739 679 80 80
$ 65 $ 27 $ 4 $ 96 $ - $ 96
12,230 2,638 257 14,116 1,009 15,125
7,941 1,648 131 9,210 510 9,720
4,690 1,072 140 5,536 366 5,902
1,865 497 55 2,231 186 2,417
8,130 2,477 384 10,073 918 10,991
$ 34,921 $ 8,359 $ 971 $ 41,262 $ 2,989 $ 44,251
)
2022 12 31
2
1
$ 77,115 $ 5,760 $ 1,480 $ 84,355
1,425 1,572 269 3,266
725 525 223 1,473
- 580 418 998
16 913 644 1,573
202 268 304 774
- 1,581 646 2,227
$ 79,483 $ 11,199 $ 3,984 $ 94,666
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( )
2021 12 31
2
1
$ 71,485 $ 6,170 $ 858 $ 78,513
2021 807 708 103 1,618
2020 - 651 626 1,277
2019 19 1,079 633 1,731
2018 232 273 375 880
2017 16 1,825 580 2,421
$ 72,559 $ 10,706 $ 3,175 $ 86,440
1. 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2.
1
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 112 $ _
85 _
158 209
1 _
$ 356 $ 209
1. 2022 12 31 90 2021 12 31 60
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 71 $ 34
94 375
209 195
118 138
10 151
1 $ 502 $ 893
$ 117 $ 356
1.2022 12 31 2021 12 31 90
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2021

2022

2020

2021

2019

CECL

2020

TDR

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 29
)

165 163 $ 206 $ 60 60 654
- ©) ©) - 1) (1)
6 _ _ 1 - 7
6 ©) ©) 1 1) 24)
65 6) 80 26 51 216
(€)) o O] - €Y )

235 153 $ 275 $ 87 89 839

3 18 4 27 48 100

)

309 198 $ 211 $ 59 58 835

(23) 67) @n €)) ® (126)

(119) 34 25 1 11 (48)
@ @ ©) 1 o )

165 163 $ 206 $ 60 60 654

3 18 4 25 50 100

115 101 $ 75 $ 25 33 349
@ 42) 34 21 (@) 9

(39) - (64) €)) o (105)
4 - - - 4 8

(35) - (64) (€h) 3 CH)

224 136 197 14 (13) 558
7 3 € - 37 16

309 198 $ 211 $ 59 58 835
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2021

2022

2020

2021

2019

CECL

2020

2022

2020

12

12

12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31

31

31

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OOoOooOodd
4 19 26 100
)

356 41 20 3 1 26 444
59 10 ) 3 ®) 64
@® - - - - @®

411 51 15 % 4 23 504

)

323 38 1% 1 23 396
37 2 10 - 3 52
@® 1 @ - - ®

356 41 20 3 1 26 444

)

201 27 73 - 6 241

(41) (11) 1 2 @ (50)

161 22 7 @ 14 203

2 - 0 - 4 2

323 38 1% 1 23 396

2022 12 31
CECL
2022 12 31 2021 12 31




(

90

)

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
0.4 0.4
0.3 0.5
167.1 73.2
90
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 4,023 $ 3,613
97 113
$ 4,120 $ 3,726
(139) (153)
$ 3,981 $ 3,573
5.8 5.7
CECL
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2020 12 31

2

2021 12 31

2022 12 31

3. 2022

2020 12 31
1

2021 12 31

2022 12 31

2021

1

2020

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

oOoOooodn

$ 476 $ 10,278 $ 881
@ (68) (©)) 72)
- 115 5,155
$ 475 $ 10,325 $ 6,033
(€1)) ) 12 (58)
) (116) - (123)
$ 429 $ 10,202 $ 6,021
$ 673 $ - $ 27
2021
$ 127 $ 4,809 $ 44
_ 134 3,844
- (36) - (36)
(23) (495) (94) (612)
- 51 [€H)
$ 104 $ 4,463 $ 3,793
23 41 _
(75) (106) - (181)
(16) (483) (111) (610)
- ) 11) (15)
$ 36 $ 3,911 $ 3,671
2021
21
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( )
( )
2022 12 31
$ 2,110 $ 245 $ 51
- 8,766 4,046
— 736 151
_ 14 5
$ 2,110 $ 9,761 $ 4,253
2021 12 31
2,120 291 95
- 8,851 3,515
- 737 117
— 180 92
$ 2,120 $ 10,059 $ 3,819
( )
2022 12 31
2023 $ 599
2024 598
2025 449
2026 340
2027 337
2022
12
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 1,927 $ 2,214
( )
2022 2021 2020
( ) $ 39 $ 104 $ —
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MUMSS

MUFG

60
MUMSS

UFJ
MUMSS

40

EDINETOOOO

000000000 m0(eos871)
ooooooo
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 35 $ 168 $ 80
MUFG UFJ
MUFG MSMS
40
MSMS 51
MUFG
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 4,073 $ 4,268
4,901 5,157
8.6 8.9
3.3 3.1
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2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

$ 886

$ 870 834

785 711

673 593

604 527

548 465

2,209 1,922

5,689 5,938
(788) (781)

$ 4,901 $ 5,157

$ 970 $ 480

( )

2022 2021 2020

$ 841 $ 852 $ 762
170 187 154

Q) ®) ®)

$ 1,004 $ 1,033 $ 911
( )

2022 2021 2020

$ 881 $ 879 $ 765
544 578 991
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FDIC
FDIC

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

12

12

2022 12 31

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

( )

2021 12 31

$ 319,948
36,698

$ 332,747
14,827

$ 356,646

$ 347,574

$ 260,420

$ 230,894

$ 96,226

$ 116,680

2022 12 31

( )

2022 12 31

$ 22,871
8,739
2,432

748
1,343
565

$ 36,698

( )

2022 12 31

$ 1,622
132
31
186

$ 1,971

( )

2021 12 31

$ 1,220

$ 963

253/415
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EDINETOOOO

DOO0O00O00OO0O0O0O(ES871)
ooooooo
( )
2022 12 2021 12
1 2 1 2 31 31
12 $ — $ - $ 343 $ 3,848 $ 4,191 $ 5,764
2022 $ 14,197
2023 $ 10,541 $ 466 $ 421 $ 7,482 $ 18,910 23,786
2024 17,611 2,007 662 9,562 29,842 29,166
2025 18,499 2,963 1,435 7,338 30,235 25,561
2026 22,261 1,361 582 4,794 28,998 24,026
2027 16,724 348 1,319 5,170 23,561 21,647
74,048 2,807 7,639 17,827 102,321 88,980

$ 159,684 $ 9,952 $ 12,058 $ 52,173 $ 233,867 $ 227,363
$ 159,684 $ 9,952 $ 12,401 $ 56,021 $ 238,058 $ 233,127

3 3.1 5.4 3.4 N/M 3.2 2.7
LIBOR SOFR

( )

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

$ 221,667 $ 213,776

12,200 13,587

$ 233,867 $ 227,363

() 6.7 7.7
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
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( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 496 $ 174
$ 2,423 $ 1,622
2022 2021
4.1 4.0
2037
2022 12 31 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
3.2 2.7 2.9
5.1 1.6 1.7
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 944 $ 4,573
7,214 5,468
$ 8,158 $ 10,041

255/415




EDINETOOOO
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1,119 1,556
1
( )
2022 12 31
. 2021 12 31
12 $ — $ 501 $ 501 $ 3,754
2022 $ 2,286
2023 $ - $ 5,200 $ 5,200 1,804
2024 - 343 343 233
2025 - 131 131 39
2026 2 - 2 —
2027 - - - -
9 853 862 369
$ 11 $ 6,527 $ 6,538 $ 4,731
3 N/M 4.9 4.9 0.7
LIBOR
3.
VIE
VIE
16
1
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2022 $ 846
2023 $ 987 586
2024 4 -
2025 60 7
2026 35 34
2027 21 14
12 69
$ 1,119 $ 1,556
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EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

)
2022 12 31

14,989 $ 26,942 $ 57,722 1,706 $ 101,359
7,376 5,280 2,485 1,095 16,236
129 247 18 325 719
12,586 5,234 439 387 18,646
60,852 - - - 60,852
300 - - 5,070 5,370
350 - - - 350
1,292 208 91 361 1,952
87 65 - 17 169
97,961 $ 37,976 $ 60,755 8,961 $ 205,653
$ 8,060

257/415
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( )
2022 12 31
1,112,671 923,893 341,579 789,300 (79,849)
1,470 736 1,249 2,663 2
2 _ _ _ _
3,200 - _ _ _
_ 24 63 23,079 -
- - - 78,966 ®)
357 30 143 35 (88)
40 - - - _
2022 12 31
79
CDS
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FICC

SPE
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ooooood
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
FiICC
FICC
FICC
2020 FICC
FICC

260/415



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

261/415



EDINETOOOO

D000000000(ESS7L)
Doooooo
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 443 $ 157 $ 336
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2007 2012
2018 26
2020
18/00318 18/00319
2021 11
22 2007 2012
16
SPE
VIE
VIE
VIE
CLN
VIE VIE
VIE
CDO
CDO

VIE
CLN

EDINETOOOO

0000000000(E05871)
ooooood
15/3637 15/4353
124 133
12
2020 22
2021 29
2021
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE

VIE
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VIE
CLN
VIE
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
VIE VIE VIE VIE

MABS 1 $ 1,153 $ 520 $ 1,177 $ 409

2 638 272 717 294

1 - 508 39

889 521 510 286

$ 2,681 $ 1,313 $ 2,912 $ 1,028

VIE VIE

CLO
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VIE
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 142 $ 341
2,066 1,965
255 37
200 200
16 31
— 85
2 253
$ 2,681 $ 2,912
$ 1,185 $ 767
124 261
4 —
$ 1,313 $ 1,028
$ 71 $ 115
VIE VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE VIE
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VIE
( )
2022 12 31
MABS 1 CDO MTOB OSF 2
VIE $ 123,601 $ 3,162 $ 4,632 $ 2,403 $ 50,178
3
$ 13,104  $ 274 $ - $ 1,694 $ 11,596
- - 3,200 - 5,211
674 - - — 1,410
$ 13,778 % 274 $ 3,200 $ 1,694 $ 18,217
$ 13,104 $ 274 $ - $ 1,577 $ 11,596
_ _ 3 _ 1,564
$ 13,104 $ 274 $ 3 $ 1,577 $ 13,160
VIE 4 $ 13,708
$ - $ - $ 3 $ — $ 281
( )
2021 12 31
MABS 1 CDO MTOB OSF 2
VIE $ 146,071 $ 667 $ 6,089 $ 2,086 $ 52,111
3
$ 18,062 $ 129 $ - $ 1,459 $ 10,339
- - 4,100 — 5,599
771 - - — 1,005
$ 18,833 $ 129 $ 4,100 $ 1,459 $ 16,943
$ 18,062 $ 129 $ - $ 1,459 $ 10,339
- - 5 — 2,006
$ 18,062 % 129 $ 5 $ 1,459 $ 12,345
VIE 4 $ 15,392
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 362
MTOB—
1.
2.
3.
4. VIE VIE SPE
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VIE

SPE

SPE

VIE

SPE

VIE

SPE
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
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VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 20,428 $ 2,570 $ 15,216 $ 2,182
67,540 4,236 68,503 4,092
32,567 4,729 57,972 9,835
3,066 1,569 4,380 1,953
$ 123,601 $ 13,104 $ 146,071 $ 18,062
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
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VIE
VIE
VIE
CLN
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE

SPE
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CLO CDO

SPE

SPE

ELN
ELN

2022 12 31 2021

SPE

12 31
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SPE

CLO

SPE

ELN
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( )
2022 12 31
RML CML CL
Mo 1
SPE 23 $ 3,732 $ 73,069 $ 6,448 $ 10,928
$ 137 $ 927 $ 367 $ -
26 465 1 44
$ 163 $ 1,392 $ 378 $ 44
3
$ 82 $ 51 $ 10 $ -
35 23 _ _
$ 117 $ 74 $ 10 $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ 1,114
_ _ - 201
( )
2021 12 31
RML ML CLN
Mo 1
SPE 2 4 $ 6,802 $ 94,276 $ 28,697 $ 13,121
$ 72 $ 638 $ 465 $ -
19 586 - 69
$ 91 $ 1,224 $ 465 $ 69
5
$ 18 $ 118 $ 33 $ -
38 53 - 4
$ 56 $ 171 $ 33 $ 4
$ - $ - $ - $ 891
_ _ _ 284
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( )
2022 12 31
$ 489 $ - $ 489
25 16 41
$ 514 $ 16 $ 530
3
$ 140 $ 3 $ 143
42 16 58
$ 182 $ 19 $ 201
$ 1,114 $ — $ 1,114
153 48 201
( )
2021 12 31
$ 536 $ 2 $ 538
40 40 80
$ 576 $ 42 $ 618
5
$ 168 $ 1 $ 169
70 25 95
$ 238 $ 26 $ 264
$ 891 $ - $ 891
194 90 284
RML
CML
1. CLO
2.
3.
4. 410
5. 168

SPE
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( )
2022 2021 2020
: $ 22,136 $ 57,528 $ 51,814
4,862 8,822 9,346
CLO SPE 12 62 169 763
1. cLo
15
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
! $ 49,059 $ 67,930
$ 47,281 $ 68,992
116 1,195
1,893 132
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17
1956
( CFTC )
SEC
RWA
Tier2
CECL 2021 12 31
RWA
2022

2025

2020

274/415

RWA

EDINETOOOO

OO00O000000O(E5871)
ooooooo
MSBNA MSPBNA
Tierl Tierl
CECL
25



G-SIB

Tier 1
Tier 1

RWA

RWA

RWA

EDINETOOOO

OO00O000000O(E5871)
ooooooo
2022 12 31
2022 2021 2021 12 31
12 31 12 31

_ 2.5

5.8 5.7 N/A
3.0 3.0 3.0
0 0 0
8.8 8.7 5.5

2.5
Tier 1
G-SIB
RWA
2.5 G-SIB
2022 12 31
2022 2021 2021
12 31 12 31 12 31

4.5 13.3 13.2 10.0
6.0 14.8 14.7 11.5
8.0 16.8 16.7 13.5
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) )
RWA
RWA
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
Tier
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
1
Tier 1 $ 68,670 $ 75,742
Tier 1 77,191 83,348
86,575 93,166
RWA 447,849 471,921
Tier 1 13.3 15.3 13.2 16.0
Tier 1 14.8 17.2 14.7 17.7
16.8 19.3 16.7 19.7
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
1
2 $ 1,150,772 $ 1,169,939
Tier 1 4.0 6.7 7.1
3 $ 1,399,403 $ 1,476,962
5.0 5.5 5.6
1.
2. Tier 1
3. Tier 1
)
)
)
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G-SIB

2022 12 31 2021 12 31 MSBNA MSPBNA
2021 12 31
RWA CECL
2020
2022 25
2025
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MSBNA

Tier 1

Tier 1

Tier 1

MSPBNA

Tier 1
Tier 1

Tier 1

2. 2022 12 31
ETB )

MSBNA
CFTC

MS&Co.

MSé&Co.

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
1

6.5 7.0 $ 20,043 20.5 $ 18,960 20.5
8.0 8.5 20,043 20.5 18,960 20.5
10.0 10.5 20,694 21.1 19,544 21.1
5.0 4.0 $ 20,043 10.1 $ 18,960 10.2
6.0 3.0 20,043 8.1 18,960 8.1

( )

2022 12 31 2 2021 12 31
1
6.5 7.0 $ 15,546 27.5 $ 10,293 24.3
8.0 8.5 15,546 27.5 10,293 24.3
10.0 10.5 15,695 27.8 10,368 24.5
5.0 4.0 $ 15,546 7.6 $ 10,293 6.9
6.0 3.0 15,546 7.4 10,293 6.7
(
ETSB
SEC
MSBNA
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 17,224 $ 18,383
12,861 14,208
SEC CFTC
CFTC
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SEC
MS&Co.
2021 12 31 MS&Co.
MSIP
CFTC
SEC
MSESE
2022
CFTC
CFTC
SEC
MSCG
ETB ETSB 2022

ETB MSPBNA

15c3-1

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
1934
E MS&Co.
MS&Co. CFTC
SEC 2022 12 31
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
MSSB SEC CFTC
MSIP
SEC
SEC CFTC
MSEHSE
MSESE
MSESE
CFTC
CFTC
2023
MSESE SEC
MSMS MSMS
MSCS
0TC SEC
CFTC MSCS
CFTC
SEC
ETSB ETB
MSPBNA
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( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 45,896 $ 49,516




0000000 000O(Ess71)
ooOoooOoo
18
)
2022 2022 2021
12 31 12 31 12 31
( )

A 44,000 $ 25,000 $ 1,100 $ 1,100
c1 519,882 1,000 408 408
E 34,500 25,000 862 862
F 34,000 25,000 850 850
| 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
K 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
L 20,000 25,000 500 500
M 400,000 1,000 430 430
N 3,000 100,000 300 300
0 52,000 25,000 1,300 1,300
P2 40,000 25,000 1,000 —
$ 8,750 $ 7,750

30,000,000

1. MUFG
2 2022 P
17 Tierl

281/415
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2022 12 31
3
2 C ) 4
A 44,000 1,000 $ 25,000
cs 1,160,791 N/A 1,100
E 34,500 1,000 25,000 2023 10 15
F 34,000 1,000 25,000 2024 15
I 40,000 1,000 25,000 2024 10 15
K 40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
L 20,000 1,000 25,000 2025 15
M6 400,000 N/A 1,000 2026 15
N6 3,000 100 100,000 2025 10
07 52,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
P 40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 10 15
1. 0.01
2. A c L 0
3. A c
4. A c
)
) 90
5. C
1,000 10
6. M N 2020 10
7. 2021 10 25 O
( )
2022 2021
1,772 1,810
! (124) (134)
- 69
2 27 27
1,675 1,772
1.
2. RSU
( )
2022 2021
$ 9,865 $ 11,464

282/415



2022

EPS

27

RSU

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
200
2022
10b5-1
EPS
( )
2022 2021 2020

1,691 1,785 1,603

PSU 22 29 21

1,713 1,814 1,624

) 3 — 5
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OooooOodd
2022 2021 2020
1 1 1
A $ 1,061 $ 47 $ 1,022 $ 44 $ 1,017 $ 44
c 100 52 100 52 100 52
E 1,781 60 1,781 60 1,781 60
F 1,719 59 1,719 60 1,719 60
H 2 - - 719 38 1,143 60
I 1,594 64 1,594 64 1,594 64
J3 _ - 253 15 1,213 74
K 1,463 59 1,463 59 1,463 59
L 1,219 24 1,219 24 1,219 23
M4 59 24 59 24 - -
N5 5,300 16 5,300 16 - -
06 1,063 55 236 12 - -
P 736 29 - _ _ _
$ 489 $ 468 $ 496
$ 2.950 $ 5,108 $  2.100 $ 3,818 $  1.400 $ 2,29
H 2021 11 19 H
2021
3. J 2020 15
4. M 2026 15
. 2023 15
6. 0 2027 15
« ) !
( )
DVA
2019 12 31
$  (897) $ 207 $ (644) $ (1,454) $ - $ (2,788)
ocl 102 1,580 146 (1,002) - 826
2020 12 31
(795) 1,787 (498) (2,456) - (1,962)
ocl (207) (1,542) (53) 662 - (1,140)
2021 12 31
(1,002) 245 (551) (1,794) - (3,102)
ocl (202) (4,437) 43 1,449 0)) (3,151)
2022 12 31
$ (1,204) $ (4,192) $ (508) $ (345) % @) $ (6,253)
1.
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oCl
( )
2022
C ) C ) C )
ocl $ (179 $ @) $ (%) $ (135 $  (261)
_ 59 59 - 59
ocl $ (@179 $ (158 $  (37) $ (@3B  $ (202
ocl $ (5,720) $ 1,337 $ (4,383) % - $ (4,383)
(70) 16 (54) - (54)
ocl $ (5,790) $ 1,353 $ (4,437) % - $ (4,437)
ocl $ 38 $ a3 % 25 $ - $ 25
22 O 18 - 18
ocl $ 60 $ an % 43 $ - $ 43
DVA
ocCl $ 1,982 $ (480) $ 1,502 $ 53 $ 1,449
ocl $ 1,982 $ (480 $ 1,502 $ 53 $ 1,449
ocCl $ ) $ - $ @ 3 - $ )
ocl $ [O)} $ - $ @ 3 - $ [0

285/415



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2021
C ) C ) C )
ocl $  (40) $ (191) $ (3B $ (124) $  (207)
ocl $  (140) $  (191) $ (331 $ (129 $ (207)
ocl $ (1,803) $ 422 $ (1,381) $ - $ (1,381)
(210) 49 (161) - (161)
ocl $ (2,013) $ 4711 $ (1,542) $ - $ (1,542)
ocl $ (101) $ 2% $ @) S - $ (75)
31 ©) 22 - 22
ocl $  (70) % 17 3 (G3) S - $ (53)
DVA
ocl $ 882 $ (213) $ 669 $ 3 $ 635
36 ©) 27 - 27
ocl $ 918 $  (222) $ 6% $ 3 $ 662
( )
2020
C ) C ) C )
ocl $ 74 $ 9 $ 173§ 68 $ 105
3) — 3) — 3)
ocl $ 71 $ 9 $ 170 $ 68 $ 102
ocl $ 2,194 $ (508) $ 1,686 $ - $ 1,686
137) 31 (106) - (106)
ocl $ 2,057 $  @77) $ 1,580 % - $ 1,580
ocl $ 162 $ @) $ 128 3 - $ 128
23 ) 18 - 18
ocl $ 185 $ B $ 146 S - $ 146
DVA
ocl $ (1,385) $ 337 $ (1,048) $  (26) $ (1,022)
26 (6) 20 - 20
ocl $ (1,359) $ 331 $ (1,028) $  (26) $ (1,002)
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ (3.136) $ (2,217)
1,932 1,275
$ (1,204) $ (1,002)
$ 17,023 $ 15,605
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2022 2021 2020

$ 3,066 $ 2,759 $ 2,282
6,988 4,209 4,142
2,188 (181) 458
1,020 (1,017) (652)
2,484 2,038 2,417
5,849 1,603 1,515

$ 21,595 $ 9,411 $ 10,162
$ 1,825 $ 409 $ 953
5,054 2,725 3,250
1,760 93 564

503 401 419
3,126 (2,262) (1,337)

$ 12,268 $ 1,366 $ 3,849
$ 9,327 $ 8,045 $ 6,313

( )

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 4,139 $ 1,800
4,273 2,164
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RSU
PSU
ESPP

2023
2024

ESPP

RSU

2022
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PSU
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 1,827 $ 1,834 $ 1,170
40 251 142
8 - -
$ 1,875 $ 2,085 $ 1,312
$ 176 $ 192 $ 157
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 427 $ 432 $ 270
( )
2022 12 31
1
$ 643
282
48
$ 973
2023 2023
( )
2022 12 31
134
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RSU
RSU
RSU
2022
( ) (D)
RSU 67 $ 60.27
23 96.61
(25) 51.71
@ 78.07
RSU 1 63 $ 76.31
RSU $ 5,366
2021 RSU 77.28
2020 RSU 55.01
1. 2022 12 31 RSU 1.2
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RSU
RSU
RSU 1
1. RSU
RSU 1
1.
PSU
MS ROTCE
S&P500
2022 12 31 PSU
PSU
MS ROTCE/ROE
MS TSR
MS
2022
2021

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

2022

) )
39 $ 65.58
23 96.61
(25) 68.38
@ 78.07
35 $ 83.41
( )

2022 2021 2020
$ 2,301 $ 1,539 $ 1,295
2,433 1,647 1,289

PSU
150
MS ROE 2021
MS TSR
PSU RSU
2.5

2022 2021 2020
$ 100.12 $ 74.87 $ 57.05
102.17 83.70 65.31

TSR

1.3 38.9 0.91
0.2 39.0 0.92

291/415
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2020 1.6 24.0 0.88
S&P500
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 761 $ 810 $ 1,263
(716) 526 856
$ 45 $ 1,336 $ 2,119
1 $ 264 $ 253 $ 194
1.
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 225 $ 346 $ 215
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( )
2021 2020
19 $ 19 $ 17
111 104 121
(56) (48) an
1 1 1
25 34 26
100 $ 110 $ 88
401(a)
( )
2021 2020
(768) $  (691) $  (877)
26 (112) 161
- - @
1 1 1
25 34 26
52 ) 186
(716) $  (768) $  (691)
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10
2022 2021 2020
2.80 2.43 3.08
1.71 1.42 2.35
3.36 3.25 3.28
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( )
2022 2021

$ 4,081 $ 4,334
19 19

111 104
(1,064) 122)
- @
@ (16)
(196) @17)
42) (20)

$ 2,907 $ 4,081
$ 3,605 $ 3,985
(982) (186)

37 38
(196) @17)
@ (15)

(46) -

$ 2,416 $ 3,605
$  (491) $  (476)
$ 75 $ 117
(566) (593)
$  (491) $  (476)

( )

2022 2021
12 31 12 31

$ 2,891 $ 4,065




2022
12 31
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2021
12 31

$ 2,746
2,731
2,180

$ 3,768
3,753
3,175

12 31

2022
12 31

2021
12 31

4.93
3.73

2.80
3.36

296/415
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)
2022 12 31

$ 4 $ - $ - 4
1,788 267 - 2,055
CDo - - - -
- @ - @
- - 64 64
_ 21 - 21
$ 1,792 $ 286 $ 64 2,142
44
55
20
158
277
- &) - ®
$ - $ ©) $ - &)
2,416
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2021 12 31
$ 9 $ - $ — $ 9
2,759 314 — 3,073
CDO - 1 - 1
_ 3 - 3
- - 65 65
1 _ 2 _ 2
$ 2,768 $ 320 $ 65 $ 3,153
NAV
33
162
39
235
$ 469
1 _ an - an
$ - $ an $ - $ an
$ 3,605
1.
( )
2022 2021
$ 65 $ 61
- 1
@ 3
$ 64 $ 65
2022 2021
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

88 86
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NAV

NAV
NAV

2022 12 31
2023 2023 40

299/415



2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

401(k)

2021

-2032
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( )

2022 12 31
$ 149
153
159
166
174
937
( )

2022 2021 2020
$ 355 $ 357 $ 293

401(K)
401(K)
401(K) 2022
IRS
100,000
2020
401(K)

( )

2022 2021 2020
$ 163 $ 149 $ 130

300/415



22

1. 2022

2021
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( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 2,518 $ 2,554 $ 1,641
442 475 399
405 551 395
105 105 185
29 192 185
260 667 684
$ 3,759 $ 4,544 $ 3,489
$  (803) $ (1D $  (249)
(142) 33 (38)
55 37) Q@)
20 4 12
@ © A
22 24 30
$  (849) $ 4 $  (250)
$ 2,910 $ 4,548 $ 3,239
2020
2022 2021 2020
21.0 21.0 21.0
1.8 2.1 2.0
0.9) (0.6) (0.8)
0.8 1.4 1.7
@a.n (0.6) 0.7
0-3) 0.2) 0.7
20.7 23.1 22.5
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 288 $ 276
2,487 2,430
595 599
1,743 474
35 15
5,148 3,794
205 208
$ 4,943 $ 3,586
807 1,287
2,019 2,046
$ 2,826 $ 3,333
$ 2,117 $ 253

2022 12 31
50

2022 12 31
429
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( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 971 $ 755 $ 755
256 201 139
64 74 178
_ _ 26
(134) €)) 297)
®) (10 (36)
(22) 12) (10)
$ 1,129 $ 971 $ 755
$ 1,007 $ 860 $ 665
12
12

( )

( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 39 $ 14 $ 56
175 142 134
2017
2010
2011
2018
2016
IRS
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( )
2022
$ 5,235 $ 438 $ - $  (79) $ 5,599
14,318 (432) (11) 53 13,928
(156) 51 120 - 15
2,756 2,467 - (285) 4,938
580 13,872 5,332 (206) 19,578
(295) 592 ) 12) 283
22,438 16,988 5,439 (524) 44,341
13,276 9,579 56 (1,316) 21,595
11,321 2,150 120 (1,323) 12,268
1,955 7,429 (64) 7 9,327
$ 24,393 $ 24,417 $ 5,375 $  (517) $ 53,668
$ 211 $ 69 $ - $ - $ 280
8,246 12,534 2,273 - 23,053
9,221 5,231 2,295 (501) 16,246
$ 17,467 $ 17,765 $ 4,568 $  (501) $ 39,299
$ 6,715 $ 6,583 $ 807 $  (16) $ 14,089
1,308 1,444 162 ) 2,910
5,407 5,139 645 12) 11,179
165 - (15) - 150
$ 5,242 $ 5,139 $ 660 $  (12) $ 11,029
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( )
2021
$ 10,272 $ 822 $ - $  (100) $ 10,994
12,353 418 (53) 92 12,810
607 48 721 - 1,376
2,878 3,019 1 @G77) 5,521
583 13,966 5,576 (158) 19,967
495 577 (20) (10) 1,042
27,188 18,850 6,225 (553) 51,710
3,752 5,821 31 (193) 9,411
1,107 428 36 (205) 1,366
2,645 5,393 Q) 12 8,045
$ 29,833 $ 24,243 $ 6,220 $  (541) $ 59,755
$ $ 1 $ - $ - $ 4
9,165 13,090 2,373 - 24,628
8,861 4,961 2,169 (536) 15,455
$ 18,026 $ 18,051 $ 4,542 $  (536) $ 40,083
$ 11,814 $ 6,181 $ 1,678 $ (5 $ 19,668
2,746 1,447 356 @) 4,548
9,068 4,734 1,322 ) 15,120
111 - (25) - 86
$ 8,957 $ 4,734 $ 1,347 $ @ $ 15,034
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( )
2020
$ 7,204 $ 559 $ - $  (89) $ 7,674
13,097 844 (34) 76 13,983
166 12 808 - 986
2,935 2,291 1 (376) 4,851
461 10,955 3,013 (157) 14,272
323 403 (39) ©) 678
24,186 15,064 3,749 (555) 42,444
5,809 4,771 14 (432) 10,162
3,519 749 29 (448) 3,849
2,290 4,022 (15) 16 6,313
$ 26,476 $ 19,086 $ 3,734 $  (539) $ 48,757
$ 731 $ 30 $ - $ - $ 761
8,342 10,970 1,542 - 20,854
8,252 3,699 1,322 (549) 12,724
$ 16,594 $ 14,669 $ 2,864 $  (549) $ 33,578
$ 9,151 $ 4,387 $ 870 $ 10 $ 14,418
2,040 1,026 171 2 3,239
7,111 3,361 699 8 11,179
99 _ 84 - 183
$ 7,012 $ 3,361 $ 615 $ 8 $ 10,996
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( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 2,946 $ 3,487 $ 2,008
2,289 6,785 5,196
90 91 92
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 2,808 $ 740 $ 2,978
1,585 1,008 902
7,515 7,331 6,200
1,466 2,599 1,762
554 1,132 2,141
$ 13,928 $ 12,810 $ 13,983
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 819 $ 802

15
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( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 211 $ 516 $ 135
2a-7
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 910 $ 969 $ 699
EMEA
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 40,117 $ 44,605 $ 35,459
6,811 7,699 6,549
6,740 7,451 6,749
$ 53,668 $ 59,755 $ 48,757
( )
2022 2021 2020
$ 9,363 $ 14,082 $ 10,027
4,726 5,586 4,391
$ 14,089 $ 19,668 $ 14,418
EMEA
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2022 2021 2020
$ 2,538 $ 2,391 $ 2,298
2022 2021 12 31
2020 12 31
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 2,577 $ 3,591
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 789,837 $ 792,135
373,305 378,438
17,089 17,567
$ 1,180,231 $ 1,188,140
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( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 853,228 $ 848,001
197,397 204,083
129,606 136,056

$ 1,180,231

$ 1,188,140

( )
2022 2021 2020

$ 2,875 $ - $ 2,811
8,661 8,898 1,170
11,536 8,898 3,981
(1,143) 229 (244)
170 4 51
10,563 9,131 3,788
5,805 2,648 3,666
6,162 2,822 3,087
(357) (174) 579
10,206 8,957 4,367
252 443 387
9,954 8,514 3,980
(456) (203) (109)
10,410 8,717 4,089
619 6,317 6,907
11,029 15,034 10,996
(202) (207) 102
(4,437) (1,542) 1,580
43 (53) 146
1,449 662 (1,002)
&) - -

$ 7,878 $ 13,894 $ 11,822
$ 11,029 $ 15,034 $ 10,99
489 468 496

$ 10,540 $ 14,566 $ 10,500
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 25,333 $ 15,342
10,391 5,298
(17,409 21,246
27,226 16,573

) 36,676 39,707
22,987 21,116

76,232 59,757

93,593 96,202

59,676 69,059

50,366 48,481

2,071 1,109

$ 377,325 $ 356,071

$ 262 $ 1,688

28,682 16,928

76,170 59,960

2,282 1,859

(12,122 15,894 ) 169,788 170,195
277,184 250,630

15
8,750 7,750
0.01
: 3,500,000,000 : 2,038,893,979

:1,675,487,409 1,772,226,530 20 20
29,339 28,841

94,862 89,432

4,881 3,955
« ) (6,253) (3,102)

0.01 )

363,406,570 266,667,449 (26,577) (17,500)
(4,881) (3,955)

100,141 105,441

$ 377,325 $ 356,071
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2022 2021 2020

$ (13,064) $ 4,257 $ 14,202
(1,855) (6.275) (4,575)
676 2,611 2,013

3,814 1,940 2,759
(4,228) (3,022) (4,735)
3,434 3,696 2,892
(1,871) 13,581 (24,584)
11,755 (7,422) 19,719
(10,574) (17,083) (13,832)
1,151 (11,974) (20,343)

994 1,275 -
34,431 42,098 25,587
(14,441) (28,592) (22,105)
(10,871) (12,075) (1,890)
(5,401) 4,171) (2,739)
16,707 17,042 7,194
- - (498)

21,419 15,577 5,549
485 380 (316)
9,991 8,240 (908)
15,342 7,102 8,010

$ 25,333 $ 15,342 $ 7,102
$ 75 $ 100 $ 20
25,258 15,242 7,082

$ 25,333 $ 15,342 $ 7,102
$ 836 $ 441 $ 381
$ 5,955 $ 2,970 $ 3,472
3,132 2,775 1,364

2022 2021 2020

18
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 157,585 $ 155,304
12,203 13,591
$ 169,788 $ 168,895
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 51,136 $ 47,129
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
$ 615 $ 610
2021
IHC
IHC

IHC
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1934
13a-15(e)
( GAAP
)
GAAP
2022 12 31
(C0S0) (2013 )

2022 12 31
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2022 12 31

12 31

31
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)

2022 12 31
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(2013 )

(

)(
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Table of Contenis
Consolidated Income Statement Murgan Sta I'IIE}I'
in ardllys, aroepd par sham dats 2022 2021 220
Revenues
Irrvistivsind Banking 5599 % s £ T 674
Trading 13858 12.810 13,963
Invaakmeanis i5 1,378 f88
Cormmissions and Tees 4938 5521 4 851
Aadal ranagament 19,578 16,967 14,372
Cinar 283 1,042 678
nial non-intareat reveruas 430 51,710 A4
Inlarest moomea . 21,5485 G411 10, 162
Iriliresti s ke 12,268 1,068 3848
et inlnn sl 09,327 B.045 6.3
Met revenues ﬂ,l_}ﬂ_l 50,755 4B, TET
Provision for erudil losses 280 ] T
Hon-interest ex EHPENRES
Cormper:aion and benebts 3,053 24628 20,854
Brokerage, clearnng and exchangs fees 3,458 3 2829
Information processing and convmanicalions 3,403 31419 2465
Professsnal services 3,070 2833 2,205
Drecuandy ard aquiprisn 1,72 1,725 1.550
Marketing and business civelopment 405 643 434
Other 3,501 3,654 3,132
Total non-nterest expenses 18,269 40,083 31578
Irvcone balora provision Mo incoe Laxes 14,085 15,668 14,418
Privvetion for incore lanas 2,810 4548 3a2m
Malncoma 1,478 § 15,120 § 11178
Netincoms apphcabli k nencontrolling intarests 150 B 183
Mel ncome mphcsu’aluﬁrgmﬁmmr 1,029 § 15004 § 10,696
Prisferrad stock dnadends 489 4E8 A5
Earnings applicable to Morgan Stanley common shareholders 10,540 § 14 566 § 11}_..5_@_
Earnings per common share
Basic 523 § B16 § 6.55
Celuted 615 B.03 646
Average common shares cutstanding
Basic 1,601 1,785 1.603
Diuted T 1814 1624
Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statement
5 in ooy 2022 2021 2020
Mal coie 1,478 § 15120 § 1T
Ozher comprahensive income (loss). nat ol
Foraign cumancy ranalation adiustmenis {337) {331) 170
Change in nel urdealized gamns (10ases ) on avallable-for-aals securites {4,437) {1,542} 1,580
Pansicn ard athar 43 (53} 146
Changa in nat debt valuation adustmant 1,502 695 (1.028)
Mt change in cash Bow hidgas 4 = e
Tolal alher comprabersys ncoma (1a8) (3233 § (1,230} % [
Carnprehandive indoms TA4E 5 13,860 % 12047
Malincons apphcabla ta noncontrolling interests 150 ] 183
Oher comprehensive income (loss} applicable 1o nonconlrolling inlasests (82) (5 42
‘Comprahansive incoms applicable 1o Ilnmul Senaley THTE % 13.804 % 11,822

See Notes fo Consclidated Financial Statements 73
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Table of Contenis
Consolidated Balance Shect Morgan Stanley
A AL
December 31, Dacamber 31,
i mlorus. gt shara duls w22 2021
Asgets
Cash and cash squeealents 5 128,127 £ 127,725
Trading assals Al far valua (§124,411 and §104,186 were pladged o vanous parkes) 304,315 204 865
Invastment secuntes (inchudes $64,297 and $102.630 al fair valua) 158,93 182,998
Securibes purchased under agoeements b resall inchedes §8 and 57 at far value) 113,907 11085
Securibes borrowad 133,374 128,713
Cusbamiinr and othar recsivablias 78,540 06,018
Linibrs:
Hadd for svvesiment {net of allowancs Bor credl keeses of $830 and $654) 188,807 174,302
Ml For 2aba 14,788 13.832
Goodwill 16,652 16,833
Inangibia assats (net of acounilated amortzabion of $4.253 and £3.819) T.518 8,360
Cilher aasets 26,982 23491
Talal aasats 5 1,180,231 § 1.188.140
Lialilities
Draspetsiits. firctucas $4.786 and $1, 540 at fair valus) 5 IB6E45 F 34T EM
Trading linbdites al fair vadua 154,438 158,334
Securities sold under agreenants bo repurchass nchedes $864 and $701 al fair value) 62,534 62,164
Securibes koaned 15,678 12,288
O sasoursd fnancings findudes $4,550 and 85,133 o Eair valus) 8158 A0, 041
Cuntomer and ofher payables 216,134 228665
Oilhar lipkelitas and accnued expanses 27,353 28,300
Besrowings (inchudes $78,710 and $76,340 al Tair value) 238,058 233127
Total liabilities 1,079,000 1,081,542
Commitments and eantingent liabilities (see Note 15)
Equity
Margan Slanley aharaholders’ atuily:
Prafedred stock 8,750 7,780
Corrmnen Klock, $0.01 par vidud:
Ehares authorized: 3,500,000,000: Shares ismed: 2,008,893.978; Shares culstardhing: 1,675.487 408 and
1772226530 m il
Addibonal paid-in capital 29,339 &8.841
Relained earmings 94,862 B4z
Ernplayee slock insts 4,881 3,855
Meurmialid olbér comprshansivi neoma (o) {6,253} {3,102}
Common stock hedd in ireasury ab cost, $0.01 par value (363,406,570 and 266 66T 448 sharos | (26,577) (17,500
Comman stock iseued 1o emplayae stock usts (4881) {3955
Tetal Morgan Sanley shareholders” aquity 100,141 105,441
Mool mbarasts 1,084 1,157
Total equity 101,23 1045, 564
Tolal liabslities and equity § 1480331 § 1184140
December 2022 Form 10K ™ S Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Total Equity Morgan Stanley
£ i milines. 2022 2021 2020
Prefemed Stock
Beginning halanca 1750 % 9250 % 8520
Iadasanice of prafarmed slock 1,000 1,300 o0
Rademptian of praferrsd stock — {2.800) :
Endiryg balancs 8,750 T.760 9,260
Commen Steck
Begirning and andng balance n 0 20
Additianal Paid-in Capital
Baginning balance 28,841 25,546 23835
Shara-based awand activity 503 1.1017 518
Issuance of predemad slock 8) (25} -
Insuanee of commaon stock for the acqusiion of Eaton Vance - 2,185 .-
Esnics of comman gtock for the acquikiion of E"TRADE - 1,003
Cithér Nl increasas (decriases) 1 18 =
Ending balance 0,339 28.841 25545
Ritained Earnings
Begirning balanes 80,432 TH.634 T0.580
wm:;-umwdih i rslatad o the adoplion of the inancial instrumenis-credi lsses _ B (160)
Mat incanrs apphicabla b Morgan Slanlay 11,023 15,004 10,996
Pradirtad stock dividends’ {488) {46E) {d456)
Carmmon siack dividands’ {5,108 {3.818) (@205}
Cither il inCreases (decreases) ) (10} -
Ending balance 54,863 60432 78,654
Employes Stock Trusts
Baginning balance 3,855 3043 288
Share-based awaed activity Era 2 125
Ending balance 4,881 3965 3043
Atcumulited Other Comprahensive Incams (Loas)
Begirning balancs (3,102} {1,862) (2,788}
Mt chiarg in Adcumulstsd othar compnbursive income Taas) [3,151) {1,140) 26
Endfing bafance [6,253) (3,102} (1.862}
Comman Steek Held in Treasury 81 Cost
Beginning balanca {17,500) (8,767 {18,727}
Shara-basad award activily 1,784 1,240 a2
Rapurchases of common slock and emplayse tax withholdngs (10,871) {12.075) (1.850)
lssuance of comman stock for the acqusition of Eaton Vance — 3432 -
Iadasanice of common stock for the acquediion of E*TRADE = = 8818
Erufirg balarce {26,577} {17.500) {8,767}
Comman Stock Issued to Employee Stock Trusts
Begirning balance [3,955) [d043) (2.8}
Share-bhased avward activily (925) {#12) [¥25)
Erdlirg balance (4,881) (3,855) {3,043}
Moncontrolling Interests
Bagirning balance 1157 1,368 1.148
Malincome appbcablie B noncontrolling intarasts. 150 BS a3
Mat change in Accurmudated othar comprabensive incorne (lasa] applicable Lo rorcantralling
inlarasis (&2) (5] 42
Omher nel incraagas (docrasses) {135) {207) (5}
Endiing balance 1,090 1,157 1368
Tatal Equity 101,231 % 106,588 § 103,148

! G Mot 3 oottt indZermiteon reg Lt

] s T 9 chag
2 Hes Hotwe 10 for nfoemation regending deviderds per share for mach class of sindk.

See Notes fo Consclidated Financial Statements 73
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Morgan Stanley
E s maliang 2022 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
M 5 11,11 § 1543 & 19,579
Adfustmants o recondle nat incomas (o rel cash provided by (used o} opemaling activibies:
Dalarred income taxes {B43) 4 {250}
Stock based compenaalion aapanda 1,875 2085 1.312
Dapraciaton and amortizabon 3,988 4.6 3,768
Provision for credil losses 280 4 761
Other oparating adusimants 618 {147} 274
Changes in assels and kabdites:
Tradirg assals, nel of Trading liabiities (38, 422) 075 15,551
Securiling borowad (3.661) {17.322) (5.076)
Securiting lnaned 3,380 4, 568 {1,541}
Cualamer and other recaivabbas and olhar Resals 14,664 TT4 {20,774)
Customer and alher payables and other liabikbes [4,887) 7.758 10,187
Securilies purchared undar sgrasmants S resall 6,002 (3.765) {28010}
Secunities sold undar agreements t epurchase 346 11,601 (3,613}
Mot eash provided by (used for) opersting activities 16.397) 3971 25.201)
Cash flows from investing activities
Procesids fram [yt fe:
Othir assets—Prémises, equipment and saftears, nat (3,078) (2.308) (1.444)
Changas in loars, rat {23,652) {36,108) {17.848)
AFS seguribes’:
Purchanes (24,602) {42.468) {35.478)
Proceads rom Sales 2,014 20,652 13750
Proceads from paydowns and maturities 13,435 26,375 15,664
HTM sacuribes’;
il (8,231) {27.102) {20,269
Proceads from paydowns and maburies 8,829 14,541 8853
Cash paid as part of tha Enaton Vanoe acquisition, ned of cash acquired — (2 648) —
Cash acquined as part af the E*TRADE acquisition — 3,807
Ofther irveating acivitias {347) {832} {802}
Met cash provided by (used for) investing activities 111.632) (48,857) {37 BER)
Cash flows from financing activities
Mal procaads fram (payments for):
Citiner secuned fnancings {BE4) {625) 2704
Deposits 1,652 36,857 75,417
lssuance of prderad stock, nel of issuancs costs a4 1,275 ==
Procadds fom issuancs of Borrowirgs 72,460 80,273 60726
Paymanis for;
Borrraings {34, 8098) {70, 124) {50484}
Repurchases of common stock and employes tax withholdings {10,874) {12.075) {1,850)
Cash dwvidands (5. 401) (4,171} [
Other fnancing sctivites R {345) L ]
: [ 7 activition T 4547 83,764
Effect of Bxchange rals changes on cash and cash equivalents (4,283) (3.550) 2828
Malincrsase (decrasss | in cash and cash squivalints 402 22.0M 23483
Cash and cash agquivalents, al baginning af perod 127,715 106,654 82171
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period 5 A1ZB 127 § 127,725 § 105,854
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash payments for:
Inlares] 13 8819 § 1303 § 4,120
Inoome Laxes, nel of refunds 4,147 420 2581

1 Tha price paricd smouns hares Bssn reeised 10 present Purchases. Procssds Sy pales and Procesds o papdosns and matiaiias sapacilsly Eetwsen AFS secarities snd
HTM s

December 2022 Form 10-K 13 See Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

322/415



Table of Contents
Notes to Consolidated Financdial Statements

1. Introduction and Basis of Presentation
The Firm

Morgan Stanley 13 a glebal financial services firm that
mamiains sigmificant market posittons. in each of its business
segments—Institutionsl Secunities, Wealth Management and
Invesiment Mamagement. Morgan  Stanley, through s
submichinrses and affiliates, provides a wide vanety of products
and services 1o a large and diversified group of clients and
customers, including corportions, governments, financial
inatitetions and individuals. Unless the comtext otherwise
requires, the terms “Morgan Stanley”™ or the “Firm™ mean
Morgan Stankey (the “Paremt Company™) together with s
consolidated subsidianes Disclosures reflect the effects of the
scquisition of Eaton Vance Corp. (“Haton Vance™) and
E*TRADE Financial Carpesation {(“"E*TRADE")
prospechively rom the acquisiion dates, March 1, 2021 and
October 2, 2020, respectively. See Mate 3 to the fnancaal
statements for further information. See the “Glossary of
Common Terms and Acranyms” for the definibion of ceriain
terms and acronyms used throughowt this Foem 10-E.

A description of the clents and principal products  amd
services of each of the Firm's business segments is as
follows:

Instiutional Secunties provides a vanety of products and
services Io corperations, governments, (inancial institutions
and ubira-high net worth clients, Investment  Banking
services consist of capital ssing and financial advisory
services, mncluding the underwriing of debt, equity and
other securtties, as well as sdvice on mergers and
acquizitions, restructurings and project finance. Cur Equity
and Fixed Income buwanesses include sales, lnancing,
prime brokerage, market-making, Aswa wealth mansgement
services amdd certain basiness-relited nvestments. Lending
activitics  include  originating  corporate  loars  and
commercial real estate loans, providing secured lending
facilines. and extending securmics-based  and  other
financing o customers. Cither activities include research

Wealth Management provides o comprehensive ammay of
financial services and solutions to individual investors and
saniall to medium-szed businesses and instindions covering:
financial advisor-ted brokerage, custody, sdmimstrative and
imvestment  advisory  services; self-directed  brokerage
services, financial and wealth planning services; workplace
services, including steck plan admmistiration., secunibes-
based lending, residential real estate Joans and cther lending
products; banking; and retirement plan services.

Invesiment Management provides a broad range of
nvestment strategies and products that span geographies,
assel classes, and public and private markets to a diverse
group of cliems scross mstitutional and  intermediary
channels. Strategies and producis, which are offered
through & varety of mvestment vehicles, include equity,
fixed income, alternatives and solutions, and liquidity and

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley

overlay serviees  Instiutional clients include defined
beneitidefined  cominbution  plans, foundations,
endowments, povernment enfities, soversign wealth funds,
insurance  compamies, third-party  fund  sponsors  and
corporations.  Individual clients are gemerally served
through  mtermediaries, including affilmted and non-
affihated distributors.

Hasis of Financial Information

The financal stalements are prepared in accordance with U5
GAAP, which requires the Firm 1o make estimates and
assumptions regarding the valuations of certam financial
instruments, the valustions of goodwill and intangible assets,
the outcome of legal and tax maters, deferred tax mesets,
ACL, and other matters that alfect its financial statements and
related disclosures. The Firm believes that the estimates
utilized in the preparation of s financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ materially
from these estinites,

The Motes are an mtegral part of the Fim's financial
statements The Firm has evaluated subsequent events for
adjustment to or disclosure in these [nancial statements
through the date of this report and has not wentified any
recordable or disclosable ¢vents not otherwise reported in
these financial statements of the notes thereto,

Canrsoliolztion

The financeal statements include the accounts of the Firm, 1=
wholly owned subsidiories and other entities an which the
Firm has a controlling financial interest, including certain
VIEs (see Note 16). Intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated. For consolidated subsidianes that are
not wholly owned, the thard-party holdings of equiy inmerests
are referred to as Noncontrolling interests. The net income
attnbutable 1o Moncontrolling mierests for such subsihanes is
presented s Net mcome applicable 1o noncontrolling mierests
in the income stalement. The portion of sharcholders’ equity
that iz attribadable to noncontrolling interests for such
subsichanes 15 presented as Noncontrolbing inleérests, a
componenl of Tetal equity, inthe balance sheel

For entities where the total equity mvestment at nsk is
sufficient to enable the entity 1o finance s achivities withouwl
addittonial  subordinated fnancial support and the squity
holders bear the residual economue risks and returns. of the
entity and have the power to direct the activities of the entity
that most significantly affect 1 economic performance, the
Firmy consolidates those entities it controls erther throwgh a
majonty volng mterest or otherwise. For VIEs (e, enlitics
that do mot meet the aforementioned critena), the Firm
consolidates those entities where it has the power to make the
decisions that most significantly affect the economic
performance of the VIE and has the obligation to absorb
losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be
significant to the VIE.

December 2022 Farm 10-K
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For investments in entities in which the Firm does not have a
contrelling financial imerest bat has significant influence over
operating and Mnancial decisions, it apphes the equity methesd
of accounting with net gains and losses recorded within Caher
revenues (see Mot 12) unbess the Firm has elected to measure
the investment at fair value, in which case net gains and losses
are recorded within Investments revenues (see MNate 5).

Equity and partnershop interests held by entities quabfving for
BCOOUNLNG pUrposes a8 investment companies are carried at
fair value.

The Fum's sigmifiant regulated US and mternational
subsciaries include:

= Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (“MS&Ca.™),

+ Mongan Stanley Smith Bamey LLC (“MSSE™,

+ orpan Stanley Europe ZE (“MSESE™),

*« Morgan Stanley & Co, International ple ("MSIP™Y,

« Morgon Stanley Copital Services LLC ("MSCE™,

= Margan Stanley Capital Group Inc. (“MSCG™),

+ Morgan Stanley MUFG Securities Co., Lid (“MSMS™,
» Morgan Stanley Bank, N.A_("MSBNAT),

Maorgan  Stanley Private Bank, National Association
("MSPBNA") and

+ E¥TRADE Secunties LLC,

For further mformation on the Firm's significant regulated
L5, and international subsidiaries, see Note 17,

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue Recognition

Kevenues are recogmized when the promised goods ar
services ane delivered to our customers noan amount that 1=
based om the conswderation the Firm expects to receave in
exchange for those goods or services when such amounts are
nst probable of significant reversal

Trvestmrent Banking

Revenues from investment bankmg activities consist of
revenues camed from underwniting, primarily equity and
fixed income securities and loan syndications, and advisory
fees, primarily for mergers, apquisitions and restruciurings

Underwriting revenues are generally recogmized on trade date
if there is no uncertainty or contingency related to the amount
to e paid. Underwriting costs are deferred and recognized in
the relevant non-interest expenses lime items when the related
underwriting revenues ane recorded.

Advisory fees are recognized as advice is provided o the
client, based on the estimated progress of work and when
revenues are not probable of a significant reversal. Advisony
costs are recognized as incurred in the relevant non-interest
expenses |ine items, including those reimbursed.

Dhecemiber 2022 Farem 10-K
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Canrunissions and Fees

Commssion  and  fee  réevenues  generally  result  [rom
transaction-based amangements in which the client is charged
a fee For the exccution of transactions. Such revenues
primarly anse from transactions in equity securilies; services
related 1o sales and tracding activites, and sales of mutual
funds, alemative funds, futures, msurance products and
options, as well as revenues from order flow payments for
directing customer orders 1o broker-dealers, exchanges, and
market centers for execution, Commission and fee revenues
are recognized on trade date when the performance chligation
15 satisfied.

Asset Mamagement Revenmes

Asset management, disiribution and administration fees are
generlly based on related asset levels being managed, such as
the ALM of & customer’s account or the met asset value of a
fund These fees are generally recognized when services are
performed and the fees become known, Management fees are
reduced by estimated fee waivers and expense caps, if any,
provided to the customer

Performance-based fees ot in the form of carmed interest are
recorded when the annual performance target 5 met and the
revenues are not probable of a significant reversal.

Sales commissions paid by the Firm in connection with the
sale of certain classes of shases of s open-end mutual fund
products are accounted for as deferred commission asscts and
amortized to expense over the expected life of the contract.
The Fam penodically tests deferred commission assets for
recoverability based on cash flows expected 10 be receved in
future periods. Cther assel management and distnbution costs
are recogmezed as incumed o the relevanl non-interest
expenses line fems.

Carried Interess

The Firm 15 entitled to receve performance-based fees in the
form of camed mterest when the retum in ceriain funds
exceeds specified performance tangets. When the Firm eams
camied interest  from  fumds as  speclied  performance
thresholds are met, that camied interest and any related
general or limited panner interest are accounted for under the
equity miethod of accounting and messured based on the
Firm's clm oo the WAV of the fund & the reporing date,
taking inte account the distnbution terms applicable to the
interest held Such items are reflected within Investment
FEVENLUES.

See Note 23 for information regarding the net cumubative
unrealized amount of performance-based fee revenues at risk
of reversal. See Note 15 for informaticn reparding gemeral
parner guarentees, which include potential obligations 1o
return perfarmance fee distrbutions previeasly receved
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Cithver Ttems

Revenues [rom cenamn commedites-related contracts are
recognized as the promised goods or services are delivered 1o
the customer,

Recervables from contracts with cusomers are récogruzed in
Customer and other receivables in the balance sheet when the
underlving performance obligations have been satisficd and
the Firm has the right per the comtract to hill the customer.
Contract assets are recognized in Other assets when the Firm
has  satisfied itz performance obligations bl cuslomer
payment s conditional on something other than the passage of
tme. Comtract labilities are recopnized m Other habilihes
when the Firm has collected pavment from a customer based
cn the terms of the confract but the wnderlying performance
obligations are not vet satisfed

For contracts with a term of less than one year, incremental
costs to obtain the contract ape expensed as incwrred
Revenues are nod discounted when pavment 15 expected
within one vear,

The Firm gemerally presemts, net within revemes, taves
wmessed by o governmental authority that are both m posed
on and concurrent with a specific  revenue-producing
transaction and collected by the Firm from a customer

Cash amd Cash Eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comsist of Cash and due from
banks and Interest bearing deposits with banks. Cash
equivalents are highly lquid mvesiments with remaining
maturities of three months o less from the acquisition date
that are readily convertible to cash and are not held for irading
PUTpOsCs.

Cash and cash equivalents also include Restricted cash such
os cosh segregated 1 complisnes with federal of other
regulations, inclusding minimum reserve requirements set by
the Federal Reserve Bank and other central banks, and the
Firm"s initial margmn deposited with clearing organizations,

Fair Yalue of Financial Instruments

Instruments within Trading &ssets and Trading labilities are
menasured at far value, either as required or allowed by
pecounting guidance, These Tmancm] anstruments primarily
represent the Fim's tmading and investment positions and
include both cash and derivative products. In addition,
ascurities  classified as  Avmlable-for-Sale ("AFS™) are
measured at fair value

Gains and losses on instrsments carned a1 far value are
reflected in Trading revempes, Invesiments revenucs of
Inwvestment banking revenues in the income statement, except
for gaing and losses related to AFS securities (see “AFS
Investment  Secunities” sectton herein and Note 8) and
denvatives mcoounted for ms hedges, as well s economic
dervative hedges associated with certain held-for-sale and
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held-for-investment corporate koans and lending commitments
(see “Hedge Accounting” and “Oiher Hedges™ herein and
Note T

Interest mcome and imterest expense are recorded within the
income stabement depending on the nabure of the instrument
andd related market comventions, When mterest is incheded as a
component of the instruments” fair value, mlerest 15 recorded
within Trading revenues or Investments revenues. Otherwise,
it is recorded within Interest income or Interest expense.
Dividend income s recorded in Trading revenues or
Investments revenues depending on the business activity

The far value of OTC fmancial mstruments, ncluding
derivative contrects related o firancial instruments  and
commodities, 15 presented in the accompanying balance sheet
on  a nel-by-counterparty  basis.  when  appropriate,
Additionally, the Firm nets the fair value of cash collateral
paid or recewed against the fair value amounts recognized for
net derivative positions executed with the same counterparty
under the same masler netling agreement

Fair Value Chplion

The Firm has elected 1o measure certain ehgible instruments
at fwr valee, including Secunities purchased under agreements
to resell, Loans and lending commitments, equity method
investments and certain other assets, Deposits, Securities sold
under agreements 1o repurchase, Ciber secured financings and
Borrowings

Fair Value Measurement=—[Definition and fHierarchy

Fair value s defined as the price that would be receved 1o sell
an assel or pasd to transfer a lability (e, the “exit price™) in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date,

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the
perspective of a market participant rather than an entily-
specific measure, Therefore, even when market assumptions
are mot readily available, assumptions are set to reflect those
that the Firm believes market participants would use in
pricing the asset or lisbility at the measurement date. Where
the Firm manages & group of financial assets, financial
labilities, and nonfinancial fems accounted for as dervatives
on the basis of its net expesure 10 either market risks or eredil
nsk, the Fim measures the [air valwe of tet group of
financel  instruments  consistently  with  how  market
participants would price the net risk exposure at the
measurement date,

In deternuning far value, the Fim wses varous valdation
approaches and establishes a hicrarchy for inputs uwsed in

measuring fair value that requires the most observable mputs
e used when available,

Ohservable mpuls are mputs that markel participants would
use i pricing the asset or ]:ai:i]:r}' that were developed based
on market data obtained from sources independent of the
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325/415

oOoOooodn



Table of Contents
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Firm. Unobservable inputs are mputs that reflect assumptions
the Firm believes other market participants would we in
pricing the asset or lability that are developed based on the
best information available in the circumstances. The far value
hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the
observability of inputs as follows, with Level 1 being the
highest and Level 3 being the lowest level:

Level 1. Valuaions based on quoted prices im active markels
that the Firm has the ability to access for identical assets or
ligbilities.  Valuation adjustments, block discounts  and
discounts for entity-specific restnictions that would net
transfer to market parbcipants are not applied to Level 1
instruments. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that
are readily and regularly available in an active market,
valuation of these products does not entl a signifant degree
of judgment.

Level 2 Valuations based on one or more quoted prices in
ruarkets that are not active or for which all sigraficant inpuis
are chservable, enther directly or madirectly.

Level 3. Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and
significant to the overall fair value measurement.

The availabality of observable inputs can vary from product 1o
product and i= affected by a wide variety of factors, including
the tvpe of product, whether the product is new and not et
established in the marketplace, the liquidity of markets and
clher chamctenstics particular 1o the product. To the extent
that vahation 15 based on models or mputs that are less
observable or unobservable in the market, the determination
of fur value requires maore judgment, Accordingly, the degree
of judgment exercised by the Firm in determ ining fair value is
greatest for mstruments categonzed in Level 3 of the fair
value hicrarchy.

The Firm conssders prices and inputs thal are curent as of the
mensurement  date, including during  pericds of  market
hsfocation. In periods of market dislocation, the observability
of prices and inputs may ke reduced for many instruments.
Thiz condition could cause an instrument 1o be reclassified
fram Level I to Level 2 or from Level 2 to Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall
into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy. Tn such cases,
the total Fair value amount s disclosed i the level appropriate
for the kowest level input that = significant to the total far
value of the assel or liabality,

Valuation Techmiguex

Many cash instruments and OTC denvative contracts have bid
and ask prices that can be observed in the markeiplace Bid
prices reflect the highess price that a party is willing 1o pay for
an assel. Ask prices represent the lowest price that a party is
willing to-accept for an asset. The Firm carmes positions at the
point within the bad-ask mnge that meets its best estimate of
fair value For offsetting positions in the same financial

Dhecemiber 2022 Farem 10-K
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nstrument, the same price within the bid-ask spread 1= used to
measure both the long and short positions.

Fair value for many cash imstruments and OTC dervvative
contracts i denved using pricing models. Pricing models take
info accowd the confract terms, as well as multiple inpats,
including, where applicable, commedhity prices, equity prices.
interest mafe  yield curves, credi curves, comelanon,
creditworthiness of the counterparty, creditwonthiness of the
Firm, option volatility and currency rates

Where appropreate, valuation adjustments are made 1o secounl
for wanous factors such a5 lhgwdity nsk  (hd-ask
adjustments), credit quality, modél uncertmnty, and
concentration risk and funding n order to armve at fair value.
Adjustments for biqudity risk adjust model-derived mid-
market amounts of Level 2 and Level 3 financial anstruments
for the bid-mid or mid-ask spread required to properly reflect
the exit price of & nisk position. Bid-mid and mid-ask spreads
are marked 1o levels observed in trade activity, broker quotes
or other external third-pary data. Where these spreads are
umohservable for the particular position m guestion, spreads
are denved from observable levels of similar positions

The Firm apphes credit-related valwation adjustments 1o s
Borrowings for which the fair value option was elected and 1o
OTC denvatives. The Firm considers the impact of changes in
its own credit spreads based upon observations of the
secondary bord marketl spreads when measuring the fair value
for Borrowings

For OTC denvatives, the mpact of changes in both the Firm's
amd the counterparty’s credit raling s conssdered when
measuring fair value, In deiermining the expected exposure,
the Firm simulales the distribation of the future exposure o a
counterparty, then applies market-based default probabilities
to the future exposure, leveraging external thind-party CDS
spread data, Where CDS spread data are unavailable for a
specific counterparty, bond market spresds, TS spread data
based on the counterparty”s credit rting or CDS spread data
that reference a comparable counterparty may be utihized The
Firm alse conssders collateral held and legally enfosceable
master nelting agreements that mitigate ils exposure (o cach
counterpany.

Adpstments for model uncertaimty are taken for posttions
whose underlying models are reliant on significant inpuls that
are neither directly nor indirectly observable, hence requaring
relimnce on estabhshed theoretical concepts in their dervation.
These adjustments are derived by making assessments of the
possible degree of vanahility using satistical approaches and
market-based information where possible,

The Firm may apply concentration adjustments to certain of
its OTC derivative portfolios to reflect the additional cost of
closing out a particularly large nisk exposure. Where possible,
these  adjustments  are based on  observable
market miormation, bul m many instances, sigmificant
Judpment 1s required to estimate the costs of closing
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out concentrated nsk exposures due to the lack of hqudity in
the marketplace.

The Firm applies an FVA mn the far value measurements of
OTC uncollateralized or partially collateralized dervatives
and in collateralized denvatives where the terms of the
agreement do not permit the reuse of the collateral receved
In general, FVA reflects a markel funding nsk premivm
inherent 1n the noted denvative mstruments. The methodology
for mensuring FVA leverages the Fimm's existing eredit-
relnted  valuntion adjustment calculstion  methodologies,
which apply to both assets and linbilities

See Note 5 for 4 desenption of valuabon techniques apphed 1o
the major categories of financel instruments measured at fair
value

Assers and Liabilities Measured at Fair Palne on a Non-

Certwin of the Firm's assets and labilities are measured at fair
value on a non-recumrng basis. The Firm mcurs losses or
gains for any adjstments of these assets or habilities to fair
value

For asscts and lmbilites measured at far value en & non-
recurming basis, farr value 5 determined by using vanous
valuation approaches. The same hierarchy for inpuis as
described above, which requires that ohservable inputs be
used when avadlable, 15 used in measunng fair value for these
e

For furiber mivemation on Dinancial assets and liabalities that
are measured a1 fair value en o recurming and non-recurmng
basis, see Note 5,

(OfTsetting of Derivadive Instroments

In connection with its denvative activities. the Firm generally
enlers Mo master netling  agreements  and  collateral
agrecments with 15 counterparties. These agreements provide
the Firm with the right in the event of a defaull by the
counterparty, to net a counterparty’s rights and obligations
under the agreement and 1o ligudate and set off cash
coltateral agamst any net amount owed by the counterparty.
Derivatives with enforceable master netting agreements are
reported net of cash collateral received and posted.

However, in cemmn crcumstances, the Firm may not have
such an agreement in place; the relevant msolvency regime
may not support the enforcesbility of the master netling
agreement or collateral agreement; or the Firm may not have
soupht legal advice w0 support the enforceabality of the
ggreement. In cases where the Firm has not determined an
agreement o be enforceable, the relsted amounts are not
offset (see Mot 7),

The Fim's pehey 15 generally 1o recenve cash andfor
securtics posted as collaseral (with rights of rehypothecation),
irrespective of the enforceability determination regarding the

81
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master netting and collateral agreement. In certain cases, the
Firm may agree for such collweral to be posted 1o a third-
panty custedian wncder a control agreement thal ensbles it 1o
take control of such collateral in the event of a counterpanty
default. The enforceability of the master neiting agrecment is
taken imlo account i the Firm's nsk management practeces
and application of counterparty credit lamits.

For nformaton related to offsetting of denvatives, see Note
-

Hedge Accounting

The Firm applies hedge accounting usmg varous denvative
financeal instruments for the following types of hedges:
hedges of changes in the fair valee of assets and Labilties due
e the misk beng hedged (Gr value hedges), hedges of
variability in forecasted cash flows from oating-rate assels
due 1o contraciually specified interest rates (cash fow hedges)
ard hedges of met investiients i foreign opesations whose
funcuonal currency 15 differemt from the reporting currency of
the Parent Company {net investment hedges). These financial
instruments are incleded within Trading assets—Derivative
and other contracts or Trading liabilities—Derivative and
other contracts i the balance sheet. For hedges where hedge
accounting is being applied, the Firm performs effectiveness
testing and other procedures. The change m the fair value of
the designated portion of the hedging instrument should be
highly correkated, between 80 and 125 percent of the change
in the fair value, cash flows, or carying value (due to
translation gains or losses) of the hedged item attributable to
the risk being hedged, The Firm conssders the impact of
valuation adjustments related to counterpanty credit spreads
ared fs own credat spreads to determine whether they would
catse the hedging relationship 1o be me fectve.

Fair Value Hedges—Interest Rate Risk

The Firm's designted fur value hedges consist of inerest
rate swaps designated sz hedges of chunges i the benchmark
inferest rate of certain ficed rate AFS secuntics and senior
borrowings. The Firm also designates intersst rate swaps as
farr value hedges of changes m the benchmark interest rate of
certan fixed rate deposits. The Fam s permutted 1o hedpe the
full, or part of the contractual term of the hedged instrument.
The Firm uses regression analysis to perform an ongoing
prospective and retrospective assessment of the effectivencss
of these hedging relationships. For qualifying fair value
hedges of benchmark: interest rates, the change i the far
value of the derivative, offset by the change in the farr value
atinbutable 1o the change in the benchmark interest rate risk
of the hedged asset (hability}), is recognized m carnings each
period as a component of Interest income (expense). For AFS
securities, the change in fair value of the hedged item due to
changes other than the risk being hedged will continue 1o be
reported in OCI When o dervative is de-desapnated a3 a
hedge, any basis adjustment remaining on the hedged asset
(liability) iz amortized to Interest income {expense) over the
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remaining life of the asset (lisbiliy) using the effective
interest method

et Lnvestrrent Hedges

The Fim uses forward foreign exchange contracts to manage
a portion of the cumency exposure relating to its net
investments m [oreign opertions. To the extent that the
notional amounts of the hedging instruments equal the portion
of the mvestments being hedged and the underlving exchange
rate of the denvatwe hedging mstrument 15 the same as the
exchange rate between the functional currency of the investee
and the imermediate parent entity”s functional currency, 1 1s
considered to be perfectly effective, with no income statement
recognition. The gain or loss from revaluing hedges of net
investments in foreign operations at the spol mte i reported
within ACCL The forward poants on the hedging mstrum ents
are excluded from hedge effectivencss testing and chanpes in
the fair value of this excluded component are recorded
currently in Interest income.

Cash Flow Hedges—interest Rate Risk

The Firm's designated cash flow hedges comaist of interest
rate derivatives designated as hedges of varability in
forecasted cash Mows from Moating-rate assets due to changes
in the contractually specified interest rates. The Firm uses
regression analysis to perform an ongoing prospective and
retrospective assessment of the effecuveness of these hedging
relntionshaps

The objective of this strategy & to hedge the nzk of changes
in the hedped item’s cash flows attributable to changes n the
contraciually specified mierest rte. For qualifving cash flow
hedges of comractually specified interest rates, charges in the
fair valwe of the denvative are recorded in OCI and
subsequently reclassified 1o eamings in the same periods
when the hedged item affecis camings. 1 ensh flow hedge
weeounting 15 discontimeed, AOCT & released inle earmings
irmmnedistely if the cash Tow of the hedged item is probable of
not occurming, Otherwise the amount in ACCT is released nto
eamings as the forecasted transaction affects carnings

Other Hedges

In zddition to hedges that are designated and qualify for hedge
accounting, the Firm uses dervatives to cconomecally hedge
credin risk assocmied with certain held-for-sale and held-for-
investment corporate keans and lending commitments, and the
relnted gains and losses are reported within Other revenues in
the income statement.

For further information on dervative instruments and hedging
activities, see Mote T,

AFS Investment Securities

AFS securities are reported at fair value in the balance sheet
Interest income, including amortization of premmums and
aceretion of discounts, i3 included in Interest income in the
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income statement. Unrealized gams are recorded in OCE, and
unrealized losses are recorded either in OCT ar in Other
revenues as descnibed below

AFS securities i oan unrealized less position are first
evaluated to determine whether there 1s an intent to sell or it is
more hikely than not the Firm wall be required to sell before
recovery of the amortized cost basis. If so, the amomized cost
basis 15 wniten down to the fair value of the security such that
the entire unrealized |oss 15 recognized in Other revenues, and
any previcusly established ACL is written off.

For all other AFS securities i an unrealized loss position, any
portton of unrealized losses representing a credit loss 1=
recognized in Cther revemses and as an increase to the ACL
for AFS securities, with the remainder of unrealized losses
recognized in OCL A credit loss exests of the Firm does not
expect to recover the amortized cost basis of the security,
When considering whether a credit loss exists, the Fimm
considers relevant information, including:

» guarantees (implicit or explicit) by the U.S. government,

+ the extent to which the fair value has been less than the
amortized cost basis,

= adverse conditiors specifically related 1o the secunty, s
industry or geographic area;,

» changes n the financial condition of the 1ssuer of the
secunity or, in the case of an asset-backed debt security,
changes in the Dnancial condition of the underlying loan
obligers;

+ the payment structure of the debt securnity and the likelihood
of the issuer being able to make payments that morease n
e future;

= fmlure of the =suer of the securfy to make scheduled
interest or principal payments;

» the current rating and any changes to the mating of the
Securly by o raling agency.

1 & eredit boss exasts, the Firm measures the credit loss as the
difference between the present value of cash flows expected
to be collected (discounted at the implicit inferest rate at
acgquigition of the secunty or discounted at the effective vield
for securities thal incorporate changes in  prepayment
assumptions) and the amortized cost basis of the security,
Changes in prepayvment assumptions alone are not considered
to result in & credit loss. When estimating the present value of
expected cash flows, mfoemation  wilized ncludes the
remaming payment terms of the security, prepayvment speeds,
financeal conditon of the ssuer, expected defmilts and the
value of any underlying collateral.

Prosantation of ACL and Provision for Credit Losses

Prowisicen fod
ACL Crngi Losiss

AFS spcurites Contra irvstmiant peturties  Other vanis
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Nonaccrial & ACL Charge-affs an AFS Securities

AFS securities follow the same nonaccrual and write-ofl
puidance as discussed n “Allowance for Credit Losses™
herem

HTM Securifies

HTM securities are reported at amortized cost net of any
ACL, in the balance sheet Refer to "Allowance for Credit
Losses™ herein for guidance on the ACL determination
Interest meome, mcluding amofuzation of premmms and
aceretion of discounts on HTM secunties, 15 meluded

Interest income m the income statement.
Loans

The Fym accounts for loans based on the following
categorics: |oans held for investment; loans held for sale; and
loans al Bair value,

MNemacornal

All loan categories deseribed below foliow the same
nenacerual and write-off guidance as discussed in " Allowance
for Crecht Losses™ herein,

Loans Held for fnvestment

Leans held for investment are reported a1 owstanding
principal adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for
credit losses, any unamortized deferred fees or costs for
originated loans, and any unamortized premiums or discounts
for purchased loans,

Interest fncome. Interest income on performing loans held for
investment i accrued and recognized as interest income at the
contractaal rate of nterest. Purchase price discounts or
premiums, a5 well as net deferred loan [ees of costs, ane
amortized 1o nterest meome over the life of the loan 1o
produce a bevel rate of retun.

Lending Conmmrtmenis,  The Firm records the lability and
related  expense  for the credit  exposure related 1o
commitments to fund loans. For more mformaton regarding
loan commitments, standby letters of credn and financial
pusrantees, see Mote 15,

For more information regardmg allowance for credn losses,

refer to “Allowance for Credit Losses™ herein,
Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are measured s the lower of amortized
cost or fair value, with valuation changes recorded in Orther
reveres. The Firm determines the valustion allowsnce on an
indavadual loan basis, except for residential morigage loans
for which the valuation allowance s determined a1 the kan
prodduct level. Any decreases i fair value below the mital
cammying amount and any recovenies n farr value up o the
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initeal carrymg amount are recorded in Other revenues.
Increases in fair value above initial carying value are nol
recognized.

Intevest income. Interest mcome on loans held for sale 1s
accrued and recopmized based on the confractual rate of
interest. Loan ongination fees or costs and purchase price
dizcounts or premiums are deferred as an adjustment to the
loan's cost basis until the related loan is sold and, as such, are
included in the periodic determination of the lower of cost or
fair value adjusiments and the gain or loss recognized at the
ume of sale.

Lending Commitments, Commiments io fund morigage loans
held for sale are derivatives and are reporied in Trading assets
or Trading linbilities in the balance sheet with an offset to
Trading revenues m the income statement,

For commitments to fund non-morigage loans, the Fim
fecards the liabality and related expense for the Fur value
expostre below cost of such commitments in Other labalities
and accrued expenses in the balance sheet with an offset to
Other revenues i the income statement

Because loans and lending commitments held for sale are
recogrized at the lower of cost or fair value, the allowance for
credit losses and charge-off policies do not apply to these
loans.

Loans ot Fair Value

Loans for which the fair valee option 15 elected are camed at
fair valwe, with changes in fair value recogmized in eamings,
For funber information on loans camried a fair value and
classified as Trading assets and Trading linbilities, see Nose 5

Lending Commitments.  The Firm records the lizhility and
related expense for the fair value exposure related 10
commiments to [und loans that will be measured at fair
vahse. The liabality 15 recorded m Trading labiities m the
balance sheet, and the expense is recorded in Trading
FEVENLES IR the il'bmﬂ'tt statement,

Because such loans and lending commitments are reponted at
fair value, the allowsnce for credit kosses and charpe-ofl
policies do not apply to these loana

For further information an loans, see Note 10,

Allowance for Credit Losses

The ACL for financial instruments menared ot amorized
cost and certain off-balance sheet exposures (e, HF1 loans
and lending commitments, HTM securities, customer and
other recervables and certain puarantees} represents an
estimate of expected credit losses over the entire life of the
financial instrument.

Factors conswdered by management when determiming the
ACL include payment stafus, fair value of collateral and
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expected payments of pnncipal and interest, as well as
internal or extermal information relating to past evens, current
conditions, and reasommble and supportable forecasts. The
Firm uses three forecasts that include assumptions abow
certain macroeconomee variables, including, but not limited
to, LIS gross domestic product (“GIWP"), equity market
indaces and unemployment rates, as well as commercial real
estate and home prce mdices. At the conclusion of the Firm's
reasonable and supponable forecast period of 13 quarters,
there 15 a gradual reversion back to historical averages.

The ACL 15 measured on a collective basis when similar nisk
characteristics exist for multiple mstruments, considering all
avialable information relevant to assesiing the collectabality
of cash flows. Generally, the Firm applies a probability of
default/loss given defaull model for instruments that are
collectively assessed, under which the ACL 15 calculated as
the product of probability of default, loss given default and
exposure at default These parameters are forecast for cach
collective group of assets using 3 scenano-based  statistical
mexlel

IF the instrument does not share simnlar nsk characteristics
with other instruments, including when it is probable that the
Fum will be ummble to collect the full pavenent of principal
and interest on the instrument when due, the ACL is measured
on an indwidual basiz The Fim generally applies a
discounted cash flow method for instruments that  are
indav idually assessed

The Furm may also cleet to use an approach that considers the
fair value of the collateral when mensuring the ACL if the
loan 15 collateral dependent (Le, repayment of the loan is
expected 10 be provided substantially by the sale or opertion
of the underlving collateral and the borrower is experiencing
financial difficuliy).

Addivonally, the Firm can elest o use an approach 1o
measure the ACL that consaders the fair value of collateral
where the bomower 5 required 1o, and reasonably expected to,
contmunlly adpest and replenish the amount of collateral
securing the nstrument to reflect changes in the Tair value of
such collateral. The Firm has elected to wse this approach for
certain  securities-based loans, margin  leans, securitics
purchased under agreements to resell and securities borrowed

Credit quality mdicators considered in developing the ACL
inclade:

* Corporate loans, secured lending facilities, commerncial real
estate loans and securiies. and other leans: Internal risk
ratings developed by the CRM that are refreshed s least
annually, and more frequently as necessary. These ratings
generally correapond to external ratings published by S&F.
The Firm also considers transaction structure, including
type of collateral, coltaternl terms and position of the
obligation within the capital structure. In addstion, for
commercial real estate, the Firm considers property type
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and location, net operating income and LTV ratios, among
other factors, s well as commercial real estate price and
credit spread indices and capatalisstion rates

+ Residenual real estate loans: Loan origination Fair saac
Corporation ("FICO™) credit scores as determined by
independent credit agencies in the U S, and LTV mtios.

= Emploves loans: Emplovasent status, which includes those
currently emploved by the Frrm and for which the Firm can
deduct any unpaid amounts due to it through certain
compensation amangements; and those no longer employed
by the Firm where sich arrangements are o longer
applicable.

Cualitative and emvironmental factors such as coonomic and
businzss conditions, the nature and volume of the portfolio,
andd lendmg terms and the volume and seventy of past due
loans are also considered n the ACL caleulations.

Presantation of ACL and Provision for Cradit Losses
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Troubled Dby Restructurings

The Firm may modify the terms of certain loans for cconomic
or legal reasons refated 1o a borrower’s financial difficulties
by granting one or mere concesstons that the Firm would not
otherwise consider. Such modificstions are accounted for and
reported as troubled debt restructurings (TR, A loan that
has been modified in a TDRE 13 generally considered 1o be
ampawed and s evahemted andivedually. TDRs are abso
generally classified as nonacerual and may be retumed to
accrual status only after the Firm expects repayment of the
remaining contractual principal and interest and there is
sustame d repayment performansce for a reasonable perod.

Nonacerual

The Firm places financial instruments on nonacerual status af
principal or interest s nod expected when contractually due or
15 past due for a pericd of 90 days or more unless the
obligation is well-secued and 12 in the process of collection,

For any mstrument placed on nonaccrual stotus, the Firm
reverses any unpaid mterest accrued with an offsettng
reduction to Inferest meome, Prmcspal and interest payments
received on nonaceneal instruments are applied to principal if
there 15 doubt regarding the ultimate collecubility of
principal. If collection of the principal & not in doubt, inlerest
ineome is realized on a cash basis. 1f the instrument is brought
current and neither principal nor mterest collection 15 in
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doubt, instruments can generally retum to acerual status, and
interest income can be recognized

ACL Charge-affs

The principal balance of a financial instrument is chasged off
in the period it deemed uncollectible, resulting in oo
reduction in the ACL and in the balance of the financial
instrument in the balance sheet Accrued imerest recevable
balances that are separately recorded from the related
financial instruments are charged off against Interest income
when the related financial instrument s placed on nonscerial
status. Accordingly, the Firm elected not to measure an ACL
for accrued miterest recervables.

Transfers of Fimancial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when
the Firm has relinquished control over the transferred assets.
Amy related gain or Joss on sale is recorded in Met revenues
Translers that are not accounted for as sales are teated as
collateralized financings. Securities bormowed or purchased
umder agreements 1o resell and secunitses loaned or sold under
agreements  fo repurchase are treated a3 collperalized
fimancings (see Note 99,

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (Mreverse
repurchase  agreements™)  and  Securities  sold  under
agreements 1o repurchase  (“repurchase  agreemenis’),
including repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements-to-
maturily, are carried in the balance sheet a1 the amoum of
cash paid or recewed plus scerued interest except for certain
reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements fior which the
Firm has elected the fair value option (zee MNote &) Where
appropriate, repamchase agreements and reverse repurchase
agreements with the same counterparty are reported on a net
basis. Secunties borrowed and secuntics loaned are recorded
at the amount of cash collateral advanced or received.

In imstances where the Fum 15 the lender m sscurmties-for-
securities tramsactions and is permitted 10 sell or repledge
these securities, the fair valee of the collsteral received is
reported in Trading assets, wmd the related obligation 1o return
the collateral s reponted in Trading habalities in the balance
sheet. Securities-for-securities transactions where the Firm 1=
the borrower are not inchided in the balance sheet

In order to manage credit exposure ansing from  these
transactions, in approgriate circumstances, the Firm enters
iAo master netting agreements and collateral agreements with
its counterparties. These agreements provede the Firm with
the right, in the event of a default by the counterparty, (o neta
counterparty’s rights and obligations under the agreement and
1o hiquidste and =et off collateral held by the Form against the
net amount owed by the counterparty.

The Firm's pelicy is generally 1o take possession of securities
purchased or borrowed in connection with reverse repurchase
agreements and secunties borrowed transactions, respectively,
and to receive cash andior secunties delivered wnder
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repurchase agreements or securitics loaned transactions (with
rights of rehypothecation).

For information related to offsetting of certam collateralized
transactions, see Note .

Premises, Equipment and Capitalized Software Costs

Premises, equipment and capitalized software costs consist of
buildings, leasehold  improvements,  fumiture,  fixfures,
computer and communications equipment, power generation
assets and capitalized software (extemally purchased and
developed for imternal use) Premises, equipment and
capitalized software costs are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization and are included in Other assets
in the balance sheel Depreciation and amorlzalion are
proviced by the stragght-line method over the estimated useful
Iife of the asset

Estimated Usaful Life of Assats
i guan Esdmamd Lsaid Lifs
Luassbold improesmena—guildeg et of lease 10 25
Lugadrale mmproraarman im0 ke ey of bedam 1o 15
Furtisirn snd Tres T
Computer and ooemmUnCaions soupme Jtod
Piporir gararadon edes B o 20
Capiialras ol are ooy 2110

Premises, equupment and capitalized software cosls are Lested
for impairment whenever events of changes in circumsiances
sugpest thal an asset's carrying value may not be fully
recoverahle,

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Firm tests goadwi!l and indefinite-lived intangible assets
for mpament on an anneal basis and on an imenm basis
when cenain events of ciraumstances exisl, The Firm tests
goodwill for impaiment a1 the reporting unit level, which is
generally at the level of or one level below the asset’s baginess
segment. The Firm tests indefinite-lived intangible assets for
ampairment at the aggregate level of management contracts
For both the anmual and interim tests, the Finm has the option
to either () perform a quantitative impaimment test or (i) first
perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is
more likely than not that the far value 5 less than its camying
amount, n which case the quantilative test would be
performed.

When performing s quantitative imparment test, the Firm
compares the far value with the camying amount. 1 the fmr
value is less than the carrying amount, the impairment boss is
equal to the excess of the carrving value over the fair value,
lirnited to the carrying amount

The estimated fmr values are derved based on valmbion
techmques the Firm believes market parbicipants would use.
The estimated farr valees are generafly determined by
uliimng &  discounted ecash  flow  methodology  or
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methodologies that incorporate price-to-book and price-to-
eamings muluples of certain compamable companies for
poadwill mpairment testing.

Intangibde assets with a finite life are amortized over their
estimated usefiul hife and are reviewed for impairment on an
ntenim  basis when  mmpaiment  mdicators are  present.
Impasrment losses are recorded within Other expenses in the
income statement.

Earnings per Common Share

Basic EFS is computed by dividing earnings availsble 1o
Morgan Stanley common shareholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the period
Earmings availabbe to Morgan Stanley common shareholders
represents netl income apphcable 1o Morgan Stanley reduced
by preferred stock dividends. Commen shares outstanding
include common stock and vested RSUs where recipients
have satisfied the relevant vesting terms. Dilned EPS reflects
the assumed comversion of all dilutive securities,

Share-based awards that pay dividend equivalenis subject 1o
vesting are inchuded in diluted shares outstanding (if difutive)
usider the treasury stock methad

The Firm has granted PSUs that vest and conven 1o shares of
common stock only 1f predetermined performance and market
geals are stsfied. Since the isuwance of the shares is
contingent upon the satsfaction of cenmn conditions, the
P5Us are included in diluted EPS based on the number of
shares (if any) that would be issuable if the reporting date was
the end of the performance period.

For further nformaton on diluted earnmngs (loss) per
common share, see Note 18 to the financial statements.

Deferred Com pensation
Stock-Hased Compensation

The Firm measures compensation expense for stock-based
awards at fair value The Firm determines the fair valwe of
ESUs (includmg PSUs wih non-marker  performance
conditions) based on the grant-date fair value of s common
stock, measured as the volume-weighted average price on the
date of grant (“VWAPRT), The fair value of ESUs not entitled
1o dividends until conversion 1s measured at VIWAP reduced
by the present value of dividends expected 1o be pard on the
underlying shares prior to scheduled conversion date. FSUs
that contain market-based conditions are valued using a
Monte Carlo valuation model.

Compensation expense s recognized over the vesting pencd
relevant to each separately vesting portion of the award
Compensation  expense  for  awards with  performance
conditions 13 recognized based on the probable owlcome of the
perfommance condition at each reporting date. Compensation
expense for awards with market-based condiions 1=
recognized imespective of the probability of the market
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condition bemng achieved and 5 not reversed if the market
cendition is not met. The Firm accounts for forfeires as they
oG

Stock-based. awards generally comtam  clawback  and
cancellation provisions. Certain awards provide the Fim
diseretion 1o claw back or cancel all or a portion of the award
under specified circumstances. Compensation expense for
theose awards 15 adjusted for changes in the fair value of the
Firm's common stock or the relevant model valuation, as
appropriate, until conversion, exercise or expiraion The Firm
also operates an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPF)
which allows U5 employees to purchase shares of the Firm
at a discount.

Employee Stock Trusis

In connection with certam stock-based compenzation plans,
the Firm has established employee stock tnests to provide, at
its diserenion. commen sock voling rights to certam RSLU
holders. Following the grant of an RS award, when a stock
frust 1s utilized, the Firm contributes shares (o be held in the
stock trust until the RSUs convert to common shares. The
assets of the employvee stock trusts are consolidated with thoas
of the Firm and are generally accounted for in & manner
similar 1o treasury stock, where the shares of common stock
outstanding reported i Common stock 1ssued 1o emplovee
stock trusts are offset by an equal amount reporied in
Emploves stock trusts in the balance sheet

The Fam uscs the grant-date far value of stock-based
compensation as the basis for recording the movement of the
assels (o or from the emplovee stock trusts. Changes in the
fair value are nol recognized ms the Fuem's siock-based
compensation niust be settled by delivery of a fixed mumber
of shares of the Firm's commeon stock.

Deferred Cash-Based Compensation

Compensation experse for deferred cash-based compensation
awards 15 calculated based on the notional value of the award
pranted, adjusted for changes in the far value of the
referenced investments that emplovees select. Compensition
expense 15 recognuzed over the vesting persod rebevant 1o each
separately vesting portion of defermed awards.

The Firm invests directly, as a principal, in fnancial
instruments and other vestments 10 ecomomically hedge
certain of its oblgations under s deferred cash-hased
compensation plans. Changes in the value of such investments
are recorded in Trading revenues and Investments revemses,
Although changes in compensation expense resulting from
changes in the fair value of the referenced investments will
generally be offset by changes in the fair vahe of investments
made by the Firm, there i typically a timing difference
between the immedmnte recoprition of gains and losses on the
Firm’s investments and the deferred recogmition of the related
compensation expense over the vesting period.
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Retirement-Fligible Employee Compensafion

For vear-erd stock-based awards and deferred cash-based
compensation awards anticipated to be granted to retirement-
eligible emplovees under award terms that do not contam a
future service requirement, the Firm accrues the estimated
cost of the awards over the cowrse of the calendar year
preceding the grant date, which reflects the period over which
the compensation 15 camed.

Carried Interest Compensation

The Firm generally recognizes compensation expense for any
portion of camed interest (both realized and unrealized) that
15 allocated o employvees, For information on performance-
based fees in the form of carried inerest, which are directly
related 1o camed merest compensation, se¢ “Revenue
Becognition—Carmied Interest” herein.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and habiliges are recorded based upon the
temporary differences between the financial siatement and
income tax bases of assets and liabilities using currently
enacted tax rates in effect for the vear in which the differences
are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on
deferred tax assets and liabilities 1s recognized 1n income ax
expense (benelit) in the pertod that includes the enactment
date. Such effects are recorded m Proviston for income taxes
regardless of where deferred xes were orginally recorded

The Fum recognizes net deferred tax assets to the extent that
it believes these assets are more likely than not o be realized.
In making such @ determination, the Fim considers all
available positive and megative evidence, meluding uture
reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, progected
future taxable income, tax planming strategies and resulis of
recent operations. When performing the assessment, the Firm
considers all types of deferred tax assets in combanation with
each other, regardless of the ongm of the underlying
temporary difference. If a deferred tax asset 15 determined 10
be unsealizable, a valuation allowance is established, IT the
Furm subsequently determines that it would be able to realize
deferred tax assets in excess of their net recorded amount, it
would make an adjustment 1o the deferred tax asset valuation
allowance, which would reduce the provision for income
Lioes.

The Firm recognizes tax expense associted with Global
Intangible Low-Taxed Income as it is incurred as part of the
eurrent income taces to be paid or refunded for the current
peeriod

Uncertain tax positions are recorded on the bases of a two-step
process, whereby (1) the Firm determanes whether it 15 more
likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained on the
basis of the technical merits of the position and (it} for those
tax postions that meet this threshold, the Firm recogmizes the
largest amount of tax benefit that is more Iikely tham not to be
realized upon ultimate setilement with the relsted tax
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authority. Interest and penalties related to unrecopnized tax
benelits are recognized as & component of the provision for
o e Lxes

Foreign Currencies

Assets and Labilines of operations with non-US, dollar
functional currencies are manslated at vearend rates of
exchange, Gains or losses resulting from transtating foreign
currency financial statements, net of hedge gains or losses and
related tax effects, are reflected in AOCH in the balance sheet,
Gains of losses resultng from remessurement of foréign
currency ransactions are imcluded in net meome. and amounts
recogrized m the Income statement are translated a1 the rate
of exchange on the respective date of recognition for each
amount,

Accounting Update Adopted in 2022

Reference Rate Reform

The Fum has adopted the Reference Rate Reform accounting
update, which extends the period of tme entities can utilize
the reference rate reform reliel pudance from December 31,
2022 to December 31, 2024, The reliel provides optional
expedients and exceptions for applving generally accepied
accounting principles to contracts, hedging relationships and
other transactions that reference LIBOR or other interest rate
benchmarks for which the referenced rate is expected to be
diseontinied or replaced. The Firm s applving the accounting
relief as relevant contract and hedge sccounting relationship
modifications are made during the course of the reference rate
reform trarsition peried. There was no impact (o the Firm's
financial statem enis upon issuance of this accounting standard
update

Accounting Updates Adopted in 2020
Financial Tnstrivments—redis Losves

The Firm has adopted the Fimancial Instruments—Credit
Losses accounting update.

This accoumting update impacted the impamient model for
certain  financial assets measured ol smortized cost by
requiring & CECL methodology to estimate expected credit
losaes over the entire life of the Nnancea) asset, recorded at
ingeplicn o purchase, CECL repliced the incurred loss model
previously applicable 1o loans held for mvestment, HTM
securitices and other receivables carmned at amortized cost, such

as employee loans.

The update also eliminated the concept of other-than-
femporary impairment for AFS securities and instead requires
imparments on AFS securities o be recognized in earmnings
through an allowance when the fur valug s kess than
amortized eost and o credn loss exists, and through a
permanent reduction of the amomzed cost basis when the
securities are expected to be sold before recovery of
amortized cost.

Diecember 2022 Farm 10-K
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At tramsition on January 1, 2020, the adoption of this
secounting standard resulied in an increase in the allowance
for credin losses of 5131 mullion with @ coresponding
reduction in Retmned eamings of $100 malhion, et of wx
The adoption impact was peimanly atinbutable to a
5124 million increase in the allowance for credit losses on
emploves loans,

3. Acquisitions

Acguisition of Eaton Vance

COn March 1, 2021, the Firm completed the scquisition of
1ifs of Baton Vance in a stock and cash transaction, which
increased  the scale and  breadth of the Investment
Management business segment Towl consideration for the
transaction was approximately 387 billion, which consisted
of the $5.3 billion fair value of 9 million commeon shares
issued from Common stock held in treasury and cash of
approximately 53 4 hillion

Upon acquisition, the assels and liabilities of Eaton Vance
were adjusted 1o their respective fuir vahees as of the closing
date of the wansacuon, inchuding the wdentifiable miangible
assets acquired. In addition, the excess of the purchase price
over the fair value of the net assets acquired was recorded as
goodwill. The fair value estimates wsed i valuing certain
scquired assets and labilities are based, in pant, en inputs that
are wobservable. For imangible assets, these included, bul
are mot limited to, forccasted future cash flows, reveme
growth rales, antrition rates and discount rates,

Eaton Vance Purchase Price Allocation

L5
Margh 1,

T lnsne 2R
AsEnts
Cash ara cash scubralsnts - &4
Trading ansets o fair vale

Lowrs ard kending comtnemmants 445

rvesmenis Fo]

Copeorato gr o e el B2
Cusanar ahd ol recaalias 3
Goowill S0
Intengile miaais JEE
b ansmis L]
Teisl esssis g 11 550
Liabisxjes
Ora ascuiing finarcitgi 5 D
ke linhiides ard scorusd avparses 2947
Bomowings 11
Total liabllites & Ty
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Acquired Intangible Assets
Weighind Al
Ararags Lifa March 1,
i {vuars) o
Mo amonizebla
Managemen cortrecis Iraeines E ] PR
Amonizebla
Custoumes nilatiorahige 1] F ]
Traderanss Fr) w2
Wanagame docirch: 18 160
Todal acquired intergibles assets £ 3,065

Eaton Vange Net revenues of approximately 51813 million
ard MNet income of approximately 5413 million were included
n the Firm's consolidated results for the penod from March
1, 2021 to December 31, 2021

Stanley and Eaton Vance Proforma Combined

Financial Information (Unauditad)

§ iy malics ey | i)

Mt e 5 BOG1 % 0,371
M incoma 15,220 10,7

The proforma financra] information presented i the previows
iable was computed by combiming the historical fnancial
information of the Firm and Eaton Vance along with the
effects of the acquisition method of accounting for business
combinations as though the companies were combined on
Jamuary 1, 2020,

The proforma information does not reflect the polential
benehits of cost and funding svrergies, opponunities o cam
additional revenues or other factors, and, therefore, does not
represent what the actual Met revenues and Met income would
have been had the companies actually been combined as of
this date.

Acquisition of E*TRADE

Omn October 2, 2020, the Firm completed the sequisition of
108P% of E*TRADE m a stock-for-stock transaction, which
increased the scale and breadth of the Wealth Management
business segment. Total constderation for the transaction was
approximately 3119 billion, which principally consasted of
the 511 ballion farr value of 233 mallion common shares
ssued from Common stock held in treasury, a1 an exchange
ratio of 10432 per E*TRADE common share. In addition, the
Farm issued Series M and Sernes M preferred shares with a fuir
value of approximately $0.7 billion in exchange for
E*TEADE"s existing preferred stock.

Upon acquisition, the assets and labalities of E*TRADE were
adjusted to their respective far valwes as of the closing date of
the transaction, inclshng the whenufiable imangible asses
acquired. In additton, the excess of the purchase price over the
fair value of the net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill.
The fair value estimates wsed in valuing ceriain acquired
assels and lmbalities are based, in part, on mputs tat are
unobservable. For mtangible assets, these include, but are not
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Iimited to, forecasted future cash flows, revenue growth rates, 4. Cash and Cash Equivalents
customer tirition rates and discount rtes
At A
E*TRADE Purchaze Prica Allocstian Decambar 31, bw-m;kﬂ.
Al L i N SRy
Crzinber 2. Crankh and die from b & o408 2 LR
Funeom 2D risrust bassing depais whh barks 122318 He
i Total Cash and cash equivalents $ 128,127 3 [
Cash arsd cast: squivalents 3 3,607 P E—— r 3LAE0 5 nEaT
Trasding aicets & fair velue - A
:‘::n'::'* S ST "lﬂ For additional information on cash and cash equivalents,
; : : s
g s oL inshuding restricted cash, see Note 2.
Sacuritis hommwesd Wi r
Cusyomad and ofel cavatdes 12267 5. Fair Values
v
ﬂ:ﬂ:‘unﬂ: m aks Recurring Fair Value Measuremenis
Gaoadwil
, 420 pssats and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring
Intmnpitla Eoaats kB, Basis
ber asswis £.351
Total nanta 3 rBAaT A Eoarber 1, St~
Liskiiies Anmma: Levol1  Level2 Lewedd Netling' Tousl
o . P 48,050 lnfhﬂfllt vahun
Sacuritien kugned 188 "‘::FT:“"**
Cuwoner and e payatieg 1o.48d ey Aaades 18462 5 42260 5§ 7§ — §EO74Z
b labiiias ard oy axparsss 1688 Dtbar sormaipn
i 1888 wions Med 4 e 29,880
Total lisbilites 5 54,407 ; y —
Flme ard nauricipal
1 homguired iednigdie ashls aé pemaily compotad of 528 baon redind i Iacuetiny R — e
Latiznahips with & weighied. ivarge e of 17 pRars HABS = 1T A% - 2180
. . . . Loans and Isncirg
E*TRADE's results were included in the Fim ‘s corsolidated commiTen — B30 w7 - B
results for the period from October 2, 300 1o December 31, Corparaie mod o — maet 2 — s
220, For this pertod, Net revenues were approximately S600 Comocne scutin? SrME  ieD e — ;e
million, and Met income (loss) was not materal. Drarvarive mnd odhes conracs:
Iasrns e 4451 166,392 7 - 7390
Morgan Stanley and E*TRADE Proforma Combined Financial Cradk — At a4 — st
Infermation (Unaudied) Frsion wochinpt S i - o T
Eouity arm daam AGL — 43388
# 1 meem M0 2019 G e oo BE0D  HA52 3701 = Ma62
Mat mvmnus 3 0203 3 44,100 Mating’ (D818 [148,821) (1,078 (S&TTT] (X35, 304)
et ir=oma 10480 (XY Tocal dartvadve s
ek b irEss 30 KA A (BaTTT) A4 M2
The proforma financial information presented in the previous Imvas e sa2 " w = an
p _ i + . . Privysizal comsmadiess - 2,318 - -— 2,378
lﬂhlﬂ “M “J]'l'lp'“hd b} ';"Jm blw lh'ﬂ hlmﬁ‘-u-l ﬁmmul -_'E;;‘ —— _-;;;. !"'ﬁ_ "1'""&_;' R —— '-rr'?-_" —— _i-
information of the Firm and E¥TRADE along with the effects ik L I LA RSN SRl
[ . : BV LT Sl —
of the acqusmtion method of accounting for  business AFE AR8E0 30,300 35 — T
combmations as though the mmpﬁnicﬁ were combined on Smmwwh_:fm

Januagy 1, 2019,

The proforma information does ot reflect the potential
benefts of cost and funding synerpies, opportunities 1o cam
additional revenues or other factors, and, therefore, does ot
represent what the actual Met revenues and MNet income weaald
have been hod the compames actmlly been combined as of
this date.

- B - - i

annuts at falr vabuw 5215732 207,03 S10.08S ${54.777) $380.168
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Valuation Technigues for Assets and Liabilities Measured
at Fair Value ona Recurring Basis

LS, Treasury and Agency Securities
LS. Treasury Securities
Valuation Technique.

Fanr value 15 determaned using quoted market pnces,

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

Level 1—as mputs are observable and in an active market

LS, Agercy Securities
Valwtion Techniques:

Nen-callable agency-issued debt secusities are generally
valued using quoted market prices, and calleble apency-
wsued debt securities are valued by benchmarking model-
derived prices to quoted market prices and trade data for
comparable instruments.

The fwr value of agency morigage pass-through pool
securities 15 model-driven based on spreads of comparable
to-be-anhounced securities

CMOs are genemally valued using quoted market prices
and trade data adjusted by subsequent changes in related
indsces for comparable mstruments.

Valuation Hicrarchy Classification;

Level 1—onthe-ran agency isswed debt secunities if
actwvely traded and mputs are observable

Level 2—all other agency 1ssued debt secunlies, agency
morigage pass-through pool secunties and CMOs f
actively traded and imputs are obhservable

Level 3—in instances where the trading activity is limited
O rputs are unobservable

Other Sovereign Government Obligations
Valuwuon Techniques:

Far value 15 determmined using quoted prices in active
markets when available. When not available, quoted prices
in less sctive markets are used In the absence of position-
specific quoted prices, fair value may be determined
throash benchmarking from comparable instruments.

Vahumton Hierarchy Classification:

Level 1—if actively traded and inputs are observahle

Level 2—if the market 15 less actwe or prces are
dispersed

Level 3—in instances where the prices are unobservable

State amd Municipal Securities
Vahation Technigques:

Farr value = determined using recently  executed
transactions, markel price quolalions of pricmg models
that factor in, where applicable, interest rates, bond or
DS spreads, adjusted for any basis difference between
cash and denivative instruments.

Vahation Hierarchy Classifieation:

Level 2—if wvalue based on observable market data
supported by market liquidity for comparable instruments
Level 3—in nstnces where market data are not
observable or supported by market hguidity

al

Morgan Stanley

MABS
WValuarion Techniques:

Mortgage- and asset-backed securities may be valued
based on price or spread dma obtained from observed
transactions of independent extermal parties such as
vendors or brokers,

When pesition-specific external price data are nol
ohservable, the far value determination may require
benchmarking  to  comparable mstruments, and’or
analyzing expected credit losses, default and recovery
rates, andiar applying discounted cash fow technigues.
When evaluating the comparable instruments for wse in the
valuation of each secunly, secumty collsterl-specaific
attribwtes, including payment prionty, credit enhancement
levels, type of collateral, delinquency rates and lboss
severty, are considered. In addition, for RMBS borowers,
FICCr scores and the level of documentation for the loan
are considered

Market standard cash flow models may be utilized to
model the specific collateral composition and cash fow
structure of each transaction. Key inputs 1o these models
are market spreads, forecasted credit losses, and defauht
and prepayment rates for cach asset category

Valustion levels of EMBS and CMBES indices are used as
mn additona] data point for benchmarking purposes or 1o
price outright index positions.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

Level Z—if valie based on observable market data
supported by market hquidity for comparable mstruments
Level 3—if external prices or sigruficant spread inpats are
unchservable or not supported by market Liquidity or 1f the
comparabality assessment involves significant subjectivity
related  to property  tvpe  differences. cash  flows,
performance or other inpuls

Loans and Lending Commitments
Valuatzon Technigues,

Faar vahie of corporate leans is determined using recently
execuled transactions, market price quotations (where
chservablel, implied yields from comparable debt, market
obazrvable CDS spread levels obtained from independent
extermal parties adjusted for any basis difference between
cash and denvalive mstruments, akong with proprictany
valuation models and default recovery analysis where such
transactions and gquotations are unchservable,

Faar value of contingent corpomate lending commitments is
determined by using executed transactions on comparable
loans and the antwipated market price based on pricing
indications from syndicate hanks and customers. The
valuatson of loans and lending commitments also takes
into account fee mcome that is considered an attnbute of
the contract

Farr value of mortgage loans 15 determined using
ohzervable prices based on transactional data or third-party
pricing for comparable instruments, when available

Where positton-specific external prices are not observable,
fair value s estmated based on benchmarking 1o preces
and rates observed in the prmary market for similar loan
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or borrower types or based on the present value of Each asset-backed CDO  posttion i3 evaluated
expecied future cash flows using the Firm's best available independently  taking  into  considerntion  available
estimates of the kev sssumptions, including forecasted comparable  market  Jevels, underlying  collaeral

creshit bosses, prepayment rates, forward yield curves and
descount rates commensurate with the nsks involved or a
methadology that utilizes the capital struciure and eredit
spresds of recent comparable securitizalion ansacuons
Farr value of equity margin leans s determined by
discounting future mterest cash flows, net of potential
losses resulting from large downward price movements of
the underlving margin loan collateral. The potential losses
are modeled wsng the margin ban mie, which 1s
calibrated from market observable CDS spreads, imiphed
debt yields or volatility metrics of the loan collateral
Valuation Hierarchy Classification,
* Level 2—if value based on observable market daw
supported by market hgusdity for comparable instruments
* Level 3—in instances where prices or significant spread
inputs are unchservable or not supported by market
liquedity or if the comparability assessment mvolves
significant subjectivity

Corporate and Ciher Debi
Corparale Bods

Valumtion Technigues:

* Far walue = determmed using recently  executed
transaclions, market price quotations, bond spreads and
CDS spreads obtnined from ndependent external parties,
such as vendors and brokers, adjusied for any basis
difference between cash and denvative instruments,

The spread data used are for the same matunty as the
bond. If the spread data do not reference the tssuer, then
data that reference comparable issuers are used When
postion-specific extemal price data are not ohservable,

fair value 15 determined based on either benchmarking 1o
comparable instruments or cash flow models with vield
curves, bond or single-name CDS spreads and recovery
rates o bess given defiult as significant inputs

Vahation Hierarchy Classilication:

* Level 2—if value based on ohservable market data for

comparable instruments

+ Level 3—in instances where prices or significant spread

nputs are unobservable or if the comparabality assessment
mvolves significant subjectivity
Chs

Valuation Techniques:

* The Fim helds cash CDOs that typecally reference a
tranche of an underlying synthetic portfolie of single-rame
DS spreads collateralized by comporate honds (C1N) or
cash portfolio of ABS/loans (“asset-backed CDOs™),
Credit cormelation, o primary input used to determine the
fair value of CLNs, 15 usually unobservable and derved
using a benchmarking techmique. Cther model inputs such
as credit spreads, including collateral spreads and interest
rates, are Wwpically observable
Asset-backed CDOs are valwed based on an evaluation of
the markel and mode]l input parameters sourced from
comparable instruments as indicated by market activity.

Dhecemiber 2022 Farem 10K

performance and pricing, deal structures and higquadity.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification®

* Level 2—when either comparable markel transactions are
observable or credit correlation anput i3 msignifieant

* Level 3—when either comparable markel transactions are
unchservable or the credit comelation mput is significant

Equity Confracts with Financing Feahwes
Valustion Techmgues:

» Farr valwe of cerlam equiy contracts, which are not
classified as OTC denvatives because they do not meel the
net  investment criteria, s determined by discounting
futire interest cash fows, inclusive of the estimated value
of the embedded optionality, The valwtion uses the same
denvative pricing models and valuation techniques as
described under “OTC Derwvative Contracts” herein,

Valuation Hierarchy Classification

* Level 2—when the contract is valued wusing observable
mputs of where the wobservable nput is not deemed
signaficant

* Level 3—when the contract is valeed wsing an
uncbservable input that 13 deemed significant

Corporate Eguitics
Valuation Techniques:
* Exchange-traded equity secunties are generally valued
based on quoted prices from the exchange.
Unbisted equity securities are generally valued based on an
assessment of ecach secunity, considering rounds of
financing and third-party transactions, discounted cash
flow analyses and market-based information, including
comparable transactions, trading multiples and changes in
market outlook, among other factors
Listed fund units are generally marked to the exchanpe-
traded price IF sctvely traded, or to NAY if net. Unlisted
furnd wnils are generally marked o NAV
Waluataon Heerarchy Classification:
* Level 1—actively traded exchange-traded sccunties and
fund wmits
* Level 2—if not actively traded, inputs are observahle or if
undergomng & recent MEA event or corporate action
+ Level 3—f not actively wraded, mputs are unchservable or
if undergoing an aged MEA event or corporate action

Derivative and Other Contracis
Exchange-Traded Dermvative Conlracis

Valuation Techniques:

* Exchange-traded dermvatives that are actively traded are
varlued based on quoted prices rom the exchangs.

» Exchamgre-traded denvatives thal are not actively traded
are valued using the same techniques as those applied 1o
OTC derivatives as noted below,

Waluation Heerarchy Classification:

* Level 1—when actively waded

* Level 2—when not actively traded
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QT Dervative Coniracts
Valuation Techniques:

OTC dervative contracts mclude forwand, swap and
option  contracts related to  interest rates, foreign
currencies, credit standing of reference entities, equity
prices of commodity prices,

Drepending on the product and the terms of the transsetion,
the fair value of OTC derivative products can be modeled
using & series of techniques, meluding closed-form
analytic formulas, such as the Black-Scholes option-
pricing  model, simulstion models of a combination
thereal, Many pneng models do not entaill matenal
subjectivity as the methodologies emploved do naot
necessitnte significant judgment since model inpuls may
be chserved from actively quoted markets, as is the case
for genenic interest rale Swaps, many egquuiy, commodity
and foreign currency oplion contracts, and certain COS. In
the case of more cstablhed derivative products, the
pricing models used by the Firm are widely accepted by
the financial services industry,

More complex OTC denvative products are typically less
ligued and reguire more judgment in the implementation of
the valuation techmique since direct trading actvity of
quotes gre uncheervable. This includes certain tvpes of
nterest rte denvatives with both volatihiy and correletion
exposure, equity, commodity or foreign cuwmency
derrvatives that are either longer-dated or include exposure
to multiple underlyings, and credit derivatives, meluding
CDS on ceran mortgage- of assel-backed secwnies and
basket CDS. Where required inputs are unchservable,
relationships to observable data poants, based on historical
and'or mmplied cbservations, may be employed as a
technagque 1o estmate the model imput valugs, For further
information on the valuation techniques for OTC
denvative products, see Note 2

Valuation Hicrarchy Classification;

Level 2—when valued using observable inputs supported
by market iquidity or where the unobservable inpul s not
deemed sipruficant
Level 3—when valwed using observable inputs with
limited market liquidity or if an unchservable input iz
deermed significant

Invesiments
Vahmtion Technigques:

Investments mclude direct investments in equily securilies,
a5 well as vanous investment management [unds, which
include nvestiments made n connection with certain
emplayee deferred compensation plans.

Exchange-traded direct equity mvesiments are generally
vitlued bazed on quoted prices from the exchange.

For direct mmvestments, mitially, the transaction price is
penerally considered by the Firm as the exnt price and 15 s
hest estimate of fair value.

After initial recopnition, i determining the fuir value of
non-¢xchange-traded  miernally and extemnally managed
fumds, the Firm genevally considers the WAV af the fund
provided by the fund manager to be the best estimate of
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fair value. These investments are included in the Fund

Interests 1able in the “Net Asset Value Measurements”

section herein

For nen-exchange-raded investments either held directly

or held within imternally managed funds, fair value after

initial recogmbon 15 based on an assessmenl of each

underlving uwestment, corsidering rounds of Nnancing

and third-party transactions, discounted cash flow analyses

and market-based information, including comparable Firm

transactions, trading multiples and changes mn market

cutlook, amang other factors.

Valuataon Hierarchy Classification:

» Level 1—if actively traded

* Level 2—when not actively traded and valued based on
rounds of financing or third-party irmnsactions

* Level 3—when ned actively traded and roumds of
financing or third-party transactions are not available

Physical Commoditics
Valuatzon Technigques,
« Farr walwe s determined wsing observable  inputs,
including broker quotations and published indices.
Valuation Hecrarchy Classification:
* Level Z—valhwed using observable mputs

Investment Securities—AFS Securities

Valuation Techniques:

* AFS securities are composed of U5 government and
mpency securities (eg, US Trensmy securilies, agency-
issued debt, agency mongage pass-through securities and
CMOs), CMBS, ABS, state and munucipal secunties, For
further information on the determimation of fmr value,
refer o the comesponding assetTiability Valuwation
Techmgue described herein for the same instruments

Valuation Hierarchy Classifzcation:

+ For further information on the determimation of valuation
hierarchy classification, see the comesponding Valuation
Hierarchy Classification described herein

Deposits

Valuation Techniques:

* The Firm issues FDIC-insured certificates of deposit that
pay either fixed coupons or that have repayment terms
linked to the performance of debt or equily securibes,
indices or currencies. The far vahee of these certificates of
deposit 5 determined wsing  valuation models  that
incorporate  observable inputs referencing  identical or
comparable securities,  including  prices o which the
deposits are linked, mterest rate vield curves, option
volatility and currency rates, equity prices, and the impact
of the Firm’s own credit spreads, adjusted for the impact of
the FDIC insurance, which 15 based on vamlla deposit
Issuance rates,

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

= Level 2—when valuation inputs are observable

= Level 3—in instances where an unobserveble inpul is
deemed significant

EE] December 2022 Farm 10-K
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Securities  Purchased under Agreements to Resell and Valuation Hicrarchy Classification:

Securities Sold under Agreements o Repurchase

Valumtion Techniques:

+ Fair value is computed using a standard cash flow
diseounting methodology.

+ The inputs 1o the valuation inclede contractual cash flows
and collateral funding spreads, which are the incremental
spread over the OIS mte for a specific collateral rate (which

well as the impact of the Firm's own credit spreads, which
are based on observed secondary bond market spreads.

Diecember 2022 Foren V0K

o4

= Level 2—when valued using observable inputs ar where the
unobservable input 1= not deemed signi ficam

+ Level 3—in instances where an unobservable inpuw is
deemed significant

Rolforward of Level 3 Assets and Liabllities Measured at Fair
Valup on a Recurring Basis

refiers 1o the rate applicable to a specific type of security i Lo - o2 Eel ae
pledged as collateral). o
Valuation Hierarchy Classification: e S % s
e e Lrewaies Gain (kasa) i3 = 1
* Level 2—when the valuation mputs are observable and P i 5 =
supported by market hguadity Sales ) & =
* Level 3—in instances where the valuateon input (s Mt traatars 3 45 &
observable but not supported by market liquiday or if an Ensing balance 5 17§ z5 ry
unchservable input is deemed significant Urreakred gams (ossss} T s -5 -
Dithar soviralgn gowernment L]

Crther Secured Financings ampi.;hnn; i § M1 5 MEE ]
Valuation Technigues: Raalirmd mrd Lresaized gamms (lssas) (L] 13 =
« Oither secured inancings are com posed of short-dated notes Purchases 116 145 288

secured by Corporate equitses, agreements fo repurchase Slas (167 (182} i
Physical commodities, the liabilities related to sales of  Hetrarsfons e op —
Leans and lending commuments accounted for as Encing baluncs $ g 315 ma
financings, and secured contracts that are nof clissified as Urrsslires gairs (losassh 45 =5 =
OTC derivatives because they fail net investment criteria. Sints and munizipal securites
For further imformation on the determination of far value, Baginning balance 5 13 % - 1
refer 1o the Valuation Techmigues described herein for the Fiealizad ard Lrrsalong gains (onses) 14 - -
corresponding  instruments, which are the collateral Puschicad # 4 =
referenced by the other sccured financimg liability. Sbes ) 14} =
Valuation Hierarchy Clissification: Nial iraesfnry 1z7 i) i1
+ For further information on the determination of valugion Ending balance 3 sy way  —
hicrarchy  classafication, see the Valuation Hierarchy Urreakrec paine (26saa} ¥ =E W =
Classification  described  herein  for the comesponding '""_“
instruments, which are the collateral referenced by the other i ok ) LI B 0
secured financing liability Rusalizad and urrmalises gains (loamss) (343 & {BE]}
Purchaiss ik Pt L]

Borrowings m !‘I:] ﬂ[;:‘r Q:;]
Valuation Techniques w"ﬂ el e m*’ .
* The Firm cames certain borrowings at fur value that are s s e = R

primanly composed of: instruments whose payments and LoaTE 1 WG AT
redemption values are linked 10 the performance of a Biginning baanca S BE06 5 ST § SN0
specific index, a basket of stocks, a specific equity secunty, Rusalirad ara Lrraakizec gains (losass) ) &1 {88
o commodity, & credit exposure o basket of credit Prurchanas and oniginntions TEY  RA4E 2479
exposures; and instruments with various imerest rate-refated St (740 (A0S} 88T
features, including step-ups, step-downs and zero coupons. SaSanants ATE  (138E {2908
Also imcluded are unsecured contracts which are not Mt trarsfars” (235 (5133 e
classified a5 OTC denvatives because they fmal net Encing balencs 3 1T § 2808 5§ &758
nvestment criteria Herwatned Qamns. larag) 3 B3 (s &8
+ Fair value is determined using valuation models for the Comporate and ather delx
derivative and debt portions of the mstruments. These — Desnningbalance R LR R S
models incorporate observable inputs referencing identical Flogiinnd did SO P Coeiel) o B .. S ..
or comparable secunties, including prices o which the Lt B g :.m 1::55 “fﬂ
instrumients are hnked, interest rate vield curves, opton e "’::]] IT} ;IE
;{Ds::;llry and currency rates, and commodity or equity T — aw ass
v balunce 1973 5 3
* Independent, extemal and raded prices are considered, as m”ﬂ.mﬂm : 1': : 'gm}: ':?
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£ 41 e Hoxd Fidl 030 # .y sl 202 2 farras]
Corporate squities Mt dertvativis: Foredgn exchang
Begnning bakanos § 15§ B8 s o Baginning balanca $ 5% 8§
Ruakzed ard urrealzed gans fosses) ] & {85) Asalirad ard urrsalize: gins (keses) (%] ] 1548
Pyrckaies 73 i b Purizhirugs 1 2 4
Sty (F=:] ] (o Bsuaraes - (15} -
Mal rarslars a7 {4 ) Sefemants (4] 18 17
Er=ing halarca 5 1165 115§ 2 Haat trar-sfars ar [ {51)
Tinrealiras gars (oses] 5 15 Ms g Enzing balines 3 w1 sas 8
bl LRUMRLE] CATH RN ¥ 95 wns
Bagnnig balinos § 1435 5 B % i1 Mot dortvathves: Equity
Ak ard Lerkalres pairs (lades) [El ] prr L Baganring hatanca F rMa) B RENFE (0150
Pusckacies & Fr ] & Rualired o Lrraalize pain (bases) 201 A 2
= (e s {106) Purchases T m 1]
Hat hr?"-rs w 11%; 1_"_:' EEsuances. 5551 [E2 54 i3
Encing balance $ 93§ 143 5 A ] HE L] [haet)
Urrealizsd gairm (o) $ NS ¥a % {da) Mt trarfam’ (L ]) 1185 el
Invastmont secuitios—AFS Encing balancs (T3] § (S48} 5 (2220)
Baginning balanos - — & XAk % -— Urresloed Gabrs (ossss) 5 W} s (WINE 20)
Ranknes ard Lemelimes pain (lages ) = 14) & Nt derhestives: Commedity and other -
Purdhass’ - — e Baginning halance $ 15K S LMe 5 1M
Salas - 1269 and Piealired o0 wrraaloes pins (ases) 18 5 m1
it rars s W 2sen — P 485 a4 &
Ersing balares 5 35§ = § a0
T o er oy e . o — - e () (2} {&7)
Becuritles purchried urdor Bgr e Famall Lt s} e
. Mt trarafim (ZE) L] 2
Sein hanoe Po=3 0 B8 = Ry balance 5 108 8 189 5 1700
Hal yarsss — &) 3 Ty = = -
Erding balarce T TR R mags w3 o)
ot derbvathves: Intereat ratn Paegan
Baginning balarce $ e s es  q mr':ﬂxm i $ &rg a®s m
Rroalized ard urresined gains Chstss) 4l 2 s = o "
bR F s = AN 1 — E1
bt aritha pta 52 i SaiSamants i (1} 17
Form—— 93 " a0 Nt trarsfurs (55 145} 72
Hal racsfan {1285 {3 LLLLH] S ok L nE Lict 123
Ersing halarss 5 (15135 V08 5 E&2 ke m-mrgm-s: 2 i — L)
Unrealirad gairs (lssas) § NS =S {24 ::r;::ﬂm . % ik o -
Mut derivathes: Ceodic
Bagnring bubiros R bonphgdninhih e i sl g BR 09
Rinnkoed ara urreslioes gairs (hees) = & e ot e S
Pusdhasaes 5 LS 8 e . i =
Issunncsa a0 gm gy emens - 2
hial s W e (sl Endlngrbslini s s & § W
.é.":'.“ll """" ""_ “" “'51 “ m?::::'ﬂ e 5 17 § @21} 8 1)
Unraalized pas (ossas) H vH§ a3 § i
Baginning balance 3 ES1 5 45—
Rualirad and urrnalise: keies {gara) (%) 1 127}
RN 17 = 4
Sutlemanis [=50] == —
Mt trar=iar (128) 0 1
Erdang balores 3 52 & &M% e
Urnesirad knses (gars) $ =% 15

9%
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£ 41 MV ok Fordl il
Othar secured Snancings
Baganning balancs § 435 BB 5 W
Ruakzed ard urrealred Isses (gains) ] {17 il
Issuante E A4t A
Sarienients (42 (=18 {20
Hal s [ 127 i
Er=ing halarca 8 %1 5 403 5 &fA
Uniealired keased [gairs) § s S Fil
Baerawinge
Baginning balanos § 2087 § 4374 § 4083
Reakzed ars Lereslred losses (gars) 135 e Firt)
Isdiianoea 13 v L]
Satlemants [R5 (445 4B
M (e _(z387) __idar)
Ercing balarce ] ‘IE" § LIS § 4374
Urrealived ki [pairs) § M E qma s Firl
Portion of Lrmeskoed lasses jgars) reoond

In D l=Change in net Dl (35 {17 £3

P e i 2 st e it i (e S pudeer o 005 el f meity
rasegin B B Linwo 5 83 Lovewd 2 8 0 niaull ! the smchuad abgrfiziess of th
e B pe sl Het TSt i 120 reflecs tha Bngely ofseling inpacts of
ety Mg lonn isbers of SE5T malion s Leval 3 in ihe Gt quaster snd
STOT prillion el of Laval 3 i Wi s muitie Bty diivan by Shanges in t
sieicance leval of fe rgn D e g based on chinges in By
conainng

2 Ml e i FI21 relect the e i the second quided o 52 0 bedion of
Coiporain and ofher debl. 51 0 bdon of net Equily derivalves and 5 2 bilios of
Bonowings rom Lavel 3 4o Lavel T oe the anobesrsabis apiols wais nol sgedseant
) W il 1o ik ITRRIUN T NS

3 Ml ransfem in 20 efect e Sanefer o S el georten of 528 blllen of ATS
mecyriinn from Livesd 3 ko Lawsl T dum 0 incressesd rading aciiy and pbssnyabdiby
of pricing egids Puchosss ol AFS Evesiment ssorliss in 2020 selsls 1o
it aoquited s pan ©F B DTRADE tnmaction Mor addoral infoertion
on s acoEstion of E*THADE. wen bota 5

Level 3 instruments may be hedged with mstruments
classified in Level 1 and Level 2. The realized and unsealized
gains or losses for asseis and labalities within the Level 3
category presented m the previous lables do not reflect the
related realized and unrealized gams or losses on hedging
instruments that have been classified by the Firm within the
Lewvel | andor Level 2 categones,

The unrealized guns (losses) dunng the period for asseis and
lrabilaties within the Level 3 category may nclude changes in
fair value duning the pertod that were attributable 1o both
obzervable and unobservable inputs, Total realized and
unrealized gains (losses) are primanly included in Trading
revenues in the incoms statement.

Addionally, m the previous tables, consolidations of ViEs
are included in Purchases, and deconsolidations of VIEs are
incladed in Sentlemenits.
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Significant Unobservable Inputs Used in Hecurring and
Nonrecurring Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Valustion Techniguas and Unobsarvablo Inputs

Eabanca | Fiangs {Avsrags’|
Bl mdionn momptngen A Dacember 34, Pid 8 Dzt 31, 2021

Aasats a1 Fulr Valus om g ilﬂ.ll'lhg Busls

Oithar
gurernenEnt
abtdigations 5 1% 5 Pl
Compatable padng:
= k
Borst ukce 8Tig 124 pﬂpﬂ:m 100'%::;'1;2&4?
State and municipal
securities 148 § 13
Comparable priceng:
Boea
(=] Ilwm i
MARDS 5 418 5 344
Comparsble pricing
Boedpeon 0o $S poirts (83 points) 0 o B6 o {50 poini)
Lesns and landing
commitmants T 5 30
Margin kaar nwocel
Wargin lan ras e A% (%) U8 1o A (T
Comparable pricing:
AT i 105 i) B9 1o 101 pod T
Loan price. w;ﬂ‘ﬂ] - %
S
duht 5 2 8 1870
Comiparabie pricieg:
51ip1 -1 i
s pnier-- Bl
Disieriahiidl sl o
Loss given Selaul SAY 1 AN (B2  S4%] B4 10 R4% (AT 1 64%)
Corporsts aguitien  § 118 5 116
Comparable pricing
Ecity price 100% 1%
Inwestmants 5 a1 5 1128
Discounied cash fow:
WACE 5% va TR (18%] 0% o HE% (15
(= 7047 times (14 Hewes) g 17 Senes (12 times)
Markal sggoach
EBITCA nwtipis ¥t 21 thnes (V1 ) 1 26 Sewsicn {10 L)
Comparable prising:
Enuity price 4% ba 100% (89%] 4% % 100% (PER)
Mt darivative gnd oiber contmets:
Intwrest ratn 5 (1841 § i
Ciptinn medel
IR vl iy showw

105% o 130% (113% 1
ARG 300G 1 TOMS (B4 T BIN)

IR cunve comeiaton  47% to 1005 (B0% { B4%]  B2% to GO (DI 1 A%

B volariiy MM %10 32% (12% 5 0%)
InBadion valailiny %00 BN (430 /I8N 24% io G55 (44 [ A0
_WRore ASWSGIENISN] 4% 048N NN
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 Prasrges {Avmrage’ | Balanca | Fangs {Average’|
1 i el ol sl At Dy bt 31, 2023 Al Dzl 31, 2321 B et i i b A D ber 31, J02F O b 51, 2021
Erodit 3 e § i Barrowings $ 1,547 8 2050
el delmt swap model: Cgtimn maciek
Cashesypnibatic Bauity wol i e BEY, T4 b BAN (20
base 7 poirts 7 points 2 .m:: 123%) = BAN |
Boea prics 010 &3 points (43 polnts] (o013 poiets {46 poires) Sk 2% o O% [9%) 1% 1o % (0%
Crediil dpread Al eo 528 bpw {115 bpa) i 1 ATT bps (B8 bp) Ecnity oormelstion B0 e T (28%) 1% o DA (R
Funding spread 18 £o 8O0 bps (92 bps) 15 o 421 bips (5% bps) Enulty - 50
Forelgn excharge’ 3§ BE 5 ¥ CoaTelaion B o 0% {-21%] =BES o 2% (309
Gidon modet IRt « EX Cormmaion MM -26% i B% (5% 1 5%
B - FX compiion WIN  53% 10 56% (5% £ 5% IR - Woladly shw A7 o 1265 {T4% | 59%%) HA
2 vl sk WINM 90% 1o T 6% J 3% Discxnmind cash fow:
R 2% 1o 38% (B% £ 4%) A% 10 7% (2% 0% Lows ghan defell  5a% to B4% (2% / 00%] 5% 1o A4% (B2% / 6a%)
Forsign mvchange ' ing Falr Value M wt
VoA SKme T 10% WD A0% (0% I10%) 4%102%(I%II%  Losns s s 8 1578
Contngercy Conpesine baan moal:
S0 1o B {0ah. / s TS 1o BH% BE%
!ﬂwum‘aaq- : 1055% § qu; o [‘H-'l'-.l‘m::l Credit sprusd 1101276 bow (776 bps) 108 in 645 hps (264 ben)
o i Comparable pricing:
Exuiy voludity £ b2 6% [25%) 5% 1 9% (2434} Loan price A B 0 WA pain 31 o)
e % 10 0% (1) 4010 0% 1% LS DR
Ecnsty onrlation 1% to ST (I B b B% (TS} Chactl ipvaal 198 ke Mo bpe (245 bpa] 163 k0 446 by (376 bpa}
EX comulaion 9% 1o 65% {-28%) U OITHAIN)  Pokm—Pacaiegs ol g
& . e
mmﬂﬂ e = ?I:—;?'mul dincinaad Yo range M Semeage when ihees is no sgrscan
other 3 1083 § 1520 ETaiire Dabewan Hs Faedtae MAneur an Al
E; L
m“'“"m $110 5002 ($43) par MWR  S4 15 5260 {630) par s, 3 INchudls derivali conuracts whh gl feks (10, hyted preucts
Doy MT i ctccElifod o B iedBS 2% The previous table provides information on the valumtion
[ TO% ta 100% (%) 1% 1o 100 (O techmigques, significant unobservable npats, and the ranges
Liskiles 31 Falr Yalue on a Recurring Basks and averages for ench major ctepory of assets and habilities
Dapasiis H FE 7] measured a1 far value on a recuming and nonrecuming basis
Ppton rca with & significant Level 3 balance. The level of aggregation
Equity wluiity L hd ard breadth of products cause the range of inpats 10 be wide
v b A and not evenly distributed across the invenlony of financial
10 repuc hase $ 2 5 [ nstruments. Further, the range of unobservable mputs may
Dispeantud cash flow: differ across firms in the fimancial services industry because
FuRding spreas 96 to 165 bps (131 bpa] 192 10 127 byps (120 bpa) of diversity in the types of products included in each firm’s
Gthar sacured i “Generally, there dictable relationshi
ey 3 &g Al inventory. Generally, 1 are mo predictable relationships
Clonratabie ! between multiple significant unobservable inputs attributable
2140 104 points (75 i 900 poires (43 10 a given vahmbon techmigue.
Loan prca. peaints] pesiris)
Duirang 2022, there were no signaflicant revisions made 1o the
descnptions of the Frm's sigrificant unobservable inputs,
An  ingrease  (decreaze) to the  following  significant
uncbservable inputs would generally result in & higher (lower)
fair value.
+ Comparable Bond or Lean Price. A pricing input used
when prices for the identical instrument are not available.
Sigruficant subjectivily may be involved when fair value is
determined using pricing data available for comparable
instruments. Valuation using comparable imstruments can
be done by caboulating an implied vield (or spread over a
ligpad benchmark) from the price of a comparable bord of
lean, then adjesting that vield {or spread) o derve a value
for the bomd or loan, The adjustment to vield {or spreacd)
should account for relevant différences in the bonds or
a7 Diecember 2022 Farm 10-K
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loans such &s maturity or credit quality. Alternatively, &
price-to-prace  basis can be  assumed between the
comparable instrument and the bond or loan being valuwad in
order 1o establish the value of the bond or loan.

+ Comparable Equity Price. A pnice derived from equity
raises, share buvbacks and external bid levels, ew. A
discount or premium may be included in the fair value
estimate.

Comfarrgency Probability, Probability associated with the
realization of an wderhving event upon whach the value of
an assed §5 contingent.

EBITDA Muitiple/Exit .H'.Lr[l'f_ui'e. The ratio of Enterprise
Value w EBITDA, where enterprise value s the aggregate
value of equity and debt mimss cash and cash equavalents,
The EBITDA multple reflects the value of 8 company in
terma of its full-vear EBITINA, whereas the exit multiple
reflects the value of & company in terms of its full-vear
expected EBITDA @ exit. Either muluple  allows
companscn  between companies from  an operabional
perspective as the effect of capital structure, taxation and
depreciation’amortization is excluded,

An  inerease  (decrease) to the  following  significant
unohservable inputs would generally result in a lower {hagher)
fair value.

Cast=-Synfretie Baxis, The measure of the price differential
between cash [inancial instruments and their synthetic
dervative-based cquivalents. The range disclosed in the
previous table siprifies the number of points by which the
synthetic bond equivalent price is higher than the gquoted
price of the underlying cash bonds,

+ Funding Spread The cost of bomowing defined as the
imcremental spread over the OIS rate for a specific
collateral mate (which refers 1o the rate applicable to a
specific type of securily pledged as collateral).

Loss Civerr Defanll, Amount expressed as a percentage of
pear that is the expected leas when o credit event occurs,

s Margin Loan Rate. The annualized rate that reflects the
pozsibility of losses as a result of movements in the price of
the underlyirg margm loan collatesal. The rate is calibrated
from the discount rate, credit spreads and'or volatlity

MEASAITes.

WACC, WACC represents the theoretical rate of returmn
required to debt and equity investors. The WACT is used in
a discounted cash flow model that caleulates the value of
the equity. The model assumes that the cash flow
assumptions, including projections, are fully reflected in the
current equity vahee, while the debt 1o equity ratio 15 held
cinskant

An  inerease  (decrease) 1o the following  sipmaficant
unobservable inputs would generally result in an impact to the
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fair value, but the magmtude and direction of the mpact
would depend on whether the Firm is long or shont the
EXpOsIre.

+ Comvelation. A pricing input where the payoff is driven by
more than one underlving nsk. Correlation 15 a measure of
the relationship between the movement of two vanables
{i.e., how the change in one vanable influences a change in
the other vanable).

= Crechit Spread The credit spread reflects the addiional net
vield an mvestor can eam from 8 secunty with more eredi
nizk relative 1o one with less credit nsk. The credi spread of
a particular security is often quoted 1n relation to the vield
on a credit risk-free benchmark secunity or reference rate,

interest Rate Curve, The term structure of inlerest rates
(relationship  between  interest rates amd the tme to
maturity} and a market’s measure of future interest rtes at
the time of ohservatlion. An inlérest rate curve is used 10 sel
iterest rate and Foreign exchange dervative cash flows and
is a pricing mput wsed in the discounting of any OTC
derivative cash flow,

Volatility, The mensure of vasiabilny in possible retums for
on mstrument given how much that instrument changes in
value over time. Volanlity &= a pricing input for options,
and, generally, the lower the volstility, the besa risky the
aption. The level of volatility used in the valuation of &
particular option depends on a number of factors, inclwhng
the nature of the nsk underlving that option, the tenor and
the sinke price of the option.

= Volatility Skew, The measure of the difference in imphied

volatility for eptions with 1dentical underliers and expiry
dates but with different strikes.
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Fund Intarasts
Al Docember 31, 2022 Al Dacanmber 31, 2021
ta =
£ o1 i ﬁrrﬂn Ciomirmiinen] Walus il imen]
Priwats mquby -3 2,622 § L= 2402 § L
Raul sinie 2642 bl ] .06 Ha
Hadgn' 180 1 1 H
Todul E S48 5 o 3 4747 § i

i ivmstmangs & hedge funds may be sobect fo el pericd lKck-up or gale
provisioms, which resirich s ivesios ron sethdrasing from the fund daing a
oerhain el panicd or sestecd e ademplion smound on Ay eedemption daie,

Amounts 1 the previous table represent the Fim's camying
value of meneral and limited parinership miterests i fund
investments, as well as any related performance-based income
in the form of camed inierest. The camying amounts are
mieasured based on the NAY of the fund taking mnte account
the distibutson terms applicable to the interest held. This
same measurement applics whether the fund investments are
secounted for under the equity method or fur value

Private ' Equitv,.  Funds thal pursie multiple  strategies,
including leveraged buyouts, venture capital, infrastructune
growth capital. distressed investments and mezzamne capital,
In addition, the funds may be structured with a focus on
specific geographic regions.

Real Estase. Funds that invest in real estate assets such as
commercinl office buildings, retail properiies. mult-Gamily
ressdential properties, developments of hotels. In addition, the
funds may be structured with a focus on specific geographic
ICEIIJ!B.

Investments i prvate equity and real estate funds generally
are not redecmable due to the closed-end nature of these
funds, Instead, dstributions from esch fund will be received
as the underlying investments of the funds are disposed and
mienetized,

Hedge. Fumds that pursue vanous mvestment strategles,
including long-short equity, freed income/credit, event-driven
ansd mults-strategy.

See Nowe 13 for informastion regarding general partner
puarantees, which include potential obligations o retum
performance fee distributions previously received See Note
23 for information regarding unrealized carried interest at risk
of reversal
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Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

Assets and Liabflities Measured a1t Falr Value on a
Nonmcurring Basis

At December 31, 2022

5 1 g Lol 2 Ll 3" Tedal
fasats
Loans 5 4183 5 660 § 10,803
Crirmer msseiS=<{HP a0 irvesimans — 7 T
Crioeer mvanta—ROU s 4 - &
Total $ 40T 5 6417 3 10,014
Liabiities
Crer knbiiies and acoed

Ik L s iy = & 275 § 153 § Lr]
Taal 5 275§ 153 § 478

A Dwaogenitar 31, 2021

oo lesi2  Lewstd’ Toal
Loans |3 4038 § 1578 & B.ET1
Crbee mrenls—0Rher imvesiments = ] (]
Criaed miaatsi—ROU asaat 16 - th
Tatal 5 4081 5§ 158 §  BA.
Liabilities
Crioee linbiliien and accnined
o Lending o i = § 173 § T § 243
Total 5 173 & oo Pkl

A Fer significant Livel 3 balunce, i'er 15 Sigeifean Unstastvibin nguts Lised in
Risaming anc) Morwecinriong Ll 5 Fair 'Wako Wsimaraments’ section hersin &
detals of the signdicanl urchsermabls npuis ed or eorvscuring i wakam
T

Gaina {Lulm} frem  Monmacurring  Falr  Walus
Remeasuramants

T i i 2 o
Laans” 3 [Een s (1= S
ool — (&) —
Intangiieg - =1} [Fa]
Um-u::.—ou--nmumu‘ (18 (57) 88)
n::mm' " 16 (14} {485)
O s iszats—RO asie’ S || ST N
Titwl L] 894} § LT 0]
Liabiities
Crar bl e and aconigd Bxpanses

e L 3 [N § it § 183
Teotal 5 pans 3 & 1)

1. Gairvy and kossss for Loans snd Othis aesests—Dfai areslmants we cassiied n
Ol ravvlis Fior othes e, e mnd looss arm mecnnded n Other fvanuss
i Hha ey i Bl foe sl pthenwise, they ans iscosded in Othes saparnees

2. Momwemaving changss in tha s valos o loans and lendeng comemdmsnis. which
it Bel dmpact o relybed soonomec 5. are colodatad as ‘oliows for tha
Tkl Fe irvepirnd cofegery. bamed on B valm of Be andarying collsberal angd
for B Pkl foroaals colegoey bamsd on eecendly panculed aneaschiona. marked
prica quotsions. valkishon modeis thal incorpomis masis! cbsarcabls npits whees
pernnais %hm#ﬂhh*ﬂﬁlﬂfﬁ IFNMW

Honredeamable Funds by Contractual Maturity for sy Bashy Sferenca b s angd
PRy Ml whiste tanh gl o Ll
I::!rrﬁn\fdulﬂﬂlnlﬂ“i'l 022 1 Ln:uu rqll:: w::"ﬁ" s:un.—l.'ldu‘ﬂ i'rl'i;:“l. i Satneriinad uﬂ

A Privaie Eculey Real Exaie .' Sighy i cadlan oripaabi ST and st

Leis than & yaars ) 1688 3 1013 transacticn o5 S
7 4, Lessms dnlitnd 13 Ofhar asssts—Premnes, epapriait e
510 years 184 1488 Ikl e, i sl i o] RS De U 2 Ealn idels
EP_-I_-I!_'I_B_?:!_!_!:I_ 485 o 5 Lossas eelated S0 Cohe massin--R04) aesels inohide smpainnants related 10 the
Total 1 2837 3 !.ll»? ECONEnsd wres 0f cortae leased propeties
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ppp. P TR T TP TR
Finsncis) saspts
Tk iy Caaks rpovalenls  f 128,927 §$1H 1T § - - FAZAART
vl nl sk y—
e AN DRTH 3T A0M 6RO
IR a——
T e — 1Mme nee 1380
Sacurifies bomowsd 122374 = 13270 - 18I

3308 — eadE ABM ThAE
Lo’ LTRSS = AR IE3E 20ETI4
Otar vt ana = 04 ki et
Finanial kabilais
Doty $ Misst 4 — SAMTH 3 — QAN
Baartia s skl urcest
Agawrianh b

B1,ETD = B8 == AR
Tnciniting kearecd SEETE — 44473 — 1573
Orifear sacired nancings 508 - QB8 - 21.658
pratelini e — ragt — Mo
Banmwings 150,338 — 157,780 4 15T

ComHTERrl
Feratuni

Lafhin g CEmTaruany § 1382341 § = § 1788 4§ 1877 § 2Bid

A1 Dacamber 51, 3001

i Vinos
Cor - - —r T - -
£ i erllorn vi:q Lmd1  Levell Lewsld  Tokadl
Finareial ssiats
Caahand cash squivalenis § 127725 f0 T § — % — RME
IR T L R
L] BI1BE 245 40352 1076 TOBED
Saouities punchassd
n‘ﬂ'w'ﬁ
el 198 5942 — 1Tse2  20TE  nEEey
Bacuiing borewnd 120,743 — 1:mTa — 123
o and ol
recprvating o1 BB BECAT  3dEz @150
Laam' 188,134 — 25706 AELTEE  AERL90
Cten irasets 528 - =28 - b
Finseeial Ribilties
Cieposis § MEEM 5 — RMERNM F — EMESN
BaCuities okl unde
ngreements i
repmthans LA — B4 - EAe
Sanities iansd 123939 - 123G - f22em
Othear e Sciing 2908 — 4mm — 430
Carsboms and oifver
payatin 228 gal L - TEBEN
Bearrwings. 156 787 —  1E2184 4 62158
Caruritrund
Feraunt

e -

LLancing commreants” §  13a5E 5 — % ®30 5 470 § L0

1 ferisunts ivciucts i e o S ks o f Fodecuring banis
2 Ripesarts Landng corumirmants Mcofonied iof s Hsld for st snd Held
fior Sabe Foe b Furthod SEtarsion oo bancing eomedtments, tee Mo 15

The previous tables exclude all mon-fmancial assets and
Isabilaties, such as Goodwill and Intangible assets, and certam
financial mstruments, such as equity method myvestments and
certain receivables
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Morgan Stanley
6. Fair Value Option

The Firm has elected the fair value option for certain eligible
instruments that are risk managed on a fair value basis 1o
miligate neome statement volatility caused by mensurement
basis differences between the elected instruments and their
associaled nsk manspement transsctions or o eliminate
com plexities of applying cenatn accountmg models,

Borrowings Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

AE L
n,eE D e 31, 2020

§ 11 mabicns Fl

Bk WAile R gl fiof Ridk Marsg

Equity 3 8,048 5 7,046
Ininras] fmieg 26,077 2,638
Commadies 10,717 T8
Gt 1,504 5.7
Forsigr muchangs 1,817 1,472
Tedal 5 TH,T20 5 76,340

Net Revenues from Borrowings undar the Fair Value Option

£l . . ] 238
Traging revenuss $ 12370 & dEh 5 A0S
Inisrs] Agnie LE | dm
"Mt revanuss’ 392077 5 S04 § (5A7E)

1 Armeunts do ncl e any gasm o ke o et sconcrmic hadges

Gains (losses) from changes in fmr value are recorded in
Trading revenues and are mainly afinbutable o movements in
the reference price or index, interest rates or foreign ecchange
rates.

Gains {Lesses) Dus to Changes in Instrument-Speeific Crodit
Risk

#in i Mﬁ =]

22

Loans ard s racshabing H {104) § -

Lsndirg comimenaa s 113 —_

Derrsiis - (24)

Broxrmowings = 2006

a0

Loans ard othar receivables’ [ wE 5 =

LBngieg comiensns 2 R

Dt - 1w

Bantowings (=] 01

Hr20

Loans ar< other recevables’ g e} -

Landing comivniens (i} —_

Cupasics — (18

Barowings (5} [1,340)
1] A

& oy areitncm o bar 34, 2022 Decenber 31, M2

Cumulatve pea-ax DA gain {loss)

_Tecogmized In ADC L] 15T 3 (40

1 Lowns and ofer dRcabeabbes Specifi et gans (kases) wan delemaned By
g i nosn-Sriel Corponnts of gl and |oses

100
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i i uu-aﬂn 2 D-mbjh o
Loans and cihar recehables’ = % 11,08 8§ 128X

Honacenal ars” 9,128 0.550
Bormowings" 8209 108}

1 Ferounts dicabs contraciel priscipal greaier thae or {less than ] L vl
2 Tha magaiy of the &¥snancs betemsin principal and b b amounks for oaes

and othar ke o debl purchassd a amounts
el Bl pear.

A Cathudes B wimrs i ef tha initisl § ipl aricaund
hﬂmwnmhﬁﬂpﬁﬂp’ﬂu

The previous tables exchede nonerecourse debd  from

consolidated VIEs, liabalities related to transfers of financial
aseets  tregled as  collateralized financings, pledged
commodities and other liabilities that have specified assets
attributable to them.

Fair Valua Loans on Nonacorual Status

At A
h-r.n-m? m!_-‘l__!_!!! I:-tnu'nb-r:!l'l Eﬂzll
Monaccnual lars 5 B&5 § Ban

Haraceiual Bars U o e

Says pas] dun $ 8§ 363
7. Derivative  Instruments  and  Hedging
Activities

The Firm trades and makes markets globally in listed futures,
OTC swaps, forwards, options and  other  denvatives
referencing, among other things. interest rates, equilies,
currencies, nvestment grade and non-mvestment  grade
corporate credits, loans, bonds, 105 and other sovereign
securies, emerging markel bonds and loans, credit indices,
ABS indices. property mndices, morigage-related and other
ABRS, and real estate loan products The Firm uses these
instrumerits for market-making, managing foreign currency
and credit exposure, and assetTiabality management

The Fum manages its market-making positions by emploving
a variely of risk mitigation sirategies. These strategies include
diversification of nsk exposres and hedging Hedging
activities consast of the purchase or sale of positions in related
securdies and [inancial instruments, ncluding a vanety of
denvative products (e, fulures, forwards, swaps and
opions). The Firm manages the market risk associated with
its market-making activities on o Firmwide basis, on a
worldwide trading division bevel and on an individual product
basis.
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Morgan Stanley
Fair Values of Derivative Cantracts
o Alllllltlhu.lurh F. (7]
Bi r_'m Elﬂ'urgl-
§ oy mkions oTC Taind
Dl d &% ting hedg
Inlems!mls L & 3 1% —_ a3
Formgn mcharge “"_ M - w
Totel L 45 —_ 122
o pra Py e
Econpomic bedges of loams
= 2 L] - [ 4]
Ot derivatives
Ininmst min AL 20,007 180 174,527
et 5,EER 2,352 - 8,240
Forsigr axchanga 38 2397 2 115020
Eruity 16,505 - D60 43,355
Commodey and oher 24 THE - EAEd 30,467
el 301524 33,785 M08 263,384
Tetal grows derbratives 5301601 533800 3 BI05 5369506
Amauris offsel
Counimrpariy natting (214,773 (322800 (2221I) (279,235
Cash collataral raiirg T i1, 3a8) = (46,058}
Tertal In Tradling suasts § 42117 § 202 % 1393 5 44242
Amauris net offiet’
il i B Ll s s (18,404
st amounts ] .E?‘H § 02 % A5 5 H&
N'-e Ao o wiach maser resang of collatenal agmaimenis i
il it plece or muy Hol be legaly snforcaibls 4318
LiabERios st Becamber 31, Mi33
Bilsersd  Clagrnd  Exchange-
oy Ol " OfC Towies: © Bl
Dmsignated as accounting hedges -
Iniarest s % 487 ¥ 4 % - 481
Forelir aochangs .. A | - faa
el ip07 408 — 1412
Mk dealgneted as ascounting hedges
Ecanamide bidgdd of ladmi
Creesit £l 168 = arr
Ot donvathes
Ininraa! fals 138,661 28,58 455 154,597
Creeci 553 2390 - 7028
Sormigr eichargs 0322 X842 W4 112,928
Emuaty F-RE ] = W/ M
Ceemmadit ang ot 1881 - G4y asare
L 254,756 33,851 ISE08 363,847
Total gross deratives $295301 5110956 § 15500 §384,755
Amaurits offeat
Couniaiparty nating (214,773 (380} QRN @70
Cank collatmral ruiting __WEEB4] {1,505) — ia7.383)
'lnﬂllln'nﬂngllﬁ'lﬂ-n $ 34540 5 % 38 5 M43
Amouris not offset’
Einancial msrumenis collatenl {2A48] — (1.438]  [3,884)
Mt amaoueis 22001 B M & 243 5 Mas

Mot amounis for which master neting or collaierl apesmants ams
s oaomabla

ool i placas oF miay e Be g alfy

§ 6430
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Aty ol Dedsmber 31, 2

dnwmas N Em'_l’ﬁ-.ﬂ__
Desigrated as aooounting Indgll- )

Inimras: min £ =45 1% - Y
Foreign wrehangs w__ e —
—— L L e o == oS
Hok dasl as b -" '.

Ecomomic hedges of lnams

Tt - 15 - 15
Cirev darivatives

Intamst min 1drmbs 7002 MWy NET0
Coreecit G0 B b6 - B.806
Fomsigh aschanga TIZTE  1.M0 e 14534
Ecnity ThHAETT = 41435 33T
Commosity and ather A = A 2TIN)
Total SFFRET 14X 4r 418 18400
Total groas derfatives SETRA4T 510420 5 4708 530708
Amaunts ofust

Counlamarty netting 020 (0B (R (264400
Cahcolateraloaficg 43405 (12130 —  dddody
Todal in Trading assets HZH § 300 % 4m32 § anind
Amounts net oM’

Financial i srumisnts, colaanl {10447} — — (U487}
Nt amourts 5 FRUEE S 000 S 4832 § ITEGT

at amoums for which master reSing or colmleml sgrasments o

ot I ez of My Poovl B lagaky enderoeable g RS
Linbidides ot Dwcesnb=ar 31, 2021
Biateral Claarsd Exchange-

oy v oG OVC Treded  Tewd
D I- And s L] L d--

Intmmes! min 5 & 5 15 - 5 a7
Fomign exchangs & 50 - 1
Total 143 51 - 164

linldulgmrltld 1% acoounting h-i-ciun e
Ecoromic badges of loans

Crasit 1 a1z - 430
Cittar chisvivid tiviand
Intmrest min a6 Fa L
Cra] aE08 3863 - 11
Fomsign mschangs Tigs 1,106 41 73Das
Enity o LT - 41081 BRATR
Cammodiy and o 17488 o 4D 23024
Tial EFOONE 118D Aroes 3G
Tedal groas derkatives SITEATE S11234 £ 47068 §373504
Amounts ofse
Counleiary falting (20178 (D.BIE)  (42233) (254430
Cash eollateral nattieg RO {1.201) — {44508
Total in Tracing Rabdies  $ 30041 5 215 § 4212 5 4560
krbnmllnul.uﬁut'
FIEnC iR coack {oaee) &) e L
Mt smbieits 3 ﬁ-l-.!?ﬁ § 207 5 4173 § MBS
Hat Mmtmmmmmmmlﬁmnuw

Fict I place of may rot B Ingally seicrosabie 5 fasd

1 Aarounts ralite 10 roshe neRing agrearunts and colsieral SgURmTens Bl b
b daierrued by the Fim i be lsgally sr'omeable in the seent of defsult bl
where cestain ces critesia aoe rol met in accoedance with appicatin ofseiting
E e T T R

See Note 5 for informanion related to the unsettled fair value
of [utures contracts not designated as accounting hedges,
which are excluded from the previous tables,

Drecember 2022 Farm 10K

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
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Notionals of Derivative Contracls

. mumu.m
oy blonE B::FF:..I !:I;_r? E:I'rlux Tl
Desil d & ting hodg
Inimrwst s 3 3 ax s — 1 12
Forsigr: suchangs 2 2 - &
el 4 B4 - [
--lfﬂ‘ hgrimiad 55 __'-__"' "
Econamic badges of fsans
Creecit —_ 3 - 3
Divar derivatives
Inters! min 3404 7609 e 11837
Creesit 190 128 - 220
Foraigr axchargs 3477 128 18 ET3H]
Ernity 488 - 11 BiG
Commaody and oher a1 = 59 i 1]
Tael 7700 763 1046 16614
Tetal gross derbratives 5 7704 § V.EAE 3 1048 § 16,652

Lisbilities at Decembar 31, 2022

Bimaml Clanes Exct
i oy O oTc Tiad Todal
Dealgnated as Bng hedg
Ininras] min 5 1% 187 § — % 180
Formigr sucharga 7 2 - 14
Tl _ 16 189 - F
e
E e hadges of loams
Crecit — 4 = 18
Dtver derivatives
Intems! min 3438 T.7EA 497 11804
Creesit 199 128 - 24
Forsigr sachangs 1,518 1 38 1ET4
Ercnity a8 - L+ 1040
Commadity and other i - T3 B0
ol T7A0 8024 1463 16387
Total gross darhathees 5 7,085 § 5393 8 4,183 § 174M

_ Assais & December 31, 3021

TBdnieml  Cleansa Exphargen
Furione aTG OTC  Traced Toml
Daslgnated a5 fing hadg
Intarisd rte 5 45 14§ - % 108
Foraigr suchangs i 1 i
Toal 12 105 - "7
‘Mot designuted as accounting hedges a o
Ecaramie bedged of leans
= - —_ - —_ —
Otvar denvatives
Intmrest min 3488 7082 570 11,140
Crasit ki1 108 — an
Forsigr sxchargs 1388 05 i A401
Enuity aun - 407 Bl
Dulmnm'h' lnd ulllr 135 - 73 212
ol il raed L0RD  1R068
Total groie dachathoes § 7736 § 7387 § 1060 § 15183
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Liskaizios ot Dacamber 11 2021
Biaiwral Clmared Exchargs-

At O SO Tkl T
Deslgrated as acoounting hedges . B -
Ininas: min i - % 5o 5 - -]
Forsign echange 5. ¥ = i
Tasal B 10 - 167
Hok dasl ELY ting kg

Ecomomic hedges of lnams

Tt 1l 7z - 12
Cufrer devivatives

Intamst min 82T AGEA ALk 1123
Creit Fri 1] - X
Forign axchangs 360 aa 12 3480
Ecnity a5 = T 138
Commosity and ather LAl - m L]
Total AOME VAT 1,278 16510
Totnl groas derbatives 5 Boan % vEva 5 L2r3 % 16AM

The nottoral smounts of derivative contracts generally
overstate the Firm's exposure In mosl circumstiances,
notional amounts are used only as a reference pomt from
which to caleulate amounts owed between the parties to the
contract Furthermore, notional amounts do not reflect the
benelnt of legally enforceable metting asmangements or nsk
miligating tansaclions.

Gains [Losses) on Accounting Hodges

Soweow  We WA w0
Fair valus hadges—Recagnized in & in

Intamms! faln CorTROES 5 1938 5 T2 % i
Irvesiment Seutisa—AFS (an (s (33

Fair vElus hadgas-—=F
Intmmest min corracs

gnized in Intarest

o

B (15158] § (4308) 5 4878

Daposits 124 aa {1603
Bomaings L 15842 404 (4850
Wet investment hadges—Forelgn exchargs cortracts
Ruassgrized in O LI T
Forward poirs axchioed from hacgs
mﬂ‘mmm ;ﬁ:hg—ﬁmu-d n

(2] {53 A
Cash flow hidg mute eorimets’
Reosgrized in OCI 8 4 § — 5 —

Reakred 5 {lossees]) {prw=tan)

el e Trom ACOCH 03 e iroese — i -
Hat o i cash Tiow Facgns itchoes

within ACE| {4 - -

¥ For the e snded JTET e wans no orscased s s Tl telsd Io Do
Tha pesl ans (loessers | assccrted with canl fow hadges aepeied 1o ba reclisaited
From ADK within 13 monthy g of D M. 2503 = app by $0 3 millicn
Tha masiewim lengih of Bma over which ‘oecasisd casl fioes ang hedgsd b 2
]

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
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Fair Value Hedges—Hedged Homs
A A
Decamber 31, Decemrbss 31,

§ iy o i Farrd]
Irwesimant sezuftos— AFS
wmh”“mb"w ] MET1 § 17D
Banix adfurneents irchaded in smodized oot § (1.628) § {BG)
Depensits.

hedged AT % 378 § BaTe
Basks acpusmmants included in camying
WL

Camying smoun! aurmendly or previcusty
Ihedges

5 1 5 B

§ 145,025 § 122515
Bails acjusTibents el in camyieg

el ering badges § [nmE s 2324
Bariis acpuamsenli rchadad in camying
vt Tarrouiied hackges 5 718} § 1143

1 Hisdge accounting sk adumtrwnts am primaily related 1o cutstanding hedges

Gains (Losses) on Economic Hedges of Loans

5wy iy HEE e | Jranras]
G i e .
Cresit coromcs” [l [R5} Ll

1 Arouts relaned o tedges of censen held. o dwesimant and el or sabe loan
Drerivatives with Credit Risk-Related Contingencies

Hat Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Posted

At Al
Descembar 11, December 31,
§ iy i ~ i (Frd 201
st darivasvs Babdiias wilh orec) fak-
dalate conliEgan: faaiunes 5 20,287 4 o0 AR
ochuterul poteed i 14,789

The previous twble presents the aggregate far value of certain
derivative contracts that contain credit risk-related contingent
features that are in a net habahty posiion for wiach the Firm
has pested collateral in the nomal course of business

Incremantal Collateral and Termination Payments upan
Potontial Fulure Ratings Dewngrada

A
Decembear 31,
§ iy s il
Cwraanotch Cowngracs 1 &7
Tan-rolch Grengrage 412
Bialeral downgrade agresmants ncluded in the smsounis
-m-:" % 27

1 AmOunt RpTeSant MTANGSTHS Detwsan (T Fiey and ofhes paniss wham igon
the ooy of De garty, B doangraded party st delivss collsied 10 tha
oiher pafy Thess blsleal dosngrads smangsments as wssd by tha Fem io

g thia rak of Pty o n

The additional collateral or termination payments that may be
called in the event of a future eredit rating downgrade vary by
contract amd can be based on ratings by ether or both of
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and S&P Global Ratings, The
previous table shows the future potential collateral amounts
and termination payverents that could be called or required by
counterparties or exchange and clearmg orgamzations in the
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event of one-notch or two-notch downgrade scenarios based Protection Purchased with COS
on the relevant contractual downgrade niggers. Hcikrat
Maxmmum Potontial PayoutiMolional of Credit Protection p.ur:qu-!-'l. D-Hnmhus.l.
Sold’ S semcns 2022 2021
Sirgla name ] 140 3 128

- Mearkto Malurity ol Desmrdvar 34, 2008 indux et basket 173 204
& iy b <1 1-3 5 Owarh Telal Trarchad index and baskst 0 "
Sngle-name COS Total [ 18 % 48
Imvessmen| grade § 123 ®»s B % T
Honimvesiment grade 8 m . 2 m FOb Yo Anat B )
Tosal 5 173 425 4535 11 5 115 Becamber 3, [ hllml'il-l.
Indéx and basksl CO3 fomlom R S 3
Investment gradae $ 1% 13§ I3 3% s Sirgla nama 3 {3 § (1,338
Hondrwesimen! grade (] 17 104 15__1-_52_ e & baskal 1,248 (583
Tl 3 1S My uey 2y oIme S e radow: {247] gt}
Totsl COS sald $ 3§ 724 965 s I Total 3 o8 5 2283

xbwr el corine.
Todal credit protecton sodd

s

W 4o Manty Al Decsenber 31, 3031

5 28 % 723 190 5 33 5 333

S e <1 13 35 Overs  Tow
Bingle-name COS
Invesmen] grade 5 685 25 2% 55 14
Wt vl i) G 5 13 17 2 ar
Tl $ 15 WS 455 1S N
incex and basket COS
Irvaaiman) grads k] FI 11 & 0 5 L0 S "
Won-dnvaaiamen] prade 1] 14 ar 12 12
Teval 4 1§ 3 E 2k 35 M6
Total COS sald § W35 &5 895 M5 N7
Drdd eraci oof et — — — — —_
Totalcreditprotectionesdd 5§ 26 § B4 § 185 5 38 5 9u7
COE prodacion sold with icertcel prolecion purchased & 2m
Fair Valuo Assot [Liability} of Crodit Protection Sobd'
At Al

Decembar 3,  Dacsmbar 38,
£ 51wt 2022 2021
Hngle-nams COG
Iitvaa v} Grade % ek 3 1428
or-imsamant gracs. e RLLL
— em b P o = —
Inchex and baakst COS
s iman grada 5 B 5 1.3¥9
Hon-rves imesn! gade H..-I'II]_ |__I;§I:L
Teval ;] 15y 3 )
Tednl COS sald § (oes) £ 1801
e crecil conmcs W m
Total cradit phatectisn ackd ] i1.000] & 1.1

b inwvasimeni gradenon eesimend grode  defenmanation s bosed o Ba isdenal
el ratng of B reflelencs cbBgation indeenal cred® rvings serve o the CRM's
ansaanrant of cradil sk and Bha basls for a corpaalensies cradl b tamework
usad i confrol cosclt rak. The Fam uses quaniisive models and judgment o
aabiruye the vaicas risk paremsters. relsled 1o aadh ohllgor.

Diecember 2022 Foren V0K

The Fum enters into credit denvabves, prmcipally CDS,
under which it recenves or provides protection agﬂi.ml the rek
of default on a =2t of debt obligations ssued by o specified
reference entity o entities, A majonty of the Fiom's
counterparties for these derivatives are banks, broker-dealers,
and insurence and other financial nstiwions

The fair value amounts as shown in the previous tables are
prior 1o cash collsteral or counterparty netting.

The purchass of credit protection does not represent the sole
manner m which the Fimm risk manages iis exposure to eredit
derivatives. The Firm manages s exposuare to these
dervative comtracts through a varniety of nsk miigation
sirategies, which include managing the credit and comelation
risk across single-mame, non-tranched ndices and baskets,
tranched indices and baskets. and cash posttions. Aggrepate
market risk limits have been estabhished for credet derivatives,
and market risk measures are routinely monitored against
these hmits. The Firm may also recover amounts on the
underlying reference oblgation delivered 1o the Firm under
CI0S where credit profection was sold.

Single-Name CDE A CDS protects the buyer against the boss
of pnncipal on a bond or loan in case of a default by the
issuer. The protection buyer pays a periodic  premmum
{generally quarterly) over the hife of the contract and is
protected for the period. The Firm, m tum, performs under 2
CDS if o eredit event as defined under the contract occurs,
Typical credit events inchude bankruptey, dissolution of
inselvency of the referenced entity, fmlure to pay and
restructuring of the obligations of the referenced entity

Index and Baxket CDS. Index and basket CIS are products
where credin protection 15 provided on a porfolio of single-
name CD8. Generally, in the event of a defauli on one of the
underlving names, the Firm pavs a pro mata portion of the total
notional amount of the CDS.

The Firm alse enters into tranched mdex and basket CDE
where credit protection is provided on a particular portion of
the porifolio less distribution. The most junior tranches cover
initeal defaults, and once losses exceed the notional of the
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tranche, they are passed on to the next most sencor franche in Investment Sacuritios in an Unrealized Loss Position
the capatal siruciure. e — pr——
Other Credil Comracts The Firm has mvested in CLNs and [ Gmas
CDHds, which are hybnd instruments containing embedded tmoms -,:;:. v -_.E,r. 1'".'_";;"’
dervatives, m which credit protection has been sold 1o the U5 Tresnsury sacuridns
isuer of the note. I there 5 o credin event of a reference Luss than1Z month S 4244 5 4TI S M4s8 8 266
entity underlying the instrument, the principal balance of the 12 manths o lorger 11454 543 - -
note may not be repaid m full to the Firm. Totsl 53,558 I8 314N 296
S, spercy sscuriies
%, Investment Securities L Fard 2 months REY 7] 1,211 12 Fai]
12 months or lorger T 1,482 1467 T
AFS and HTM Securities Tl 20722 2781 134 ETY
Ageroy (S
AEimopmbne ¥, Hed Less ant2 months 5343 440 2ATE i
Gross G
Amonized Urrealired Unmealzes  Fair _12 months or bnge A 2t L -k
£ in miicem Casl Chaifia Lesdad. ‘Wil el LT ATH 2 it
AFS sacurites S0 arg nurkipel seo.ddes
WE. Tramsury pecuriies § 66101 § 17§ 2,254 SREER Lass Fard 2 months FRT ] 4B i 2
US agerey seoures” 23328 1 W AW a2 menhs oreger L 2 4 -
Agbrcy CAES 5,998 - AT 55E Total 2 L] ol Fd
Eate ard municpal FFELPF s'uowert |oar AES
e e S5 :':1:: ‘_‘ :: :“m Less tark2 months g27 FE] 320 1
Ty o ';'-:;n = w o 12 months e korger ATk 22 &1 i
HTM sscurities Totsl 1,163 44 w11 1
G i . . _ R—— TeAnl AFS SecuriBes in on unisshzad 155 posision
¥ Less thani2 months (AT ] 3,403 45 GeEL ROT
e s ‘::::: : l'::; =$ 12 e ie oF Bsnger 18240 201 1.0 a2
Non-agency CMES e = i el S 8322 9 ESed 5 4A7I0 S 6
Tonal HTM: necurtios 75,634 — 10528 e5e
Totul invastmont sscuritios § 165,400 3 0 5 6192 $148301 For AFS securities, the Firm believes there are no secunties in
an unrealized loss positton that have credit losses after
Ak Eacarmber 31, 2051 performing the analysis described in Mote 2 Additionally, the
Geoe Tross Firm does not intend 1o sell thess securities and is not likely 1o
Amonized . Unisalzed Unresxed  Falr be recquired o sell these securities prior 1o recovery of the
£ i Cont Gair: L Vishin
y e — amartized cost basis. As of December 31, 2022 and December
U% Tressry swourtias 5 50074 5 M3 3 e SE002E 31, 2021, the securities inan unrealized loss positton are
US, apency ancirties’ 26,780 P M1 AT predominantly investment grade,
Agtroy CABS 14478 0 B 1dET . . . ;
I p— The HTM secunities net camying amounts sl December 310,
Scakien ; 13 a R 2022 and December 31, 2021 reflect an ACL of 334 million
'Faf“"““m“m 1873 1 o m and 533 million, respectively, predominantly refated 1o Mon-
;::::"“‘““ 162510 e ™ isn agency CMBS, See Note 2 for o deseription of the ACL
u.s.'r.::: o - Wi m-:jr.]judnhg;r used for HTM EEU&'—III#. As of D:ccember i,
i ——y Ry A P il 002 and December 31, 2021, Mon-Agency CMBS HTM
peipioh ] = i securties were  predominantly on  accrual  status  and
Hon-agercy CMBS 1083 28 5 107 investment grade
Total HTK! sacurties . 188 1000 1866 PR " . . i 1=
TR e T A A IR TR See Note 16 for additional information on securities 1ssued by

1 Arieunds i e =f ey ACL

2 WS agency ssnwiies consisl moendy 0f EpEency Mongage pass heoughe pool
senurities. CAMCS and pgancy-ssusd debi

3 Undeilying loans ane backed by & guiantes, ulirutely from e U 5. Depanmen

of Education, of of leaat B5% of tha principal balsnos snd isteeest cutslancing
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VIEs, including 1.5, agency morigage-backed secunties, non-
agency CMBS, and FFELP student loan ABS.
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Irvestment Securities by Coniractual Maturity Ab Decembar 31, 2022
Arriakesd
At Decembar M, 2002 Amocies ik
e - 'ﬂrhﬁduu' ] ot Vahes Yiaka
£ 1 i lﬁ-\:!l-."'{"I=| Valua ﬂﬂd‘# HTM sacarkion
AFS sacurites LLS, Treasedy Sac e
.5, Traasury seousties: Dus withic | ymar § 84T § 58 17 %
Dok it 1yt 5 5047 3 4782 e Aftar 1 yoar thiough b years 17,730 AG,T44 18%
Afier | year fwcugh b years MAsE WA 13% Aftar 5 pagern through 10 years 3,866 1528 A%
Afai§ years Frough 10 yeans 2,602 2 REE 13% Altar 10 yoairs 1,560 1454 3%
Total 56,103 53884 Tl 78,508 26,754
U5, aseney sacurtsa; LS, agency secufiies:
D whis 1 yuar " 7 18% Aftar & yaars Prough 10 years ATH Bl ] 24%
Afier 1 year Tough 5 years 406 e 14% Ahar 3 yoarn 43,660 5,303 18%
Afnr B years hrough 10 years 852 ™’ 13% Tl 44,008 35,551
At 10 years 22,662 20,015 2T % Agency ChBS:
Toral 23,026 3,174 Dus withic: 1 ymar 8 6 03 %
Agency CHES After | year through B ysars 1,388 1,303 13%
Dua within § yaar T T 1.7% Aiar B yaary Srough 10 yeen 220 129 14 %
Afir | year fwough 5 years 1,588 1,485 18 % Mt 4 phdery L .| .1'!..*_."
Afnf 5 years rough 10 e ERE] 2983 20 % ok 1,818 14867
At 10 yaar 1,871 1872 13% Hon-agaray CHBS:
Tl 5,988 5528 Cum withic § ymar 188 w7 40%
Eiate and murlopal securties: o o Altr 1 yoar shreugh 5 years 2D 3 0%
Dua itk § yaar &0 ™ 4% Afer & years Frough 10 years T35 16 AE%
Afmr | yaar fuough b years Bl L TN __Alier 1 years Ll . %
AR ymars through 10 years 148 152 17 % ot 1,478 143
Afer 10 years 1,364 FE) LT Toal T sacustins Th,634 LR 18 %
Teral 2.508 Py Tedal Inweatmant securiton g 185408 § 148303 1.8%
EFELP siucent loan ABS: o 1. Arscucts rw et of sy ACL _
Afnr 1 year Sucugh b years 114 108 1% 2 :ﬂﬂwﬁ; g ‘-:"-ﬁﬂ Fiactie rll:l igh h:-ﬂﬂ
Afinr b years Froush 10 years 120 114 50% m‘“:ﬂ,ﬁ'ﬁmﬁw*“‘ ko dhan, pre-
At 10 year 12 . 5% 9 M Decsrbar 31, 2022 ihe swabeed sk ik e idarest pade
Tl 1147 Saez e BoErish] O el Mackyes wiis 11% o AFS Sasuiie Sonibmialy (ileng
i I withies | i Sned 2 5% fo Bl AFS sicusilis
Tecal AFE sacLmdes 0,772 B4 T 1.3%

Drecember 2022 Farem 10k

Gross Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of AFS Securities

Fioy oS 2re Eirl s

GFaad reabired gars 3 9 E g 163
eoas. Tiioad {heet) o I -
Total' 5 mE Mo s LET

1 Rasieed gene and lases we recopured o Other eeesass in ®a oomae
stumrand

9. Collateralized Transactions

The Firm enters into securities purchased under agreements to
resell, securities sold under agreemenis to repurchase,
securities borrowed and securities loaned transactions to,
amoang olher things, asquere securilies 1o cover shorl posilions
and seitle other secunties obligations, 1o sccommodate
customers” needs and to finance ks Inventory positions.

The Firm momitors the fair value of the underlyving securities
as compared with the related receivable or payable, including
acerued interest, and, a5 necessary, requests addinonal
collateral, as provided wnder the applicable agreement 1o
ermure such trnsactions are adequately collateralized, of
returns excess collateral

The nsk related to a decline in the market value of collateral
pledped o received 15 managed by setting appropreate market-
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based margin requirements. Increases in collateral margin Gross  Secursd  Financing Balances by Remaining
calls en secured financing due to market value declines may ~— ‘Contractual Maturity
be mitigated by increases in collatera] margin calls on . Af Decemibar M, 2022
securiies ]:lurchmd. under agreements lﬂrﬁt“.m}d SECUrilies - m Lﬁ“m"' %0‘.;""‘ nl?:nm Total
ch transactions with  similar qmllt!.-. collateral Gacorites BOM UNGer
Additionally, the Firm may request lower gquality collateral el $ BiAH S RS0 20,886 3686 Hesed
pledped be rcplm::-:d '-_t':lh I}lgh-sr qu.'dnr_ collzernl through Eracirithies loanad 15150 B2 1984 DAM  ITds
collateral substittion rights in the underky ing agreements "Bl ciutied in the "" o .
afaaling cickrune § GRTDT 5 TN SZLATOD S46.110 SR1G0EET
The Firm actively manages its secured financings in a manmer T .
that reduces the potential refinancing nsk of secured Prey s ]
financings of bess liquid assets and also considers the quality el L] L S B
of collateral when negotiating collateral eligibility with Toau 3 5581 4 THaM 42570 MEIE S0
counterparties, The Firm utilizes shorter term  secured At Ducembar 31 2021
financing for highly liquid assets and has established longer Overnight Less than 3000 Over 00
A e " : [y d 30 3 O Towl
tenor mats for less hguid assets, for which funding may be a1 Elu..rﬁu;du- — trl Qe 2D Do iz E
risk in the event of a mmﬂ:ﬂdisn.lpﬂjm Awamenli [
FEpuTChE S 5 D271 5 E:EAT S1T000 530,410 513057
Offsetting of Cartain Collateralized Transactions Secvuides lokfea 11480 Rl BAO G487 20981
Totdd thuded in the
M Dickmba X O ofaalleg ciclowre § L0751 § 54081 10,740 L4005 3181854
Balsnos  Amoun .
Grosa  Amoirts ShestMst | Nob. b Teawing Raliliee—
& 17 M. At s Offant AU OiTsan’ Agresanin m_.wmﬂ“
-'0“# eollamara 30,104 = - — 3004
e i ] Teaal 3§ FOAES § 54350 510740 S40.806 $108 760
o rwsall SPA0I55 5(126.848) § 113307 1ML 5 4,005
Secunties bomrowed 145,348 (11,0688) 1333 (128073 53M Gross Secured Financing Balances by Class of Collataral
Lisbimies Plodged
S-lu.rllinuuuml.nuw Al A
PapuTEhata S1B5387 S[176448) 5 G534 § (57,395 § 5139 S “’“;;'“' D*":"g‘:’:"'
Securities baned IERAS (11,068 156TH (45,100 ) e e
sgresments o repurchase
mﬂﬂlhmlshmnlﬁulmnnnhp&mw LB, Trwsiany ard derarisy Bbcadien " B1761 & 30,760
Eacurilies purchassd urder agresments (o nesall § 1,608 Crar sovermign gowsmmnen otligalions LR T3063
Etarvi i b3, BT vt Bad Caafgeintin Slnalied 45,340 25 881
Sacuriths 50l LNOSr AGNeETSNTS 10 MpUTChase 3,861 Crias 13042 Ll
Gzt ek baaariiedd 280 Tl ] 1ERERE & 130 ETS
Socurities loanesd
A2 Decnmber 31, 2021 e H )
L3 ™ .T.gum = § 26 5 TR
Geis  Amowris SkestMNet  Hol Py Corpormie sniion M 20800
F v e Amsunis  DfTee Amoutis  Ofasl’  Amcais O FiT] T
Axits LT o 3 27845 § 21881
Secutios purchases o Pebvond i e oFvacing omrs 3 a1eatr s 161858
[ T
bl S197485 § (17407 S 119900 S1064961s 1aqpy  TTAEING laBARSus—Dblgation o retuen securities racelvad as colstara
Secuties bomowed  1W98  (DBRD) 120013 (124.028)  naan  COPERsclies ¥ i T
Llabititles L] - LL "
Securithes S0k Lnder el L4 22480 3 H0.104
agresmenss i Tedal $ 22007 5 191780
mpurthase S1MATS § (FTAAT) 5 G266 3 (53.602) § 8406
Sz it basnad 21,580 [0 s R T 1) 1] Fi

et amounts for which mEster neting sgresments are net in place or
miy nod be legally srdorcaabls »

‘Eacunithe puthasss Lroer gresmeds (o resel 512614
Sacurities. borowed 1041
Spcuriiien SOk LNCA AGRSTISNTS (0 Mpurchass 82045
Secikiied iointind 138

1. Acwounis relsin 1o Fidtee fering agimsimnis e o Baen deteresnd By the
Pty 42 bom Bagally and caabin i Sl diedt o] Sl Bul whisni Sailen St Srtenis
o ol Pl 0 sccondancs. with applioabils ofasting SOO00ENY 0o

For information related to offsetbng of denvatives, see Mot
T

Carrying Value of Assets Loaned or Pladged without

Countarparty Right to Sall or Repledge
Ax A1
Dacembar 31,  Dacwnber 31,
& iy mltarmy H?.! Faied |
Tracing azsats B dMEm4 5 ddsd

The Finm pledges certain of i: trading assets o collateralize
securities sold under agreemenis 1o repurchase, securities
loaned, other secured financings and denvatives and to cover
customer short sales. Counterparties may or may not have the
right o sell or repledge the collxeral
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Pledged financial instruments that can be sold or repledged by
the secured party are identified as Trading assets {pledged 10
vanois parties) im the balance sheet.

Fair Value of Collateral Received with Right te Sell or
Repledge

Al Al
Becomber 34, Dwcamber 31,
2022 2021

O il e e LU N
Collaterl ecetved wit ight m sl or eglegge 3 B34 5§ G72.004
Collataral thatwas sok o repledges’ 425 530 510,000

i Does not evcleds secoritas used i mesd fedsind regulations o the Fae's U3
sk - aders

The Firm receives colliteral in the form of secumies in
connestion with secunhes purchased undér agreements 1o
resell,  securies  borrowed,  secunies-for-securiics
transactions, dervabive fransactions, customer margin foans
and securities-hased lending In many cases, the Fim s
permitied to sell or repledge this collateral to secure securities
sold under agreements to repurchase, 1o enler Ido securities
lending and derivatve tramsactions or to delver 1o
counterparties to cover short positions.

Securities Segregated for Regulatory Purposes

A Al
mmﬂ , Dﬂlﬂaaﬂﬁi.
& i i 1
Eagmpaind teauiies 5 W4 5 20,062

i Secausitien sngrageind waie fadersl imgalations fo the Fert's U5 brokes dealerm
e fmated Wory Secuilties puichasad onder aQiesimients o0 esall and Tradng
skl bt ol sl

Concentration Based on the Firm's Total Assets
A At
Decomber 31, Dwcember 31,
2022 221

.5, government and agency securities and
o A i

Traging assets’ 8% 0%

O bl shiei—Colal sl fpcabid” 2% 12%

1 Cihes siremrsign vt hiligaicrm inchelng bn Tradng ssiets pricdily consed
oF aikeyatiens of ek VK. Jigsaes dorch Braiel

2 Chllabaial veareid 1 priciacly ol 12 S ¥ o undar g o
ol juicl Do Edarawad

The Firm 15 subgect o concentrstion nsk by holding large
positions in cerlan Iypes of securities, leans or comniitm enls
to purchase secunities of @ single Bsuver, including sovereign
governaments and other entities, issuers located i a particular
country of geographic area, public and private iSsuers
invelving developing counlries of mssuers engaged in a
particular industry.

Positions taken and underwriting and fimancing commitments,
including: those made n connection with the Firm's. private
equity, principal investment and lending activities, often
involve  substantial amounts and significant exposure 1o
indavadual ssuers and businesses, incheding invesiment grade
and non-anvestment g 1ssuers.
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Murgan Stanley
Customaer Margin and Other Lending

At 13
Dwcombssr 31, Dacambaer 31,
£ 1y et e 20N

Margin and ofer rding ] e 5 A

The Firm provides margin lending arrangements that allow
custamers 1o bommaw against the value of qualifving securities.
Recewables from these amangements are inchuded within
Customer and other receivables in the balince sheet Under
these amangements, the Fim recoves collateral, which
includes ULS, government and agency secunties, other
soveremn govemment obligations, corporate and other debi,
and corporale equities. Margin loans are collateralized by
customer-owned secunities held by the Finm. The Firm
monitors required margm levels and established credit terms
daily and, pursuant to such guidelines, requires customers 1o
deposit additional collateral, or reduce positons, when

Margin lpans are extended on a demand basis and generally
are ned committed facalities. Factors comsidered i the review
of margn foans are the amount of the loan, the mtended
purpose, the degree of leverage being emploved in the
account and the amount of collateral, as well as an overall
evaluation of the portfolio to ensure proper diversifieation or,
in the case of concentrated positions, approprste ligquadity of
the underlying collateral or potential hedging strategies to
reduce misk. Underlying collateral for margin loans is
reviewed with respect to the bouidity of the proposed
collateral positions, valustion of securities, histonc trading
range, volaulny analysis and an evaluation of industry
concenirations. For these ansactions, adherence 10 the
Firm's collateral policies signficantly  lists ais credi
exposure in the event of o customer default, The Firm may
recpeest  addhitionnl mangin collateral from  customers, af
appropriate, and, If necessary, may sell securities that have
net been pard for or purchase securities sold but not delivered
from customers.

Also included in the amountz m the previous able 15 non-
purpose securities-based lending on non-bank entitses in the
Wealth Management business segment.

Other Secured Financings

Other secured financings melude the babiliies related 10
transfers of lmancial assets that are accounted for as
Tinancimgs mther than =alkes, consolidated VIEs where the
Firmi s deemed 1o be the prmary beneliciary, and cerain
ELMs and other secured bomowings These liabilites are
generally payable from the cash flows of the related assets,
which are accounted for as Trading assets (see MNotes 14 and
16)
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1L Loans, Lending Commitments and Related
Allowance for Credit Losses

The Fim's  held-for-myestmem  and  held-for-sale  foan
perifolios consest of the following types of loans:

& Covporate, Corposate includes revalving Lhines of credit,
term kans and bridge loans made 1o corporate entities for a
vanety of purposes.
Fecwred Lending Facilites. Secured lending facilities
include loans provided to clients, which are collateralized
by variows assets, including residentianl and commercial real
estale morigage loans, nveslor commilments for capital
calls, corporate loans and other assets
» Commercial Real Estate. Commercial real estate loans
include owner-occupied boans and income-producing loans,
« Residontial Real Estate.  Feswdentinl resl estate lomns
maimnly inclwke non-conformmg leans and HELOC,
Securifies-based Lemdling and Other.  Securities-based
lending includes loans that allow clients to borraw money
agmnst the value of gualifying secuniies for any suitable
purpose  other than purchasing, tading or camving
securities or refinancing margin debt. The majority of these
loans are structured as revolving lines of credit. Caher
primarily mcludes centam loans ongmated i the talored
lendmg business within the Wealth Management business
SeEment

Loans by Typa
MDH!IH{M.I&H

Lin i  HFILoass PG Lok Told Loans
Corpake 5 6,583 § 0,634 § 17,223
Eecune lsndieg falties 006 ERE W, T
Comimacial real es%ais B515 826 9,441
Rasidential eal nstaie 54,480 4 A
Securities-Buasnd berding

asi thist kaans. el A0 .71
Toral boars 190,538 14,788 214,624
M st th33)
Total loans, net 5 153,597 § 14,788 §  P1LTHS
Loan i non-LL 5. bormmwens. nel 5 HEs

. PCecermbar LI

% it miesm HE] Lowrs -lFSI_.o-'n Tolal Loans
Corporaie 5 BSST 5 B0 § 13,674
Saezvreed landieg faclies 3 AT 3,870 5350
Commurcial real eitaie (1 1,737 9,004
Reskantial eal setee ol = I ETR
Sacunities-basad berding
Bl rere M0 & L]
Toalioars, 174968 13,892 165,785
AL (] chbsl)
Total loars, net H 12 5 15832 5 tRR
Loans o non-Ll.S. bonmrwens. el 5 o rnd
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Morgan Stanley

Loans by Inarest Rata Typa
Al Decamber M, 2022 A1 Decennbar 31, 2028

Floaing o Fioadng or
5 iy smpelaciey Fiend Rain % Fimae! Flans ’*ﬁ:ﬂ'
Corperta k] — § 172 § — & 16N
Sacuned landirg facities - 12732 = 35,350
Commencial real sssie 204 | a1 k] LR
Risnitarisl raal ame 24,903 9581 18,065 25,202
S ba beroing
and Orhar loans 4,87 T Friisy BI6T0

Totallcams, bafore ACL 5 45984 § 165440 § L2140 § 146687

See Mote 5 for further mformation reparding Loans and
lending commuments held at fair value. See Note 15 for
details of cument commitments 1o Jend in the future.

Credit (uality

The CEM evaluates new obligors before credit transactions
are imitally approved and st least anmally thereafier for
corporate and commercial real estate lcans. For Corporate,
Secured lending facilities and Other loans, credit evaluations
typically invelve the evahmtion of financial stalements,
assessment of leverage, hoquedity, capital strength, asset
composition and quality, market capitaliabon and access to
capital markets, cash flow projections and debt service
fequirements, and the adequacy of collateral, if applicable.
The CEM abso evalustes strategy, market position, indusiry
dynamics, obligor’s management and other factors that could
affect an obligor’s risk profile.

For Commercinl real estate loans, the credit evaluation is
focwsed on property and transaction metrics, including
property type, LTV ratio, occupancy levels, debt service ratio,
prevailing capitalization rates and market dynamics.

For Residential real estate and Secunties-based loans, the
initeal credin evaluation typically meludes, bt is not limited
to, review of the ohligor’s income, net worth, liquidity,
collateral, LTV rato and credit bureau  information.
Subsequent credit menitormg for residential real estate loans
15 performed @t the portfolio kevel. Securities-based loan
collateral values sre montored on an ongoing basis.

For nformation related to credit quality mdicators conzidered
in developing the ACL, see Note 2
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Yaar el
Sacurima based il
M Dacembor M, 2022 At Dwcirmbar 31, 3021 S maony Lending B____He Toeal
Coponte Flm; 1 TTAE § 5760 § 1,480 § 84,355
£ by mimpng ] HIG Toeal ﬂ HIG Tocal fotiF 1428 1,572 0 5,268
Ravcbirg & 288 § 3430 8 G010 § 2056 & 2320 & 46 i e L] 2] 1413
2022 1 10r 113 00 = 580 418 B4
oy _ e, 1 _ as - Fatt] 16 M1 644 1,871
2020 = 58 5 1t 26 137 =018 203 Cad 34 i
2010 - 15 184 - 176 18 Prior = 1,881 Ll 2227
2018 _ = - e g 198 Toral 3 TOAEY 5 11,409 § 3984 5 04,888
Price 118 - 116 &0 &0 o A Becambar 31, 2021
Toanl 3 94 § B5ER S 2800 5 2675 5 5567 x
2575 5 3, 5, £ S —— Deher
At Becembar 31, 2022 Al Dumber 31, 021 i Lendieg L) sl Toal
Bacirsd Lacwing FaciBies Revobing & 71485 § 6100 § 858 § 78513
Fhmeom IS MG Towl 16 WG Tewl anet B b L bl
Revebdng 8 9448 § 29,241 § MLEES 5 FB03 § 20172 $20.778 2020 = 551 828 1217
2022 1938 1338 24N 20 19 1,000 833 1134
2021 T 04 &0z 2 T il L an are 450
S £5 " i Ly Prise 18 1,825 i 2421
A ® Fr sk g P P Total 5 ToANG 5 W0,706 & aATs & ABA40
2014 — 274 M 207 03 1000 A
. 3 s M L. Lo 118 Tﬂs;::ﬂmmm“ummmumMnnmm o
Jod 300 8 LI S INR0E § G.16 3 33017 314N Dwcarsbar 31, 2122 and Deterber 31, 021, thess oans as gredorinanty cvar
For Eha ACL 7 alund o
At Bocembar 3, 2022 At Docembar 31, 2621 s boana, sem Mot 2. i g
Comerarzial Real Estata 2. O loons pemaeily inchads caniain loans oogenated @ e Taloned leeding B seness
fhmmn  IG NG Tewl 6 NG Toml il orlpooy ot e i o
Ravching % — % 3 WI IF WFI R Past Due Loans Held for Investrient before Allowance'
2022 I P AL 2500
231 9 1,609 1,848 a3 1203 178 B v anD bepr 39, 2022 &G Cwecwmmber 38 312
hzn - T T | Aif 16 Corpomia 3 12 & =
2010 e 1182 1,811 0T 1386 23 Sacired [anding faclizies Lo -—
2010 1 B4 rry 527 &6 Fve] Reniiantisl real sams 153 208
i "
Prie M am e 180 G076 126 T 3 _
Teasl $ 1433 8 T 8 BEIS 52200 5 5018 5 7.9 Tl 3 38 s a6
A Dl X T2 1. Tt maerity of e aricunts an sk dus 4or @ peviod of geeate thn § days. as of
. Rmianial Raal Ealate Dacarber 3, 305, and B mugoity of Be amounts s past dus o0 a pericd of
by FIGE Sonres by LTV Bariis lerss than 85 days e of December 31, 2021
Sameowm B0 GELI30 s679 SO0 B0% ol TR e o
Ravobving & o § F O T i oF - % 12
FIEH 11481 2,533 a1 15276 1,140 14,425 Sy e A2 Docember 31, 2022 A December 3. 2021
20 11804 2402 w7 13,378 ars 1,353 Carporale i M5 LT
2020 7,292 1,501 118 52 456 BO0E SacLred landieg faskies o ars
2010 A4.208 BaE 137 4,008 m s2m Comnuarnial mal wuats 203 105
2018 1,835 &4T 52 1,085 168 FR L) Fssasianal ril sstais 118 1%
Pricer 5453 2072 00 452 T P28 Swecunder-heied kndng
Tosal $43,163 § 10,020 $1,277 § BOGSS § 3,805 % 546D Aad Cihat foans 1@ 181
el 5 502 5 L]
At Dreambar 31, 2021 ; ey
Rensidenal Radl Exial mnAGL AL¥ 2.
bry PG Scores by LTV Ratia 1, inchuday all lcans held ‘or ewestment that soe 30 days @ mone padl dem 2y of
5 iy i x40 BETH L ETS LA > A% "I‘ml] Dacambar 11, 2902 and Decsnbes 39, 7001
Ravedvirg  § BE § s 4 5 Wy — 3 ]
2021 122330 2638 267 14,118 005 15,125 Troubled Diblﬂlﬂmr.‘tur‘ingl
2020 r LT, fang 10 0.rm - M““ Al .
iitdh om . Dmcenssr 31,
i o g . o $mmiem B S B
2018 1,865 LT T 231 186 2417 P z % ry
Price A3 TATT 84 10,073 o918 10651 . o S— i 5
Teaal SM0T1 5 BASD 507§ 412 § 2040 § 44261 - - - .
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Troubled debt ypically include modifications
restructunings typica by g..m...; 8L
of mierest rates, collaternl requirements, other loan covenamts p— P— B oE . I T
and payment extensions. See Nete 2 for further information Decembas 31,2010 & 201 & 227 % ¢ & -3 B 5
on TDRs gusdance. Effestof CECL
wadopion 41} {01} 1 2 (LN ]
Allewancs for Crodit Lossas Rolfferward and Allscation— Prvision (releass) 181 2o 1 1 m
Leans S 2 .. § b B e
Sacuned 8L Cecembasr 31, 2020 § 323 5 3 5 11 § -
Lerding Fusiterdal  ara — = e
5 iy e Comporae Faciies CRE Asal Estaw Other  Taisl
December3l, 5021 & 185 % 1863 2508 & £0 580 A4 The apgrepate allowamce for credit losses for loans and
Gross charga-oTs T~ 3 m — @y lending commitments increased in 2022, reflecting the
Racowmnas ] - - i - 7 Provision for credit lesses due to portfolio growth and
Kt {chama-os} T T deterioration i macroeconomie cullook. The base scenano
Pl &4 BB ed in o ACL models as of December 31, 2022 was
SN (raasa) 65 (6] 8 28 5 116 il i bt of i
o o i R generated  usmg a combination COMSENSUS  COONmmIc
Docomber 31,2022 3 235 3 153 Se7 3 87 539 53 Tofp-:am. forward rates, and intermally d_u'chped and
Partar: o Inans to validated models, and assumes weak econcmic growth over
wral bars” 1% % 4% TN A% 0% the forecast pernod. Gaven the natere of ous lending portfolio,
taaed the most sensttive model input 15 1.5, pross domestic product.
Lsraing Fesidertisl  ard o
$ it oy Gomorate Faditles CRE  Fieal Exate (ther Towd See Wote 2 for a deseription of the ACL ealeulated under the
Ovcomber 1. 2000 3 300§ 188 SH1 3 S0 558 3836 CECL methodology, including eredit quality indicators, used
Grow. chame-olfy @) by 2 W o for held-for-investment loans beginning in 2020 and for a
gl e | LLLL) Ms GO . summary of the differences compared with the Firm's ACL
i 2 @23 1 W methodology under the prior incurred loss model.
-lzlﬂll'rhlriltml § i85 5 183 SME & B0 SA0 5854
Permers of Insns o
alloea: 4% 1% 4% % sos jeos  Sewcted Credit Ratles o "
Becured Decembar 31, December 31,
Larsding ortfe ard . R 2022 HiZY
hid o] __ Comorsts Fackies CRE PReal Estate Other Toud AGL for lars 1o taisl 7| loans i % oA %
Oocember 31,2019 % 116 § 101 876 S 35 533 SMo Menscerust HFI lans 1 1oea HE loans” T DA%
Eect of CEGL 4 un M Mo 8 AL for loars 10 nonscorual WP loans 1671 % 712 %
Gross darge-of {305 = {Bdy 1) (108 1 Besnason ol HP| kxsne e kesns that s 900 dorgs forirvens pant dus
[T —— 4 P—— e d #
e —— Employee Loans
FRCORIES [ELY] = (B} i1} 3 an At A
Provision (rebeasa) =24 L L L L B Decembar 31,  Coommber 31,
Ciboas 7 3 {3 = 3 15 51 mations 2082 0
Docerber 31, 3000 £ 300 5 106 531§ 5D 583 3% Cuewiy amjikipsa by Fa Fae’ 3 4023 £ 3813
Parcars of Inani 1 Mo longer smployed by the Fimd® o 13
il ke 4% 9% 8% % AR% 100% ey 3 FPERY T
CRE—Comrurial inal sxtate AL (138 {153}
S Gacurities bassd lnnding Employsn
1. Peooend of ks 12 Solnd ks represants o held for irvesirn by iooe fypa o — s Pt — L L 32,
testal Rz ] dox vttt 0 Py T, W
A I S _5.!_ HJ_
Allowancs for Cradit Losses Rollforward-—Londing 1 Tharie ke aoe peedoranandy Cumed

Commitmants

ey Sl

Lerding Feiincin  arg
Shmmes  Cogons Fadities CRE Foual Esee Othar ol
Dot 31, 2021 £ s 5 41 § W0 § i85 B 5844
Provision (raeiae) £ ] 10 (L] 3 [

111

T Theie kakrnl e pedcioranuanty pa dus for b pesisd o B0 dons o i

Emploves loans are granted in conjunction with a program
established primanly 1o récruit certn Wealth Managemient
representatives, are full recourse and generally reguire
periodic repayments, and are due m full upon termination of
employment with the Fum, These kans are recorded in
Customer and other receivables in the balance sheet See Note
2 for a deseripion of the CECL allowance methodology,
including eredit quality indicators, for employee loans,
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Morgan Stanley

The Firm's annual goodwill and non-amortizable intangible
assel impairment testing as of July 1, 2022 did not indicate

Goodwill Roliforeard any imparrment. For mone mformation, see Note 2

Ll . 5 WM M T

oy T R T T 12. Other Assets—Equity Method Investments
Fisign memancy and olhar i) f1-1) 1 T anid Leases

-*.:l:l.hd‘ —_ 196 556 8270

At Dosmber 31 Z021° 3 ars 51033 § 603 564N Equity Methed Investmants

Eonslgn curmency 23] m a2y 58} AL A

Disposals [ kL - (i Dacember 39, Dmcentsr 51,

Al Dsceambar ¥, 2023° 3 433 $40,240 § B021 §18,882 £ o 2 W

Ancumiaied myaimees § 413 % — % 5 TR Invesmanis § 1,827 & 4

1 Balwoces repiesent the smount of Be Firvs poodedl ater aonemalabed S mitiang 2022 021 03
Irpuirents o $ WS e -

2 Tha irpesicend Management and Weak foet}

gmmnmmmhrwnmm:quHmﬂuwl
A Thoarn weni e mguaiersan s dacorted in 3022, 2001 g 2000

Intangibka Assats Roliforsand

& b i 15 W B Tl
A3 Dezsrmber 31, 2030 § 127 5 48209 § 44 5 4040
Brnubmed” — LR Th44 1078
Dispansh - 138) = (as}
Aporiization expense X {488) 4y (BT
Otoar - ) (L) Bl
A1 Decamber 31, 7031 5 104 § 4450 § 1700 § A.560
Acqubmd F ] a — 04
Dizposat s ed - 184}
B A ST S (&[] 483y 1y [
Ctbar - [ N L
Al Detwmbar 31, 2022 3 % wi § 367§ TR

1 Tha inesstmant Managsmant and Wiasll Managersn smoonls principally reflect
e impssl of the Fams sopsstion of Eston Vanca on Maech 1, 2021, which
Iruchchem 52 1 ballion o non- amarsirabls infangitie snasts

Intangibla Assats by Type
Mor-amoniizabls Amoniral-e
Groas E?rnu

At Dacembar 31, 2082

Manapeies] conifacs  § 2110 § 245 § =

Cusioamas ralaforahips —_ B, FBE 4 0eE

Trazer dnws —_— TG 154

Crtar 14 [
Totsl 5 1108 BTel 8 428
A Dwcambar 31, 3020

M arn g conimcs 2120 = L]

Cusinrrer mlaiorabips —_ BAEs1 R

Trataramsas —_ ar mr

Crhar — 180 5;2
Total [ 2120 5 10050 5 3019
Intangible Assats Estimated Future Amerdization Expanse

A1

£ menn Dwcamber 31, H02
2023 E =
2024 533
202k 443
2026 ptv
2037 07

Dhecember 2022 Faren 1021

Equity method investments, other than mvestments i certain
fund interests, are summanzed above and are included in
Ciiher assets in the balance sheet with related income or loss
inchuded in Caher revenues in the income statement. See “Nel
Asset Value Measrements—Fund Interests™ in Mote 5 for the
carying value of centain of the Firm's fund interests, which
are composed of general and limited parthership interests, as
well as any relatesd carried interest.

Japanasa Securities Joint Venture

ol " .
“ncome foas) lom vesmentin MUMES. § 0 38 5 18R 8 B0

The Fium and Mitsubishi UFJ Fimancml Group, Inc
("MUFG™) formed a joint venture in Japan comprising their
respeciive investment banking and secunities businesses by
forming two joint venture companies, Mitsdbishi UFJ Maorgan
Stanley Secunties Co., Lid. (“MUMSS") and Morgan Stanley
MUFG Securities Co, Ltd (“MSMS™) (collectively, the
“Joint Venture™). The Firm owns & 40% economic inerest in
the Joint Venture, and MUFG owns the other 60f%4

The Firm's 4% voting interest m MUMSS is accounted for
under the cquity method within the Insbiutional Securities
businzss segment and i3 included in the equity method
nvestment balances above. The Firm consolidates MSMS
ke the Insttutional Securities business segment, based on its
51%; voling interest.

The Firm ¢ngages i transactions in the ordinary course of
business with MUFG and us afflates, for example,
mvestment banking, fnancial advisory, sales and trading,
dervatives, mvestment management, lending, secunitiztion
and other Ninancial services ransactions. Such transactions are
on substantially the sme terms as those that would be
available o unfelated thind parties  for  comparable
fransactions,

Leases

The Frrm's leases are prncipally mon-cancelable operating
real estate beases.
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Balance Sheet Amounts Related 1o Loases Tirme Daposit Matluritios
At
Ll Al
Dacambser 31,
; Docomber 31, Osotmber 3. P 2092
[ Teep— Y p— 5 a0m & a8 2:3 L =
Dtrar inhdiies 8 S2orued Bupersns— b
Lease Nabiis &80 BB i zAx
‘Welghisd sverage: 26 T
Fismuaivirg leass e in years T no was 1
DHscoun: rate 13% LEEY Tharsatsr e
Teaal ] 36,638
Leasa Liabilites
m m Uninsured Non-U.5. Tima Deposit Maturities
Decomber 31, Dwosenber 31 At
£ iy e 2032 024 Dacembar 34,
$ e S e . e
5 870 EST L thanct morata ] 1,632
T8 T 3 -8 manths 132
&7 w0 - 12 morths L 11
P aap Creer 12 months 06
548 488 Total H 1,871
3360 1822
5689 [ Daposits in U.5. Bank Subsidiaries from non-U.5. Depositors
(788} Lran) g T,
3 Ll Lt foomew R
3 W7 5 0 T
fromnsn-Ll 5. deposiisn 3 12 § 053
e M3 auni T 14. Borrowings and Other Secured Financings
Fimea Goats 3 B4 5 852 5 iz
vk 5 i ya7 154 Maturities and Terms of Borrowings
LOSR ARSI MEca - M {E) L5 FanOLCog . b
Toval beaesn cost. nat 3 1684 5 1093 5 01 o o] Mty Touey . il Sherte TN w31
1 inckides Eomeson StRs masnsnancs choupes and offar vivishie cous rel inchisad Driginalmaturiies. f one y o s
i tha msssmrement £ RO ssest snd leoss LabBses Hesd 13porita §  — 5§ — § 30 5384 § LRLLEE & T
Ciginall srasturiion greaer than one yoaar
Cash Flows Statemant Supplemental information Fe] $ waer
e S04 § &eS B 420 5 TARZ 8 15810 s
F i meen 203 Furdl Firril a0 TR TDAT A2 BAEZ F-TTE) 184
Cash oulfiowi—Leain iabliies % 88 § B9 S5 TEb i WA EBEY 1438 T 3008 3 541
HMon-cash—ROU pisals recorded T nes I I 1.3 HEr AT RS LR ]
s e i 44 &g Ll E 8,724 ME 1 BATD T ¥1 BT
INevsafar Tagad  TEMT  TAM TR e 58 80
Occupancy lease agreements, in addition to base rentals, Lic ARARD AAE FOOS MRV E BN R e
¥ i ; Tolsd FISHEA § BBSE BI2400 3560H B DMISE 5§ 1A iIT
generally provide for rent and operating expense cscalations
resultimg from mercased assessments for real estate taxes and m:
other charpes = % AR LW MW 1% 17w

1. Fiadl risti borrowicngs inciuds insineresnts with sep-up. sep-doem and perc coagsn

L E LY
llmmm 2 Vidiakls (A Boimowangd chute Sosa il Bae naiasl bised on & vty of
e, nchaig LBOR, fhdersl dancs dates iond SOFR, 0 835860 & Saflien motes

Daposits ot o P kst with wiroun parpren previssm, ncluding nates Bnkad 12 the
pafomance of 0 Speiic nder. & baskel of slocks, & speciic equity SRCwlty, A
At At carWedly, & COedl Aepoan o hicked of Ciedt e,
a il g with cofiggl Pl il than cim Wgtind
4 D"";I;M' D“;.m'“' mr.mmnmimmuuamn:nusmnr:umm
il - machides nawyceal rsineants. [0 siech thes i vikus OpSon wis sected
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Teaal _ 5 356,646 § T AT
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At A
Decembar 31,  Deosmber 31,
& iy o Fitrdl
Sarior §  2HEEF 5 2137
Seleeneams 12,200 1T
Tetal 5 231867 5 2T
Waighisd swsrage staind maiurity, n years &7 i

Certain sendor debt secunitees are denominated in varous non-
U5 dollar currencies and may be structured to provide a
return that 15 hnked to equity, credit, commodhty or other
indaces {e.g., the consumer price index). Seruor debt also may
be structured to be callable by the Firm or extendible a1 the
option of holders of the sensor delbd securities.

The Firm s Borrowings inclade nedes carmed and managed on
a fair value basis. These mclude instruments whose payments
and redemption vahses are linked 1o the performance of a
specific index, a basket of stocks, a specific equity security, 4
commodity, a credit exposue of basket of credit exposures,
and instrements with vanous imderest rate-related features,
including  step-ups, step-downs and zero coupons. Also
included are unsecured contracts which are not classified as
OTC denvatives because they fail net investment eriterin. To
minimize the exposure from such instrements, the Fim has
entered into various swap contracts and purchased options
that effectively convert the borrowing costs into (loating rates.
The swaps and purchased options used to economicully hedge
the embedded features are derivatives and also are carmed m
fair value, Changes in fair valee related to the notes and
economic hedges are reported in Trading revenues. See Notes
2 and 6 for further information on borrowings carried at fair
value:

Sanior Debt Subject to Put Options or Liguidity Obligations

At A
Decsmbar 31, Decembar 31,

£ it e firr ana
Ty exjilicns wenbssutngd i ek g 5 498 § 174
Liguidiy ohigatiors’ i 2422 8 1632
LRI T e Ly bl ey
Subordinated Debt

f k] i
Conracunl weighied Fesceps coupon 4.1 % 4.0 %

Subordinated debt generally 15 assued to meet the capital
requarements of the Firm or s regulated subsidiaries and
primarily 15 U5 dollar denominated. Matunues of
subordinated debt range from 2023 1o 2037,

Rales for Borrowings with Original Maturities Greater than
One Yoar
Al Dwosmbes 31,
Mmp: AL ME0
Conramual weighisg swemmgs oipon” IR OLTE 9%

Whﬂwmlﬂqwm B1% 1EB% 17 %

1 Wiightnd nverage cougon i cokbudued utilisng U5 and nen-ll 5. dsle inlaet
Fatis daecd e hactinn S it 2 whict: e D vaka Sgtizn wan skt
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Morgan Stanley

In general, other than securities inventorics and customer
balances financed by secured funding sources, the majority of
the Firm's assels are finmnced with a combanation of deposits,
shorl-term funding, oating rate long-term debt or fixed rate
long-term debt swapped to a floating mate. The Firm uses
inderest rate swaps to mose closely match these borrowings o
the duration, holding period and merest rate chasacteristics of
the asscis being funded and to manage interest rate nisk. These
swaps effectively comwert certmin of the Firm's fixed rate
horrowings into floating rate obligations, In addition, for non-
U5, dallar currency barrowings that are mol wed to fund
assels i the same cwrency, the Firm has entered milo
currency swaps thal elfectively converl the borrowings o
115, dollar obligations,

The Firm™s use of swaps for asset and hability mansgement
affects s effective avernge borrowme rate.

Othar Secured Financings

L] A
Décamber 38, Decambar 31,
021

& by ity 22

~ Oraginal maturthes:

Ona e of leis ] 4 5 4,573
Greater than ors year T4 &.468
ol 5 Li8d 5 il

Trarsters of assets acoounied for as
secuad frarcngs 1418 1,555

Maturitios and Terms of Othar Secured Financings”

Al Decembar 31, 2022 Al
" Craceanibes 31,

& iy e :‘.ﬂl?id w Total e}
Brdglnal matudties of one yaar or lass:
Mt 12 morths 5 =& 8 §F 8 3 A
Original maturitisn geanter then oo yeee:
M2 5 e
2023 5 - % 5200 § %200 1804
Faikl - 33 343 TE
25 - M m ]
HE 2 — ] e
mei - - - -
Tocater N Wy 3 WD
Total 5 11 $ 6827 S 5N 5 & T
Waighted averaga

coupon At pelied-and’ W 4.9 % 49 % 0T %

1. Exchidas ransiers of assels acoounmsd for as secumd Shancings. Ses sobasquant
Eabia

feicings e inbares! Based on i ety of indioes

inchickng LIBOR and ledenl fends rales, Amounts include notes camind o
waE Wil vaOiE payanl peovesions. ncliden) noles Brked o sty omdi
comimodity or Diber oS

3 inchades only e secunsd fnanciegs wilh orignal maheias grester than ona
e, Vsighind sverage cougon i caiculsted oilising U5 and nonll 5 dolla
infmras! rabes and smchides offer secansd fnancings that ars Enkad I non-ndees
irican anal B which th fir valos Sption was aledtad

Other secured [inancings mclude the habilities related 1o
collateralized motes, transfers of financial assets that are
aceounted for as financings rather than sales and consolidated
VIEs where the Firm 15 deemed 1o be the primary beneliciary.
These liablities are generally payable from the cash flows of
the related assets accounted for as Trading assets. See Note 16
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for further information on cther secured financings related 1o
VIEs and securitizalion activities.

Maturitios of Tranafors of Asasts Accounted for as Securod
Finaneings'

a a1
December 31, Dcenber 31,
20

& T AN ICTE

g e = =
2023 8 b7 E
2024 £ =
2025 [] r
2026 35 M
2027 E4| 1
Thacester Az L
Total $ 4418 3 1444

1 Exthudes Sacurien noid ondes sgrenciants io ispurchass and Secueties kaned

For transfers of asscts that fail to meet accounting critenia for
a sale, the Firm continues to record the assets and recognizes
the associzted lisbilities in the balance sheet.

15 Commitments, Guarantees and

Contingencies
Commitmanis
Yuars vo Muturky s December 31, 32
Laag
£ 1% Mo than 1 13 ] v B Total
Lesdieg
Gomporste 5 OHA0ED § 2e942 § STTED 3 1.T06 $101350
Svarad lending
il TATH 5290 4B 4088 16236
Commendial and
FAmsicenial real
watale 128 247 18 25 TG
Semrtins-bamad
largding erd Cthar 12,586 2204 439 |r 18648
Fonward-sianing secirad
Arancng ot ebia BOBSE - — =5 60,852
Caniral focroaguny 300 — = 07D 5370
Ungdanriing 340 - = - 50
It rrvesi] clivitiénn. 1,282 3 o 3ai 1,052
Lafters of oect and
eifer fnarcal
SLAPRIT RS ar &5 = 17 169
Teasl § 87,061 § 37978 5 GOL7SS 5 i) 653
Lendicg comménmnis parSapated o (Fid paries % B8.080

1 Fonwad-slating secursd fnanciog iy astiecl withie thine
Busiraras darys
Since commitments associated with these instruments may

expire unused, the amounts shown do not necessanly reflect
the actual future cash funding requirements.

Types of Commitments

Lewnding Commmitmgrits. Lending commitmients primarnly
represent the notional amount of legally bainding obligations 1o
provide funding to clients for different types of loan
transactions, For syndications thal are led by the Firm, the
lending commitments accepted by the borrower bul not vel
closed are net of the samounts agreed 1o by counterparties that
will participate in the syndication, For syndications that the
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Firm participates in and does not lead, lending commitments
accepled by the borrower bt not yet clesed include only the
amaunt that the Firm- expects it will be allocited from the bead
syndicate bank Due 10 the nature of the Frrm's obligations
under the commitments, these amounts incledes  certain
commiments partscipated to thard parties.

Forward-Starting  Secured Fmancing Receivables. This
amount ncludes secunities purchased under agreements 1o
rezell and securities borrowed that the Firm has entered mto
prior to the balance sheet date that will setthe after the balance
sheet date. These tansactions are prmarily secwwed by
collateral from U5 government apency securities and other
sovereign government obligations when they are funded

Central Cownterpariy.  These commitments relaie fo the
Firm's membership m certmn cleannghouses and are
contingent upon the default of a clearinghowse member or
other stress events.

Ungerwrting Commmitments. The Firm provides underwnting
commitments in conmection with its capital rasing sources to
a diverse group of corporate and other instiinticnal clients.

Investment Activities,  The Firm sponsors several non-
consolidated investment management funds (or third-pany
investors where it typtcally acts as general partner of, and
investment advisor to, these funds and typically commits to
invest a minority of the capital of such funds, with
subsenbing third-party mvestors contrbating the majerity.
The Firm has contractual capital commitments. guaranlees
and counterparty  arrangements with respect to these
iwestment management funds

Letters of Credit and Cther Financial Guarantees. The Firm
has outstancing letters of credit and other financial puamntees
issued by third-party banks to certain of the Fim's
colinterparties. The Firm & contingently liable for these letters
of credit and cther financial guarantees, which are primanly
used to provide collateral For secunties and commedities
traded and to satisfy vanous margin reguirements i liea of
depositing cash or securities with these counterpartics.
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Cuarantees
Al December 3, 2022
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Types of Guarantees

Non-Credit Dervatives, Certinn denvative contracts meet the
aceaunting delimition of a guarntee, including certam wrillen
oplions, contingent forward contracts and CDS (see Note 7
regarding credst derivatives in which the Firm has sold eredit
protection 1o the counterparty which are excluded from the
previcus table). For non-credit derivative contracis that meet
the accounting definition of a guarantee the notional amount
15 used as the maxamum potential payout for certain derivative
contracts, such as writien interest rate caps and written foreign
currency options. The Firm evaluates collateral requiremenis
for all dervatives, including derivatives that do not meet the
scoounting definition of a guarantee. For the effects of cash
collateral and counterparty nefting, see Note 7

In certam siuations, collsteral may be held by the Firm for
these contracts that meet the definiton of a guarantee.
Generally, the Fim  sets  collateral regurements by
counterparty so that the collateral covers various transactions
and products and is not allocated specifically 1o individual
contracts. Also, the Firm may recover amounts related o the
underlving asset delvered to the Firm under the dervatve
contract,

Stamralby Letters of Credit and Cither Financial Guarantees
Issned In conmection with its corporate lending business and
other corporate activities, the Firm provides standby letters of
credit and other financial guarantees to counterpartics. Such
arrangem ents represent ebligations o make payments o third
parties if the counterparty fals to fulfill s obhigation under a
bormrowing arrangement or other contractual obhgation. A
majority of the Firm's sandby letters of credit are provided
on behall of counterparties that are investment grade. 17 the
counterparty fuils to fulfill s contraciual ehligation, the Firm
has access o collateral or recourse that would spproximate its
obligation.
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Market Valne Guarantess. Market value guarantecs are issued
to guarantee timely payment of a specified retumn Lo nvestors
in certain affordable housing tax credit funds.  These
guarantees are designed to retum an nvestor's contnbution to
a fund and the investor's share of tay losses and tax credits
expected to be generated by a fund

Liguichity Faciliies, The Firm has entered imo liquidny
facibties with SPEs and other coumterparties, wherehy the
Firm is required to make certain payments if losses or defaults
occur, Pomanly, the Firm acts as Bguidity provider 1o
municipal bond securitization SPEs and for standalone
municipal bonds in which the holders of beneficial interests
issued by these SPEs or the holders of the indwidual bonds,
respectively, have the right to tender their interesis for
purchass by the Fim on specified dates at a specified price.
The Firm often may have recourse 1o the underlying assels
held by the SPEs in the evenl payvments are required under
suwch liguidity Eacilities, as well as make-whole o recourse
provissons with the test sponsors, The recourse amount ofien
exceeds the maxmum polential payout amowl of the
guarantee. Substantially all of the underlying assets in the
SPEs are ivestment grade. Liquidity facilities provided to
municipal tender option bond trusts are  classified as
dermvalives.

Whole Loan Sales Guaraniees. The Firm has provided, or
otherwise agreed to be respomsible for, representations and
warmanties regarding certain whole foan sales. Under certain
crcumstances, the Finm may be reguired 1o repurchase such
assels or make other pavments related to such assels of such
representations and warranties are breached. The Fim's
maimum potentea] pavoul related 1o such representations and
warrnlies 15 equal to the curremt UPE of such leans. Since the
Firm no longer services these loans, @ his no infermation on
the cument UPB of those loans, and, accordingly, the amount
included m the previous table represents the UPE at the tme
of the whole loan sale or at the time when the Firm last
serviced any of those foans. The current UPB balances could
be substantially lower than the maximum potential payout
amount inchuded m the previous table. The related labality
primarily relates to smles of loans o the fedema] meongage
ARENCIeE

Securifization Representations and Warranties. As part of the
Firm's  Imstitutiona]l  Securities  business  sepment’s
securitizations and related activities, the Firm has provided, or
otherwise agresd 1o be responsible for, representations and
warmnties  regarding  certain  assets  tramsferred  in
securitization transactions sponsored by the Firm, The extent
and mature of the represeniations and warranties, il any, vary
among different secuntizatims. Under certain circumslances,
the Firm may be required 1o repurchase certain assets or make
other payments related to such assets if such representations
aril warranties are breached. The maximun potential amoant
of future pavments the Fim could be reguired 1o make would
be equal 10 the curent culstandding balances of, or losses
associated with, the assets subject to breaches of such
representations and warranties. The amount incleded m the

e
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previous tabbe for the maxmum potential payout includes the
current UPE or hstoncal losses where known and the UPR a1
the time of sale when the current UTFE 15 not known

CGreneral Partner Guaramiees. As a general parer in-certain
investment management funds, the Firm recemes ceriain
distnbutions from the partnerships when the retum exceeds
specified performance targets according 1o the provisions of
the partnership agreements. The Finm may be required 1o
retum all or & portion of such distributions (o the limited
partners in the event the limited paniners do not achieve 2
certain return @5 specified n the various pannership
apreements, subject to certain hmitations.

Clrery Cleartng Cuprantees, The Firm s a  sponsofing
member of the Government Securities Dhviston of the FIOC's
Sponsored Cleaning Maodel. Chients of the Firm, as sponsored
members, can fransact in overmight and term  securities
repurchase and resale agreements, which are cleared through
the FICC. As sponsoring member, the Frm guarantees to the
FICC the prompt and full pryment and performance of 1=
clients' chligations. In 2020, the FICC's sponsored clearing
model was updated such that the Fim could be responsible
for hgusdation of o sponsored member’s account and
gunrantees any resulting loss to the FICC in the event the
spomsored member fails o fully pay any net hgoedation
amount due from the sponsored member to the FICC.
Accordingly, the Firm's maximum potential pavout amownt
reflects the total of the estimated net liquidation amounts For
sponsored member accounts. The Firm minmizes  credit
exposire under this guarantee by obtaining a securily intérest
in s sponsored member clients’” collateral and  their
contraciual rights under sponsored member transactions.
Therefore, the Firm's exposure is estimated 1o be an amount
substantially lower than the masimum potentinl payoul
amount. The collateral amount in which the Firm has a
securily imderest is approsimately :quni 1o the macmium
potential pavout amount of the gunrantee,

Other Guarantees and Indemnitics

In the nmormal course of busingss, the Fam  provides
gumrantees and indemnifications in a varety of (ransactions,
These provisons generally are standard contrachel terms.
Certain of these guaraniees and  indemnifications  are
described below:

+ Indemuities. The Firm provides standurd indemnities 1o
counterparties for certain contingent exposures and taxes,
including 175, and foreign withholding taxes, on intensst
and other payments made on derivatives, securities and
stock lending transactions, certain anmuity prochscts and
other financial amangements. These indemnity payments
could be required based on a change in the 1ax laws, a
chinge i interpretation of applicable tax rulings of a
change in factusl circumstances. Cerlain contmels contain
provisions that enable the Firm to terminate the agreeménl
upon the occumrence of such evemts. The Firm may also
provide indemmnities when it sells a business or assets o a
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third-party, pursuant 1o which it indemnifics the third-pany
for lesses mncwrred on assets acquired or babilities assumed
or due 10 actions taken by the Firm prios to the sale of the
business or assets. The Firm expects the nisk of loss
associated with indemnities related to the sale of businesses
of assets to be remote. The maxmum potential amount of
future pavments that the Firm coudd be required 1 make
under these indemnifications canmol be estimated.

+ ExchangeClearinghouse Member Guarantees. The Firm is
o member of various exchanges and clearinghouses that
iade and clear securities andlor derivative contracts.
Associated with its membership, the Firm may be required
1o pay a certain amount as determined by the exchange or
the clearinghouse in case of a default of any of its memhbers
of pay @ proporticnate share of the Gimancial ohhgations of
another member that may default on s obligations o the
exchange or the cleanmghouse. While the rules governing
different exchange of clearinghouse memberships and the
forms of these guaramiees may vary, in general the Firm's
obligations under these rules would anse only of the
exchange or clearinghouse had previously exhausted its

Testurces.

In addiien, seme clearinghouse rules require menbers 1o
assume @ proporionate share of loses resultng from the
cleaninghouse’s investment of guarantee fund contributions
and initial margin and of other losses unrelated to the
default of a cleasing member, if such losses exceed the
specified resources allocated for such purpose by the
cleannghouse.

The maximum potential payout under these rules cannot be
estimated. The Firm has not recorded any contingent
lisbility 11 115 fmancial statements for these agreements and
believes that any potential requirement to make payments
unsder these agreements is remaote.

* Merver and Acguisition Guarantves. The Fum may, from
tme 1o fime, in its robe as investment banking advisor be
required to provide guarantess in connection with certain
European merger and acqusition transactions, 1 regquered
by the regulating authorities, the Firm provides a puaraniee
that the acqurer n the transaction has or will have
sulficient funds to complete the transaction and would then
be required to make the acquisition payments in the event
the acquirer”s funds are insufficient at the completion date
of the transachion. These amrangements generally cover the
time frame from the transaction offer date to its closing date
and, therefore, are gencrally short term in nature. The Firm
believes the likelihood of any pavment by the Firm wnder
these ammangements is remole given the level of its dug
diligence in ils role as mvestment banking advisos,

In addition, in the ordinary course of business, the Fim
gumrantees the debt andor centn rading  obligations
(including ebligations associated with dervvatwves, [orégn
exchange contracts and  the settlement of physical
commodities) of certain subsidiaries. These puarantees
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generally are entity or product specific and are required by
investors or wading counterparties. The activities of the
Firm"s subsidianies covered by these puarantees (including
any related debt or rading obligations) are included in the
finmneial statements.

Finance Subsidiary

The Farent Company fully and unconditionally guarantecs the
securities issued by Morgan Stanley Finance LLC, a wholly
owned finance subsidiary, Mo other subsidiary of the Parent
Company guarantees these securilies.

Contingencics

Legnl

In addition to the matter desenibed below, in the normal
course of business, the Firm has been ramed, [rom time 1o
time, as a defendant in vanous legal actions, including
arbatrations, cliss setions and other litigalion, ansing in
connestion with s activities as a global diversified Dnancal
services institulion. Certam of the actual or threatened legal
actions include claims for substantial compensatory andior
punitwve damages or clums for indeterminate amounts of
damages. [n some cases, the entities that would otherwise be
the pnmary defendsnts m such cases are bankrupl or are n
financial distress. These sctions have included, but are not
limited 1o, antirust claims, clims under varous false clams
sl statutes, and mallers arising from our sales ond trading
basinesses, and our actvities in the capital markets.

The Firm 1= also invedved, from time 1o time, inother reviews,
investigations and proceedings (both formal and informal) by
governmental and seli-regulatory  agencies regarding the
Firm™s busimess, and mnvolving, smong other matters, sales,
trading. financing, prime brokersge, market-making activities,
investiient  banking  advisory  services, capital  market
scvities,  [inancial  products o offerngs  sponsored,
underwritlen of 50kl by the Fim, wealth and investment
management services, and accounting and  operational
matters, certmn of which may resull in adverse judaments,
settlements, fines, penalties, injunctions, limitations an our
ahility to conduct certain business, or other relief.

While the Firm has identified below any  individual
proceedings or mvestigations where the Firm believes a
matenial foss to be reasombly possible and reasonably
estimahle, there can be no assurance that material losses will
not be incurred from claims that have not vet been asserted or
these where potential losses have not vet been determined 1o
be probable of passible and remsonably esimable.

The Firm contests liability andor the amount of damages a<
appropriate  in cach pending matter. Where available
information ndicates that 15 probable o Labality kad been
ingurred 1 the date of the financial satements and the Firm
cun reasonably estmate the amount of that loss, the Fim
accrues the estimated lass by a charge 1o meome.
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The Firm's legal cxpenses can, and may in the future,
fluctuate from pertod to period, given the current environment
regarding povernment investigations and private litigation
affecting global financial services firms, including the Firm.

In many proceedings end mvestigations, however, it is
inherently difficult to determine whether any loss is probable
or even possible or to estimate the amount of any loss. In
addition, even where a loss = possible or an exposure 1o loss
exisls in excess of the habality already accrued with respect to
a previously recognized loss contingency, it is not abways
possible 1o reasonably estimate the size of the possible loss or
range of boss, particularly for proceedings and investigations
where the [actual record is bemg developed or contesied or
where plaintiffs or government entities seck substantial or
indeterminate damages, restiution, disgorgement or peralties,
Numerous issues may need o be resolved before a loss of
addutional loss, or range of loss or additional mnge of loss,
can be reasonably estimated for & procesding or investigation,
including  through potentially  lengthy  discovery  and
determination of impontant Betwl maters, determuation of
issues relwved to class cerification and the caleulstion of
damages or other relief, and conswderation of novel of
unscttbed legal questions relevant to the proceedings or
investigations in guestion

For certain other lepal procesdings and mvestipations, the
Firm can estimate reasonably possible losses, additional
losses, ranges of loss of ranges of additional loss in excess of
amounts acerued but does not believe, based on current
knowledge and afler consulation with counsel, that such
losses could have a material adverse effect on the Fim's
financeal statements as a whole, other than the matter referred

1o in the following paragraph.

Tax

In maters siyled Case number 153637 and Case nnmber
1534353, the Dutch Tax Authority ("Dutch Awthority™) is
challenging in the Dutch courts the prior set-off by the Firm
of approxmately €124 million (approximately 5133 mullion)
plu= accrued interest of withholding tax credits against the
Firm's corporation tax liabilities for the tax vears 3007 to
2012, The Dutch Authority alleges that the Firm was not
entitled to receive the withholding mx credits on the basis,
inter alia, that & Firm subsidiary dud not hold legal ntle to
ceftamn securities subject to withholding tax en the relevant
dates. The Dutch Awhorty has alse alleged that the Firm
failed 1o provide certmn information to the Dutch Auvthory
and 1o keep adequate books and records. On Apnl 26, 2018,
the District Court i Amsterdam ssuwed a decision dismissing
the Dutch Authority’s clams with respect to certain of the tax
vears in dispute. Om May 12, 2020, the Court of Appeal in
Amsterdam granted the Dutch Authority’s appeal in matters
re-styled Case nrenber 1800318 and Case number 15100319
On June 22, 2020, the Fim filed an appeal againsg the
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decision of the Court of Appeal i Amsterdam before the
Dnich High Count. On January 2%, 2021, the Advocate
General of the Duwich High Count isseed an advisory opinion
on the Firm's appeal, which rejected the Firm's principal
grounds of appeal. On February 11, 2021, the Firm and the
Dateh Authority each responded to this opmion. On June 22,
2021, Dnach eriminal autheeities sought various documents in
connection with an investigation of the Fum related to the
civil claims asserted by the Dutch Auhornity concemning the
accurzcy of the Firm subsidiary’s tax returns and the
maitenance of its books and records for 2007 16 2012,

16. Variable Interest Entities amnd Securitization
Activities

Overview

The Firm 15 involved with vanous SPEs in the nomal course
of business, In most cases, these enbities are deemed to be
WVIEs:

The Firm's vanable interests in VIEs include debt and equity
interests, commitments, puarantees, dertvative mstruments
and certain fees The Firm's involvement with VIEs anises
primarily from:

* Interests purchased m commection with market-making
activities, securittes held in its Investment securifies
portfiolio and retained interests held as a result of
securttization activitigs,  including  re-securitization
transachions.

* Guaramecs ssued and residual imterests retmined im
cornection with municipal bond secuntizations.

* Loans made to and investments in VIEs that hold debe,

equity, real estale or other asssts,

Derwatives emtered into with VIEs.

Structunng of CLMs or other asset-repackaging notes

designed to meet the mvestment objectives of clients.

« Other structured transactions  designed to provide tax-
efficrent yvields 1o the Firm or 1ts clients.

The Firm determines whether it iz the primary beneficiary of a
VIE upon its mitial ivolvement with the VIE and reassesses
whether 11 15 the pnmary beneficiary on an ongoing basis as
long as it has anv contmuing mmvolvement with the VIE, This
determination 15 based upon an analysis of the design of the
VIE, ncluding the VIE's struciure and activities, the power io
make sigmificant econemic decisions held by the Firm and by
cther parties, and the vanable interests owned by the Firm and
other parties

The power to make the most sigmlicant economic decisions
may ke a number of different forms in different tvpes of
VIEs. The Firm considers servicing or collateral mansgement
decisions as representing the power to make the mosl
significant  cconomic  decisions in transactions such as
securitizations of CDOs. As a resuli, the Firm does not
consolidate secuntizations or CDOs for which 1t does not act
as the servicer or collateral manager unbess it holds certain
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other nights to replace the servicer or collateral manager of to
require the liquidation of the entity. If the Firm serves as
servicer of collateral mansger, or has cerain other nghts
described in the previous semtence, the Firm analyzes the
intereats in the VIE that it holds and comsolidates only those
VIEs for whach it holds a potentially sigmificant mierest in the
VIE

For many transactions, such as re-securifization ranssctions,
CLMs and other asset-repackaging notes, there are no
significant economs: decisions made on an ongoing basis. In
these cases, the Fum focuses s analysis on decisions made
prior to the mitial closmg of the transaction and at the
termination of the transaction. The Firm concluded m maost of
these tranmsactions that decisions made prior to the initial
closing were shared between the Frm and the imtial mvestors
based upon the nature of the assets. including whether the
assels were issued In a transaction sponsored by the Firm and
the extert of the information available to the Firm and to
investors, the number, maiure and involvement of investors,
other nghts held by the Fimm and investors,  the
standardization of the legal documentation and the level of
continuing involvement by the Firm, including the amount
and type of interests owned by the Firm and by other
investars. The Firm focused iis conirol decision on any right
held by the Firm or investors related to the termination of the
VIE Most re-securitization transactions, CLNs and other
nssel-repackaging notes have no such termination rights,
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Consolidated VIE assets and liabilities are presented in the
previous tables afer imercompany ehminations. Generally,
miost assets owned by consoldated VIEs cannot be removesd
unilaterally by the Firm and are not avaitable o the Firm
while the related Labilities issued by consclidated VIEs are
nom-recourse to the Firm, However, in cerain consalidated
VIEs, the Ferm eather has the umlateral right 10 remove assels
or provides addiional recourse through denvatives such as
total return swaps, guarantees or other forms of involvement

In general, the Firm's exposure 1 loss in consolidated VIEs 1=
limited 1o losses that would be absorbed on the VIE net assais
recognized in s financial statements, net of amounts
ahsorbed by thard-party variable interest holders.
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The previous tables include VIEs sponsored by unrelated
partics, a5 well as VIEs sponsored by the Firm; examples of
the Firm's involvement with these VIEs mnclude its secondary

market-making activities and the secunties held n s
Investmeni securities portfolio (see Note 8).

The Firm's maximum exposure o loss is dependent on the
mature of the Firm's vanable interest in the VIE and 25 limated
1o the notional amounts of certmn lquadity facibities and other
credit support, tal return swaps and wotten put optaons, as
well as the fair value of certain other denvatives and
investments the Firm has made inthe VIE.

The Fim's maximum exposure to loss in the previous tables
does not include the offseiting bemefit of hedges or any
reductions associated with the amount of collateral held as
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part of a transaction with the VIE or any party to the VIE
directly against a specific exposure 1o loss

Liabahities ssuwed by VIEs generally are non-recourse to the
Fum,

Datall of Mortgage- and Asset-Backed Securitization Assats

At Decambior 31, 20 Al Deceavbse 31, 2001

Dbt &g Dnabd and
£ it e vﬁi‘ﬂ.‘ LIPS lnilm
Rusiinrtal morgeges & 204 § Z8T0 § 18216 £ FR | -]
Commercial morgages 7,5 4,238 BRSO3 0
ULE. ipanay enliaserelined

miorigags ohligainrs T 4,78 LT ] i
Ok conmaer or

N i B N NN |
Total S123600 5 13108 5146071 5 10062
Securitizstion Activitics

In @ securitimtion transaction, the Firm tansfers assels
{generally commercml of residentinl mongsge loans of
securiies) to an SPE, sells 1o investors most of the benefical
interesis, such as nofes or certificates, sued by the SPE, and,
in many cases, retaing other beneficial interests. The purchase
of the transferred assets by the SPE is Ninanced through the
sale of these interests.

In many secuntization transactions involving commercial
moetgage loans, the Firm transfers a portion of the assets 1o
the SPE with unrelated partees transferring the remaming
assets. In additton, mamnly in secunbization transactions
invedving residential mortgage loans, the Firm may also enter
into derivative transactions, primarily interesi rate swaps or
interest rale caps, with the SPE

Although not obligated. the Firm generally makes a market in
the sacurities issued by SPEs in securitization transsctions. As
a market maker, the Firm offers 1o buy these securilies from,
and sell these securilies 1o, mvestors. Secunitis purchased
through these markel-making activities are nod considered 1o
be retained interests; these beneficial mterests pencrally are
included in Trading assets—Corporate and other delt and are
measured at fair value

The Firm: enters into derivatives, generally interest rate swaps
and interest rate caps, with a senior payment priority in many
sacuritization transactions. The risks associnted with these and
similar derwvatives with SPEs are essentmlly the same as
similar derivatives with non-SPE counterparties and are
managed as part of the Firm's overall exposure. See Note 7
for further infosmation on defrvabive instruments and hedging
aclivaties,

Imvestment Securifies

The Firm holds securities issued by VIEs within the
Imvestment securities portfolio, These securities are com posed

of those related 10 tramsactions sponsored by the federal
morigage agencies and predominantly the most semsor
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securities issued by VIEs backed by student loans and
commercial morigage loans. Transactions sponsored by the
federal mortgage agencies include an explicn or mphicn
guarantee provided by the US. government. Addmionally, the
Firm holds certain commercial mongage-backed securities
insued by VIES retaimed a5 a result of the Firm's secuntiztion
activities See MNote § for further information on the
Investment secunties portfoli

Municipal Tender Cption Bond Trusis

Inn & mumicipal tender option bond trust transaction, the client
transfers & mumcipal bond 1o a trust. The trust 1ssues shon-
term secunties that the Firm, as the remarketing agent, sells 1o
iwvestors. The client generally retains a resadual interest. The
shori-term  secuniies are supported by a lquidity [acality
pursuanl to which the investors may pat their shoer-term
interests. In most programs, a thord-party provider wall
provide such liquidity facility, in some programs, the Fimm
provides this hguadsty faciliny,

The Fim may, in liew of purchasing short-term secunbes for
remarketing, decide to extend a temporary foan to the trust.
The chient can generally termirmte the trarsaction at any time.
The hquidity provider can generally terminate the transaction
upon the cecurrence of certam events. When the tansaction is
terminated, the municipal bond 15 generally sold or retumed 1o
the client, Any losses suffered by the liguidity provider upon
the sale of the bond are the responsibility of the client. This
obligation 15 generally collateralized  Liguidity [acilities
provided to municipal tender option bond trusts are classified
as derivatives. The Firm consolidates any municipal tender
option bond trusts in which it halds the ressdual interest.

Cresdit Protection Purchased throwgh CreditLinked Notes

CLN transactions are designed 1o provide mvestors with
exposire to cértain credit fisk on referenced nssets. In these
transactions, the Firm transfers assets (generally high-qualiy
secunies or money markeél nvestments) 1o an SPE. enters
inte & derivative transaction m which the SPE sells protection
on an unrelated referenced asset or group of assets, through a
credit derivative, and sells the securities sswed by the 5PE to
investars. In some transactions, the Firm may also enter mto
nferest rale or currengy swaps with the SPE. Depending on
the structure, the assets and liabilities of the SPE may be
consolidned and recognized in the Firm's balance sheet or
accounted for as a sale of assets,

Upon the ocourrence of a credit event related to the referenced
assel, the SPE will deliver securities collateral as pavment 1o
the Firmi, which eéxposes the Fim 1o changes in the
collateral’s vahes,

Deerivative payments by the SPE are collateralized. The risks
associaled with these and similar denvatives with SPEs are
essentally the same as those with non-SPE counterparties amd
are managed as partl of the Firin's overall exposure,

December 2022 Farm 10-K
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Cithver Structwred Finencings

The Fam invests an anterests ssued by entibies that develop
and own low-income communities {including low-income
housing projects) and entities that construct and own facilities
that will generate energy from rencwable resowrces. The
ineresis entitle the Firm to a share of fax credns and tax
losses generated by these projects. In addition, the Firm has
issued puarantees to Investors i cerlam Jow-meome housing
funds, The guarantees are designed 1o retum an investor's
contrbuation 1o @ fund and the invesior™s share of Bx losses
and 1t credits expected 10 be generated by the fund. The
Fum 15 also involved with entities designed 10 provide tax-
elficient yields to the Firm or its clients.

Collateralized Lowan and Debst bligations

CLOs and CDXOs are SPEs that purchase 3 pool of assets
consigting of corporate loans, corporate bonds, ABS or
symthetic exposures on similar assets through dervatives and
s multple tranches of Jdebl and equity securilies 1o
investors. The Frm underwntes the securiies issued in
certain CLO transactions on behalf of wnaffiliated sponsors
and provides advisory services to these unaffiliated sponsors,
The Firm sells corporate boans to many of these SPEs, in
some cases representmg a sigmificant portion of the total
assets purchased. Although not obligated, the Fimm generally
makes o market in the securities issued by SPEs in these
transactions and may retam unsold securities. These benefcial
interests are incheded in Trading assets and are measured m
fair vahue.

Egquity-Linked Notes

ELN transactions are designed to provide investors with
exposure 10 certam risks related to the specili equity security,
equity mdex or other index. In an ELN transaction, the Firm
tvpacally transfers to an SPE either & note isued by the Firm,
the payments on which are hinked 10 the performance of &
specific equily security, equity index oF other mdex. or debt
securities issued by other companies and a derivative contract,
the terms of which will relate to the pcrfmnﬂm of a specific
equity security, equity index or other index. These ELN
transactions with SPEs were not consolidated at December
31, 2022 or December 31, 2021

Dhecemiber 2022 Faren 1021
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Transferred Assets with Continuing Involverment
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The previous tables include transactions with SPEs in which
the Firm, acting as principal, ransferred financial assets with
contmuing involverrent and receved sales treatment. The
transferred  assets are camed m far valee poor o
securitization, and any changes in fair value are recognized in
the income statement. The Farm may ect ax wnderwniter of the
benelicinl interests issued by these securiteration vehicles, for
which Investment bankmg revenues are recognized. The Firm
miay retain interests in the securitized financial assels as one
or more tranches of the sccuritization. Cerlain retamned
intérests are carmed ot Tair vahse in the balance sheet with
changes i for value recognized inthe income statement. Fair
value for these mierests is measured using techniques that are
consisent with the valuation techniques applied to the Firm's
major categories of assets and linbalittes as desenbed in Notes
Zand 5. Further, as permitted by applicable guidance, certain
transfers of assets where the Fim's only continuing
involvement is & derivative are only reported in the following
Asgets Sold with Retained Exposure 1able

Froceads from Mew Securitization Transactions and Sales of
Loans

§ i o v d 221 fasrai}

Hirar Waraadions’ 4 22,138 § HPA3A 5 B4
IRt el i s 4,862 ¥ ] 046
Ealas of copediis [aans 20 CLD SPES" 7 B2 168 783

1 Ml gl en few ansietiong: and sabes o soeprale ke i OLO et af e
tira & tha sl were n2d maberdal S a0 paricds rsesad

2 Bgenssted by hen 256

The Firm has provided, or otherwise agreed 1o be responsible

for, representations and warmanbes regarding certain assels

transferred in secuntization transactions sponsored by the

Firm {see Mote 13)

Assets Sold with Retained Exposure

At L
Decembar 34,  Dwcarmtsr 21,

4y i 202 a0
Gross cish procescs. from sale of assets”  § Apose £ [Pl ]
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The Firm enters into tmansactions in which it sells securities,

primarily equities, and conlemporanccusly  enters Mo

bilateral OTC  denwatives with the purchasers of the

securities, through which it retaing exposuse 1o the sold

SECUETES,
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17. Regulatory Requirements
Regulatory Capital Framework

The Firm is an FHC under the Bank Holding Company Act of
1956, as amended, and &5 subject io the regulstion and
oversight of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System (“Federal Reserve™). The Federal Reserve establishes
capital requirements for the Fim, inchuding “well-
capitalized” standards, and evaluates the Firm's compliance
with such capital requirements. The OO establishes simalar
capital requirements and standards for the Fim‘s U5, bank
subsidiaries, including, among others, MSBENA and
MSPENA  (wgether, “US  Bank  Subsiiaries”), The
regulatory capital requirements are largely based on the Basel
11 capual standards established by the Bascl Committee on
Banking Superviaton and also implement certain provisions of
the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Agt In addition, many of the Firm's regulated subsidianes are
subject to regulatory capital requirements, ncluding regualated
subsichanes provisionally registered as swap dealers with the
CFTC or conditionally registered as security-based swap
dealers with the 3EC or registered as broker-dealers or fuiures
com mission merchants.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Firm s required to mamntan minmum nsk-based and
leverage-based capital rattos  under  regulatory  capital
requirements. A summary of the calculations of regulatory
capital and RWA follows,

Risk-Based Repulatory Copitel, Risk-based capital ratio
requirements apply to Common Equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1
capital and Total capital (which includes Tier 2 capital), each
as a percentage of BWA, and consist of regulatony minimum
required ratios plus the Firm's capatal buffer requirement.
Capital requrements require certamn adjustments (o, and
deductions from, capital for purposes of determming these
oS

CECL Deferral. As of December 31, 2021, the nsk-based and
leverage-based capital amounts and ratios, as well a5 RWA,
adjusted average assets and supplementary leverage exposure
were ciloulated excluding the effect af the adepion of CECL
based on the Firm's election to defer thas effect over a five-
vear transition period that began on Janary 1, 2020, [n 2022
the deferral impacts began o phase in at 25% per year and
will become fully phased-in beginning m 2025,

December 2022 Farm 10-K
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Capital Buffer Requiremants
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The capital buffer requirement represents the amount of
Common Equity Tier 1 capital the Firm must mamtan above
the mimimum risk-based capital requirements in order to avoid
restrictions on the Firm®s abslity to make capital distributions,
including the payment of dividends and the repurchnse of
stock, and 1o pay discretionary bonuses o executive officers.
The Firm's capital buffer requirement computed under the
standardized approaches for caloulating eredit nsk and market
risk RWA (“Standardized Approach™) 15 equal to the sum of
the 3CB, G-SIE capital surcharge and CCOyE, and the capital
buffer requirement computed under the applicable advanced
approaches for calculating credit risk, market risk and
opeational risk RWA (" Advanced Approach™) is equal to the
2 5% capital conservation bulfer, G-SIB capital surcharge and
CCyvR
Risk-Based Regulatory Capital Ratio Requiraments
At Ducamber
At At 3, 222 ara
Dacembar 31, Cocamber 31, Deemie 31,
w1 2021
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EWA reflects both the Firm's on- and ofl-balance sheet nsk,
as well as capimal charges attnbutable 1o the risk of loss
arising [rom the following:

* Credit Risk: The falure of a bomower, counterpasty or

issuer to meet its financial obligations to the Firm,

Market Kisk: Adverse changes m the level of one or more

market prices, rates, indices, volahilities, commelations or

other market factors, such as market liquidity; and

+ Operational Risk: Inadequate or faitled processes or systems
from human factors or from external events (eg., frand,
theft, legal and compliance risks, cyber attacks or damage
to physical assets),
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The Firmi’s nsk-based capital ratios are computed under both
(i} the Standardized Approach and (u) the Advanced
Approach. The credit nsk RWA calculations between the two
approaches differ in that the Standardized Approach requires
calculation of RWA using prescribed risk weights, whereas
the Advanced Approsch utilizes models to caloudate exposure
amounts and rsk weights, At December 31, X222 and
December 31, 2021, the differcnces between the actual and
required ratio were lower under the Standardized Approach.

Leverape-Based Regulatory Capital Leverage-hased capital
recuirements include a minimum Tier | leverage ratso of 4%,
a minimum SLE of 3% and an enhanced SLE capital buffer
of at least 2%

The Firm's Regulatory Capital and Capital Ratios
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1.5, Bank Subsidiaries” Regulatery Capital and Capital
Ratios

The OCC establishies capital requirements for the 175, Bank
Subsidianes, and evaluates their compliance with such caputal
requirements. Regulatory capital reguirements for the U5
Bank Subsidiaries are caloulated m a similar manner to the
Firm's regulatory  capital requirements, ahhough G-3IB
capital surcharge and SCB requirements do not apply to the
115, Bark Subsidiaries.

The OCC's regulatory capital framework mchedes Prompt
Comective  Action  (“PCA”) standards, incleding  “well-
capitalized” PCA standards that are based on specified
regulatory capital ratio minimums, For the Firm 1o remain an

124

370/415

oOoOooodn



Table of Contenis
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FHC, its U.5. Bank Subsidiaries must remain well-capitalized
in accordance with the OOC"s PCA standards. In addition,
fwlure by the U5 Bank Subsidianes to mest minimum
capital requirements may resull in certain mandatory and
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could
have a direct matenal effect on the LS, Bank Subsidiaries”
and the Firm's financial statements

At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, MSBNA and
MSPENA  risk-based capital ratios are based on the
Standardized Approach rules At December 31, 2021, the
risk-based and levernge-based capital amounts and ratics, as
well as RWA, adjusted average assets and supplementary
leverage exposure were caleulated excluding the effect of the
adoption of CECL based on the Firm's election to defer this
effect over a five-vear transition periced thal began on January
1, 2020 In 2022 the deferral impacts began to phase i a1
25% per year and will become fully phased-in beginning i
2025

MS8NAs Regulslory Capital
Al Decamber Al Dacesnies
L A i, 23 35 2021
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Addionally, MSBNA 13 conditionally registered with the
SEC a8 a sccurity-based swap dealer and 1= provisionally
regastered with the CFTC as o swap dealer. However, as
MSBENA 15 prudentially regulated as a bank, its capital
requirements continue 1o be determined by the OCC,
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rther Hegulatory Capital Hequirements
MS5&Co. Regulatory Capital
At a1
§ 1% A o M, 2022 D ke 31, 3021
Hst capital ] 17,224 5 13323
Excass na! cagital 13,061 1 20

MS&Co. 15 regstered as a broker-dealer and a futures
commission mercham with the SEC and the CFTC,
respectively, and provisionally registered as o swap dealer
with the CFTC

A< an Ablemative Net Capital broker-dealer, and in
accordance with Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (*Exchange
Act™) Rule 13¢3-1, Appendix E. MS&Co. is subject to
minamum net capital and tentative net capital requirements
and operates with capital 1n excess of its regulatory capital
requirements.  As o fuwres commission merchant and
provisionally-registered swap dealer, M3&Co, & subject to
CFTC capital requirements. In addition, MS&Co. must netify
the SEC if 11s tentative net capital falls below certam levels.
At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, MS&Co.
excecded its net capital requirement and had tentative net
capital in excess of the mmmum  and  nolification
reguIrements

Other Regulated Subsidiaries

The following subsidiaries are also subject to varigus
regulatory capilal requirements and operated wath capital in
excess of their respective regulatory capital requirements as of
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, as applicable;

= M3SE, a registered LS, broker-dealer and imiroducing
broker for the futures business, 1s subject 1o, respectively,
the minimum met capital requirements of the SEC and
CFTC.

= MSIP, a London-based broker-denler subsidiary, 15 subject
o the capital requirements of the PRA. MSIP 15 abso
conditionally registered with the SEC as a secunity-based
swap dealer and provisionally registered with the CFTC as
a swap dealer, Wt s currently complying with homes
country capital requirements in liew of SEC and CFTC
capital requirements pursuant to applicable substibuted
compliance rules and interim no-action relief.

+ Morgan Stanley BEwrope Holdings SE Group ("MSEHSE
Group™), incheding MSESE, a Germany-based broker-
dealer, 5 subject to the capital requirements of the
European Central Bank, BaFin and the German Central
Bank MSESE is also conditionally registered with the SEC
05 security-based swap dealer and provisionally registered
with the CFTC as a swap dealer. Pursuant 1o mterim no-
action relief, MSESE = curremly complving with home-
country  capiial requirements in bew of CFTC capial
reguirements. Pursuant to nterim no-action reliel as of vear
end 2022 and then apphcable substiuied compliance niles
with effect from January 1, 2023, MSESE has been
complying with home-countny capital requirements in lisu
of SEC capnal requirements
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MSMS, & Tokye-based broker-dealer subsidiary, is subject 18. Total Equity

1o the capital requrements of the Financial Bervices

Agency. MSMS is also provisionally registered with the Morgan Stanley Sharcholders” Equity
CFTC as a swap dealer but 15 currently complying with

home-country capital requirements in liew of CFTC capital FPrefarted Stock

require ments pursiant 1o interm no-action relief Shares
« MSCS, o U8 entity and the Firmi's primary non-honk _Shtwanging Samying onivy
security-based swap dealer, 15 condibionally registered with fhmmow e gy - auidaion - M. B "‘;-3'_
the SEC a5 a secunity-hased swap deaber, registered with the o 022 par Srare M2z 2021
SEC as an OTC denvatives dealer and provisionally Suriet
registered wah the CFTC as & swap dealer. MSCS is A ABO0 5 25000 % 1488 5 1000
suhject 1o the capital requirements of both regulatons, =4 518,842 1,000 40 408
« MSOG, & US. enhity, 5 provisimally registered with the E M, 500 25,000 2T BA2
CFTC as a swap dealer and 15 subject to its capital " o L s 850
requirements. ] 40800 25000 10 1.000
+ E*TRADE Secusities LLC, o registered broker-dealer, is e e L
;I.I&bé‘cd. to the mmimum net capital requirements of the o ‘“:m e % o
- N 3,000 100,000 00
ETE and ETSE were each previously subject to the capital f',, by gﬂ ;‘ﬂ 120
requureinents of the OOCC until January 1, 2022, when ETSB oy et as e oy 7
merged with and into ETB, and subsequently ETE merged T — e

with and into MSPBNA, with MSPBMA as the surviving
bt 1. Senias C prafemad siock is held by MUFG
2 Tha Fam isisd Saies P Pratemsd Siock on Augu 2, 2002

Certmn other U5, and non-ULS, subsidianies of the Firm are The Firm's preferred stock has a preference over ils common
subject to variows securities, commoditics and banking  siock wpon liquidation, The Fim's prefermed stock qualifies as
regulations, and capital adequacy requirements promulgated ardd i inchuded i Tier 1 capital in accondance with regulatory
by the regulatory and exchange authorities of the countries in capital requirements {see Note 1T}
which they operate. These subsihanes have also consistently
operated with capital in excess of their local capital adequacy Dascription of Preferred Stock as of Dacamber 31, 2022
TequIFCMens. = Pndaigion
. Shares Sharss | Frics X
Hestrictions on Payments Sntia lssuee  pear Shars  par Shane e’
A 44,000 100§ 25000 Cumerly recesmabis
1080 Hia 1108  Curendy rideamahle
34 500 1,000 26,000 Otobear 16, 2023
3,000 1000 26,0400 Jaruiry 15, 2024
40,000 1,000 25,000 Ociober 16, 2004
40,000 1000 25,0000 Apl 15, 20EF
il ] LR it January 15, Hiks
400,000 i, 1000 Sepember 15, 2058
1,000 10 10 Ootioker 2, 226
52 000 1,000 25,000 Jarunry 15, 2027
40,000 L] 25,000 Owtobar 15, 2T

%

The regulatory capital requirements referred to above, and
certain covenants contained in varnous aprecments goveming
indehtedness of the Firm, may restrict the Firm's ahility 10
withdraw capital from sts subsidizries. The followmg table
represents net assels of consolidated subsidiaries that may be
restricted as to the payment of cash dividends and advances 1o
the Parent Company

T == mm

UL

AL A
Deoembar 11,  Decamiber 11,
£ i e 2022 2021
Rasricing nal assaty 3 45808 5 T 1 Hu-cnhum.lm non-ciATRdstive. Each sharm bas 5 par vk of $3001, ascept

2 Cividands on Sares A soe based on i Aosting rate. and diviclenc on Serkes ©, L
and 0 are bansc on s fund rate. Déviddendls on all o Series e basad on a fesd
b Pt

3. Sty A a0 T n cecliarnalde o8 the saderiplion price phos addroscl and uspaid
dividerds magidime of whatsn dhidenchs e atuslly Seclired, up B2 B
avhuckng ihe daln of mdamption A o Saied e (edesirabls W e
RSO ol phi iy Shclinsd wnd ufga dhedieics o & Bul aechusng the

Frioami el 10 Sk, A0 OB Serias a0l redesmiabes, ol e Farrs opticn (i) i whols
oF P, RS B 1D e on By dadand piorend e on of a%er the
PR n dats o (K) i whobs Bl nol i pairt o sy e withen B0 das Tollowing a
Capial WRMmE Eanl (o described n B e of Tl Saes)
5 Seis O i nonovoling petpstual pee'eimed siock Dhadesds on e Saiss C
pratenead siock e paysbls, on & nonolirudsbye basie, a8 wnd 1! declarsd by the
Bowd ol Dveciors, i cash of the rain of 19% pav annam of e Bgueidation
pra‘eence of 51 000 par shas
Serias M and N Prefamed Stock wers issoed on Oclober 2 2000 pant of the
acrpsnition of C*TRADE
Th Fiamn el Sevies © Preiemed Slock on Octobes 35, 2021

-~ =
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Roliferaard of Commen Stock Quistanding

i o 20E 021

Skases cusianding At bagirring of pedod 1,712 1,880
Tiedsary sock purchases’ [124) [LE T
Issunnce for the acouistion of Ealon Vancs - .
Crbar 27 27
Shares putsinnding a0 end af period 5678 1772

! Tha Fems Dosd of Dewctore has sethoresd the mpechess of the Fam's
oifstanding siock undes § share mpachass pmgren (‘Sham  Reputhase

chade r
2 mmummmmmmmmmm
imugsd for RSL conwersions

Share Repurchases

F it e 2022 2021
R&um:m af commen stock urder the Fim's
ars Fegaachacs Prograny

§ 9368 5 17454

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
Morgan Stanley
Dividends
] 3”2? 2
e : i) T
AR T Share'  Tesal BMH Toled  Share’  Towml

Preferfad Stock Sersa

A S1061 § 4T 51022 5§ 44 51007 5 44
c 100 L. 104 -3 100 Bl
E 1,781 B0 1781 B 178 /]
F e 86 LN - W B
= - - il M| 143 (]
] 1504 G4 s ] 1504 5
E - - ma 15 1213 4
K 1,463 59 1483 5 1463 5
L 1,218 FL I W ] | 1. Fal
et a0 4 5 e - -
N 5,300 B0 % = —
o* 1,083 55 il 3 - p—
P TR 20 — — — —
Tt Praferred stock 5 48D § déa 3 498
G Sk $2.050 $6.1080 S0 ShA $i400 Srioe

On June 27, 2022, the Firm announced that fis Board of
Directors approved a new multi-year repurchase authorization
of up to 320 ballion of outstanding common stock, without a
set expiration date, begimning in the third quarter of 2022,
which will be exercised [rom tmme to tme a5 conditions
warrant

Pursuant to the Share Repurchase Program, the Firm
considers, among other thinps, business segmenl capital
needs, a5 well as stock-based compensation ansd benefin plan
requurements. Share repurchases under the program will be
exercised from time w0 tme a1 prices the Fim deems
appropriate subject to varicus factors, including the Firm's
capatal pesition and markel conditions. The share repurchases
may be effected through open markel purchases of privately
negotmted transactions, including through Kule 10b3-1 plans,
and may be suspended at any time,

Common Shares Cuistanding for Basic and Diluted EPS

i 2 A Ay
Waaigheg = aRarag o X

Bunic T amen s 1E0
E"o:lh-u-!'l:l’l_luhnﬁﬂ.ls -dPSUI: e b = 2
*:13 lmnnﬂ-n'lnitmhlhﬂil.-dlu‘lid i 4,743 i.Atd 15
Weighted aversge M‘lﬂv“ ] :I-wl

ivalnnis Jaxd fezatny T

snd EPS} 3 —

1. Commos and Pra‘smed Siock dwidends we payabls quanisrly unkess olhensvss

:

2 Anotice of pederphion wa mued o Seies M pre'smed siock on Mowambes 19
071 Dendends declarsd on Seres M ‘oliowang The lsusecs of the nolics of
TR greinac a InBermal B and arw sk fegr tha 2001
amcunty

3 Gewian § was payables pemisrnislly il Ay 15 20 aftee whchi # was payabls
Mmﬂhimw

& Serims bk in paable secianouslly untl Septarier 15, 2558 and S e wll be

it quettidy
5. Seis N i paysble samisonusly ool March 15, 2023 and teaaftes will b

i ety
B Sens b piysbbe secisonuoly onsl Saoary 15, 2027 e thensafter will ba

prpiin quasimy
Accumulated Other Comprahensive Income (Loss)'

Pansmn Cank
AFS and Flow

0 o CLDacive oot - BN (ke T
Cwcomarritagsr 111,

o019 5 (AT S 20T 5 (M S(1AN4) 5 — S(27eE)
O during

[ ] » 162 0500 146 {1002} — L]
DCacaritsser 31

200 [T} LR Bl (2 A8} - 1)
| ouring the

i (207 (.42} (53 EEZ = (1140
Dracaarnies 31,

202 {1,002} 245 i1y (1) — [0
O] aurieg e
et oo I R L/ o
Decamber 31,

g §1,204] 5 (41521 § (508} 5 (M5) 5 {4 $(6.25%
CTA—Cumalstien Somign ¥ acdaritrants

1 Arunts ane et of b e nonsontrcling intenmts
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Components of Period Changes in 0| .
2022 Pour hecatt gain conmem
Pretan  Inoome  Aterdax  Nors § v o (Loss)  (Provision}  (Loss)  Iroeresis Nt
Gar  TaxBere'™  Gaim  eormeling ETA
1y mi (Less)  (Provsess)  (Loas)  Geoeceas Hat
CTA RG] metiity i M5 Wi 1% & 5 108
001 activity $ (TElS (21718 poE % (138) & (261) Riechissified v samings B = ] = 13
Rucassiied o sarings — = P o = Kat OCI 3§ 714 o 5 i § s
Hat OCI S {79 F (1SS (M5 [138) 3 (209 Crange Im net unreslired guins (losses) on AFS securities
Thargs In net unrealized geine (sses) an AFS securitios LG achiy BRI ONOEE LAWY =R
00 astivity HETH) S 100 5 43E0 % - §{4,387) Rueclisilied o pamiegs (137} L =) . = o)
Baclssiied meamings {¥0) i (4] - s4) Hat OC| 057 8 WiTid isen § — 5 LA
et OCI 5,790} § 1,350 5 (4437] 5 — §{4,437) i ]
Penslon and ket CrCl mcihviny ¥ 182 § (33 13 5 — § 128
OC1 aesity s ms  (ms W — 3 g 2 TeckedSeweameg 2 1w = 8
Ruchissi®d osarings 23 i) 1= s 18 Lo <R I SN T A AN
pihseers T TS e Crange In ot OVA
Thargs in ne OWA O actvity 41,388} § AT S (LS (28 S{1.022)
O activity S5 8 (4B S 1862 3 83 S 44 i SR M 20 i
Fishina g 16 samings = = = B i Nt OCI 51,350 % 331§ (1033} 5 (26) 5(1.003)
NetOCl 51882 5 (4B S 1362 3 83 § 1448
‘Changs In fair valus of cash flow hadge dervatives Cumulative Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments
OC1 ity 5 4% — 5 4 % — 5% W At Al
Raclsnsi o sarmings - - - -5 = Decambar 31, Dwcernber 31,
NetOE % s — 35 s — 5 § i ommcr 2022 2
Asanciatag Witk Fa iFvesimants in
021 sizBaitirig with & non-Ll, 5, dolar
Precan bcomeTes Afertax  Nons BECRINM IR » Lo [T
Gair #fi  Gan corfoling Haages, Fat of b 1532 1278
£ mesciia Lows) Prodsice)  Lossl  Mlarests  Mat Tl z T Dosg
e T i o i b oot —
Het QLI 5 (140} § (191} 3 (E¥} 5 (124 § (207}
Ehare s et uretRaed ahing (rbere] on APS securiien Cumulative foreign currency translation adiustments include
O activity #1003} & sz 8 1am s — Sipan1) gains or bosses resulting from translating foreign currency
Reclassibed 5o samrings (210} oo (18 — i} finance] statements [rom  their respective  functional
Mt oc 2013} s AT1 S (1542} % — 51542} currencies 10 U135 dollars, net of hedge gains or losses and
Penslon and othee related tax effects. The Firm uses foreign currency contracts
A activity £ (10p 5 & 5 (e s - & {16} o manage the cumency exposuse relating fo s pet
Bochssifecmarings M @ 2 0 0 — 2 investmenis in non-U0S.  dollar  functional  currency
kel 5 s s s — % e subsidiories and determines the amount of exposure to hedge
Change in na OV on a pre-tax basiz. The Firm may also elect not to hedge s
Sty o P S Lok A8 2 net investments in certain foreign operations due to market
::t*d;’lhh.?"“’. S g?: - L%i E;; — &.;,;. conditions or other reasons, including the availability of
VArIERIS Sumensy conlracts ol acceptable costs. Information
relatng 1o the effects on cumulstive forelgn currency
translation adjustments that resulted from the translation of
foreign currency financial statements and from gains and
leases from hedges of the Firm™s net investments m non=L1 5,
dollar functional currency subsidinries is summanzed in the
previous table.
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& iy mi
Interest income
IRl Saouriies

Hrr a0 et

§ YMEE 5 Ve85 TIAT
Loans 6388 Fi- ] 4,142
‘Encurities purchased LPoer agPesments (o
Feiall’

2188 [LELY 454
Bacurities borowed’ 1830 (1800 {BA2)
Traging assets, res of Traging Rabdises ZAS4  ZEO8 2T
Cusioned moeirables and Other’ 5549 1563 1515
Tital Irtemat bncomms 5 1895 5 9411 § 10162
Interant sxpanss
Dmposits 5 1825 & 409 5 e

Beerowings 5054 20 3380
Secunilies Lnde g nesTees. [
m::p

1.0 n ] ]
Besuritie ke Eoi ) 401 410
Cusiomer payables ard Crhed” WA (2 (1.3
Todal inberast axponss 512388 § 1288 § P45
Notiotaesst 3 9337 5 8045 § 6313
iy auteeal pad o P (L= o resll
inchdes lews paid on Secirtey bomesd

Il interest 'ﬁﬂm-il:lﬁl'lﬂ

= N e

v
Inchatin fiis recsived from Equly Financing conkomens salited 42 thes sher
Irarvactions, whish i bi ondar tfer Mgn of sRcurtie bndng srangacent

Interest ncome and Interest experse are classified in the
income statement based on the nature of the nstrument and
related market conventions. When included as a component of
the instrument’s fair value, interest is included within Trading
revenues or Investiments revenues. Otherwise, it is included
within Interest income or Interest expense

Accrued Interest
At A
Datambar X1, Daceenibes 31,
% it mieem EE Ford]
i BN o ] 4133 §.BO0
Cusiomer and ot pay 4373 2184

20, Deferved Compensation Plans and Carded
Interest Compensation

Steck- Based Com pensation Plans

Certain current and former employees of the Firm participate
in the Fim's stock-based compensation plans. These plans
include R5Us, PSUs and an ESPP.

Stock-Based Compansalion Exponsa

£ ¥ e Hoxd Firdl 030

REUs § 1827 5 1AM 5 1070
PSlks Ll Pt LLF
ESPP -] - -
Teral 3 1375 5 2085 5 1092
Reatiewrne-akgibis awards’ § 176 § fsz § 187

B Tt separs nchedes sioch braed compenaation wdicipated o be svanded n
Jantisey of T Tolloang yaa thal doss ot contain & LANE Safvice IR ErETRL

129
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Morgan Stanley

Tax Benefit Related 1o Slock-Based Compensation Expenso

Ll

Tax baret' 5

I 8 4% 5 200

1. Exchuden incoms Bix 3
conwankang

shuare-Eansd mwarl

relatec to mmph

Unrecognized Compansation Cost Related to Stock-Based
Awards Grantad

Af
Dacamiser 31,

A o 2o0z2"

Tar e rmecgrived in!

23 £ (28]
n24 EE
Tharne e L
TeAal 3 T3

1 Armounts do not inchide o, Gure Afueimieds 10 T ke G Cenien
it of TITE e YR Lo Sad in Saruany 23 whish
will Bergn by bR araciticed i 2003

In connection with  awards  wnder s stock-Based
compensation plans, the Firm 15 authonzed 1o sswe shares of
commaon stock held intreasury or newly 1ssued shares.

The Firm generally uses treasury shares, il available, 1o
deliver shases 1o emplovees or employves stock trusts mnd has
an ongoing repurchase authorization that includes repurchases
in  conmnection  with  awards under s stock-based
com pensation plans.

Commaon Shares Available for Future Awards under Stock-
Basad Compansation Plans

L]
Decamier 31,
T M Fiirkd

Ehares 134

See Note 18 for additional information on the Firm's Share
Repurchas: Program

Hestricted Stock Units

R5Us are subjpeat to vesting over tme, generally one 1o seven
vears [rom the date of award, contingent upon continued
employment and subject to restnctions on sale, transfer or
assighment until conversion to common stock All of a
portion of an award may be forfeited if emplovment s
terminted before the end of the relevant vesting period of
canceled after the relevant vesting penod in certain situations.
Recipienis of RSUs may have voting rights, at the Firm's
diseretion, and generally receive dividend equivalents of the
awards vest
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Wik ren
Humbser of  Award Daps

shiris inmBlong Shaes  Fair valie
REUS a2 baginneg of panod B 5 B0I?
Awemrdud F=1 .81
Conversinn 1 comman siack (35 &L
Forstad ri] T
REUs ot and of period’ £ 5 76
ﬂwtﬂl irirces vl of REUS at erd of padi!

e i mllicng) L) 4168
Weighted aversge award dote falr value
REUS awarded in 2021 i
PV b i b 20 Lt

i M Decimibr 31 2022 tha wesghibad] freded ok remisenang te ol defeery oo the
cutwtanding RS was spprossmalely § 2 yeors

Unvestad REU Activity
L
ey
Burmtesr of Mug:br
Shasie it esien s Shames Fir Vs
Unwiirilied RELIE &) baginning of peiod n 5 [
Awardnd = 2
Wased (=] =218
Fiatnd 4] e
Unwaated REUs Itmdﬂ!plﬂnd-" 35 3 B4

1 Uheisled RELE repriienl swsids whins recipienis s pal i salnly dslber i
aapheil wealing s oF oeliiid slgilde iepEamenis

Fair Valup of RSU Activity'

& iy mi HrE el | i)
Conversions o common 5ok F 21 5 188 5§ 1258
Vasied 2433 1E4T 1,288

1 Fas whos of Sorvivtad slodk i Bikadd cn B shans poets of conwanikn Pl vahe of
it Aok Badad oh P Al [l 6 i ol wiing

Performance- Based Stock Units

PSUs will vest and convert te shares of common stock only if
the Firm satisfies predetermimed performance and market-
based conditions. over a three-year performance persod. The
number of P3Us that will vest ranges from (%6 to 1302 of the
targel award, based on the extent 1o which the Firm achieves
the specified performance goals, Onelall of the award is
eamed based on either the Firm's avemge retum on equity,
excluding certain adjustments (“M3 Adpested ROE™) or for
awards granted beginmang in 2021, the Firm's average returm
on tangible common equity excluding certain adjustmemts
(M35 Adjusted ROTCE™). The other half of the award will be
earmed based on the Firm's total shareholder return, relative 1o
the total sharcholder revemn of the S&P 500 Financials Sector
Index {“Relutive MS TSR™) PEUs have vesting, restriction
and canceliation provisions that are generally similar to those
of RSUs. At December 31, 2022, approssmately 2.5 million
P55 were cutstanding.

Diecember 2022 Foren V0K

0000000000(E05871)
0000000
Morgan Stanley
PSU Fair Valua on Award Data
20E2 Foers] Farrar]
W& Adpsmed ROTCEROE 510012 § T4ET 5 BT DS
Falaien LIS TER 10EAT &30 BE 30

The Relative MS TSR fair vablees on the award date were
estimated using & Monte Carlo simulation and the following
aﬂumptmns.

Monta Carle Simulation Assumplions

Rk Fras SHiock Price  Comelaon
Intems: Fra Werlaiiey Coafichart

Aweard yoar

M2z 1A% 350 % e
021 0z% W% anz
020 15% “o% ass

The risk-free imerest rate was determined based on the viekds
available on ULS. Treasury sero-coupon issues. The expected
stock  price volatility was determaned  usmg  historical
volatihity, The correlation coelficient was developed based on
historical price data of the Firm and the S&F 300 Financials
Sector Index, The model uses an expected dividend yaeld
equivalent (o reimvesting dividends.

Deferred Cash-Based Compensation Plans

Deferred cash-based compensation plans generally provide a
refurn 16 the plan participants based upon the perfommance of
each participant’s referenced nvestments.

Dafarred Cash-Based Compansation Expanso

ELL L] . T —
Crefmrad cash-based awards £ ™ 3 05 1
FssiafT o Frfesran oo v i aris (T18] B35 55
Tetal 3 48 5 1.1 5 2
— e
Foetiramant sigitle wvirdi’ 3645 DS 1M

1. Tobsl aspénds nchades defeied cbds bkl corpeiion  Elicpsied 0 b
et by Awidey & W Slicwing phae thal S net condkin B uhee Sivics
PRl

Carried Interest Compensation

The Fum generally recognizes compensation expense for any
portion of camed interest (both realized and unrealized) that
15 allocated to employees,

Carried Interest Compansation Expansa

B iy e 262 e Fareir]
_Em-lrﬂ § 2 0f e !_ 4]
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21. Employee Benefit Plans Weighted Average Assumplions Used to Determinge Net
Pariadic Banafit Exponsa {Incoma)
Pension Plans
Gompananis of Net Periodic Banafit Exponaa {Incama) “Discount min ZEw zaaw A
Espacind bang-term fts of relum on plan
Parsiizn Plard L] 1M % 142 % X%
#: mamea w2 w1 W Fomim of Arurw comperastion incrses A% AN AN
mm:.mmmwo — s it
bt it & eiecind baneRt cbioatin oy wo o The accounting for pension plins involves cerain
i) wis el e aasaly ¢ assumptions and esumates. The expected long-term rate of
t 5E) 43 7 2 :
ot Binartimeson of pho Sierics sost & ? X reurn for the US. CQualified Plan was esimated by
Hat amartization of aciuarial s 3 M =  compuling 1 weighled averige of the underlying long-term
Wit parodic beooflt anpensa 3 1003 103 &= expected reums based on the investment managers” target

Certmn current and Former US. emplovees of the Fim and s
L5, affiliates who were hired before July 1, 2007 are covered
by the 115, persion plan, a non-contributory defined benefit
penston plan that is quabified under Section 01{a) of the
Intenal Revenue Code (“ULS. Cualified Plan™). The US
ualified Plan has ceased future benefnt accruals.

Unfunded supplementary pluns (“Supplemental Flans™) cover
ceftann executives. Labilitics for benelits pavable under the
Supplemental Plans are sccrued by the Firm and are funded
when paid. The Morgan Stanley Supplemental Executve
Fetirement and Excess Plan (“SEREFT), a mon-contnbutory
defined benefit plan that is net qualified wder Sectson 40 (a)
of the Internal Revenue Code, has censed future beneln

sceruals.

Certmin of the Firm's non-UL5. subssdiaries also have defined
benefnt pension plans covering therr eligible curment and
former emplovees.

The Firm's pension plans generally provide pension benefis
that are based on ¢ach emplovee's vears of credited service
and om compensation levels specified m the plans.

Raoltforward of Pra-tax AOC]

F by o maz e 0
Bazinnieg balanoe 5 (Tem 5 (ES1) S (&)
Hat gai (s} Y ma 181
Prioe sarvioe ansl - = 1]
Aenoriienioen of prior serdos cost 1 1 i
Apcrizaton of ret loss. F4 4 P
Changed recagnlped in OC1 52 T 128
Endirg balancs $  (MIE) 5 (vEE S 8

The Firm generally amortizes into net periodic benefit
expenge (income) the unrecopmzed net gains ond losses
exeeeding 10% of the greater of the projected benelit
obligation or the market-related value of plan sssels. The US
pension plans amoentize the unrecognized net gains and losses
over the average life expectancy of parficipants, The
remaining plans generally amortize the unrecognized net
gains and losses and prior service credin over the average
remaining service period of aclive participants.

13

allocations
Benefit Obligation and Funded Status

Roltforward of the Projected Benafit Obligation and Fair Valug
of Plan Assels

Paraion Plars
Sn_m_ i i . i i il P 0
“Reitforward of projected benafit obdgation
Banal: obkgation a1 baginrirg of year ] 4081 5 4,204
Sarvice ooal 1% i
Ininmes! oost m 104
Actianial |gain ) ks’ 1.084] 11223
Plar anmndments - i
Flar: siiBemants i [18)
Bereis pas (a54) 1T
_Projected benefin obligation at end of year § 2807 % A i
Rredoeward of fuir valus of plan nssets
Failr valod of plin &5asle a2 bagering of pear 3 3884 5 3.085
Achal i or plen assetis (-5 4] {188
Emgsloyesr contle g aw Ja
Hearaits paic (198) {217
Pilir: atBaments i 1153
Crfer’ [ -
Fakrvaho of plan ssecs stendofyser % 2416 5 9600
Funde-d {unlunded] status. 5 [454) & 478
Amouris recogrized bn the balsnce shest
Amaly ] 5 117
Lisbiliins (B8 1503
Wit amount recognized 5 [431) & T

1 Prnawdy wlsciy hé mpacl of yeadoeen year decount e Slusions and
changss in mcrality ssuampticne

2 Inchuces e ampact of ‘onsign curency axchangs se changes and ane‘an nio
plan aessls

Accumulated Benefit Obligation

AL Al
Decembsr 31, Ducemsr 31,

F o s 2022 Foied]
Pansion plans 5 2881 § & DE%
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Morgan Stanley

A Desamber 30, 2021

of the Fair Value of Plan Assats Fen— L) LomlZ Lol oo
= i T e R
Sir o “‘;?;T“' i _Iml_’_l_ A Canh aind cash saubvaients 5 9% -3 - ]
Projecid banet: cblizeion s aues e b i B A — 3
Accummiates banefr cbligaton 273 s Coperais and oTwr abi—CO0 T 1 2 1
Fai vaskis of plish Skt 2,180 1178 B ol Coniracts _ 3 _ a
P irems s = = s oy
The penswm plans inchaded i the table above may differ forE— = 2 = 2
based on their funding staus as of December 31 of each year TFotal 5 2760 5 30 5 65 § 2083
Aznaty Measured st NAY
Walghted Average Assumptions Used to Determine Projected Commingiad st funds
Benefit Obligation Winney marks! 11
Pision Plans Forsigr funds:
Ducemior 31, Ducanbes 31, P eI, Lo
R bl Liguidey b
[ 430 % 8% Targewd cash fow Fary
Fealn of hiturm compansation ncreass R 330 % Tetal 5 488
Liakbifitios
The discount rates used to determine the benefit obhpation e paryabla’ ——— T — T
were selected by the Fimn, in consultation with itz Todal lintilities 8 =% (ns =3 {1n
independent actuary. The U3, pension plans use a pension Fulr vnlios of plan svest $ 2k
discount vield curve based on the characteristics of the plans, 1, Ot encaivabli nd chad panablas n vikisd 3 Busir 2aivying vike, whish
APEVEATIINS o vl

each determined mdependently. The pension discount yield
curve represents spot discount vields based on duration
implicit m 4 representative broad-based Aa-rated corporate
bond universe of high-qualbty fced income investments. For
all noa-LLS. pension plang, the sssumed discount rates e

based on the natwre of lishilities, local economic
environments and available bond mdices.
Flan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assats
At Dacamber 31, 2032

§ iy e Loved | LowsdZ Lavedd  Toml
Cash ard cash equivalanis 5 &5 o | -8 A
L.E. puui:m &N agency s788 - _ 208
Compofats and ohar debe—LD0 _ —_ — -
Dmrivative contracts - i s 2
Ottar irvssmasnts - — (] L]
Drbar eaiaivading’ - E3l — 3]
Total $ 123 108 68 i
Ansein Measured ot NAY
Commirgiad st funds:

Mooy market Fri
Fomsign funds:

Flasd i =

[ o

Targated cask foe 53
Total 5 I
‘Liabsitios o
Orbar paryabies = & —— ]
Tosl llabilides E — 3 s — % i3
Falr valua ﬂ'ﬁ-‘“ 5 21!-
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Raoliforward of Level 3 Plan Assels

§ iy i Ered g

Batanon i bagirning of ped ] 0 L3}
Rsalired arad wresalyed gairs — 1
Puschess, sales and sellaments, Fal i) 3
Balarcs ot snd of pariod k] 64 5 B5

There were no translers between levels dunng 2022 and 2021,

The 115 Qualified Plan assets represent £58% and $6% of the
Firm's total penston plan assets at December 31, 2022 and
December 2021, respectively. The U.S. Qualified Plan uses a
combinaion of active and nsk-controlled fixed income
investment strategies. The [ixed mcome asset allocation
consists primarily of fixed income securities and related
derrvative instruments designed to approximate the expected
cash flows of the plan's lmbilities 1o help reduce plan
exposure o interest rate vanation and to better align assets
with the obligation. The [onger-duratton feced income
allocation is expected to help protect the plan's funded stahzs
and maintaan the stability of plan contributions over the loag
run, The mvestment portfolie perfformance 15 assessed by
com paring actul mvestment performance with changes in the
eatimated present value of the 1S, Qualified Flan™s benelit
obligation,

Denvative instruments are permitted m the LS. Cumlified
Plan's investment portfolio only (o the extent that they
comply with all of the plan’s investment policy guidelines and
are consistent with the plan’s sk and return olbjectves,

As a fundamental operating principle, any restnictions on the
underlving assets apply to the respective derivative product.
This includes percentage allocabions and credit quality,
Dervatives are used solely for the purpese of enhancing
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investment retums in the underlying assets and not o
circumvent portfolio restrictions

Plan assets are measured al fair value using valuastion
techriques that are consistent with the valuation techniques
applied to the Firm's major categories of assets and habilities
as described i Motes 2 and 3 OTC derivative contracts
consist of investments m interest rate swaps and fotal retum
swaps., Other investiments consist of msurance contracts held
by non-Ll5.-based plans. The insurance contracts are valued
based on the premium neserve of the insurer for a guanimes
that the insurer has given to the employvee benefit plan that
approximates [mr value. The insumance contracls are
categorized i Level 3 of the fair vabue higrarchy.

Commangled trust funds are privately offered funds regulated,
supervised and subject o peniodic examination by a U5
federal or state agency and available to institutional clients.
The trust must be mamtained for the collective investment ar
reinvesiment of asseis coniributed to i from TS tax-
qualified emploves benefit plans mamtained by more than one
emplover or controlled group of corporations. The sponsor of
the commingled trust funds values the funds based on the fair
valug of the underlyving securities. Commingled trust funds
arg redesmable at NAV ol the measurement date or in the near
fusture,

Some non-L 5 -hased plans hold foreign funds that consist of
investments in fixed income funds, arget cash Now funds and
liguidity funds. Fixed income [unds nvest in individual
securities quoted on a recognized stock exchange or traded in
a regulated market Certain fived income funds aim 1o
produce returns corsistent with certain Fimancial Times Stoek
Exchange indexes. Target cash flow funds are designed 10
provide a senes of (roed snnual cash flows schieved by
investing in government bonds and derivatives. Liguedity
funds place a high pnority on capital preservation, stable
vahue and & high liquidity of assets, Forerzn funds are readily
redeemable at NAV,

The Firm generally considers the NAY of commingled trust
funds and foreagn funds provided by the fund manager 1o be
the best estimate of fair value.

Expected Coniributions

The Firm's policy 15 to fund at beast the amount suflicient 1o
meet minmum funding  requirements  under  apphicable
emplovee benefit and tax laws. At December 31, 2022, the
Firm expected to contnbute approcimately 340 million o its
pension plans n 2023 based upon the plans’ current funded
statis and expected assel rellim asumplions o 2023,

000000000 0(E05871)

0000000
Morgan Stanley
Expacted Future Banefit Paymanis
At Decambur 31, 2022

&y rliaceg Parsion Plaes

A § 148

Faar 183

HILS 168

Heh 168

H27 REL

A0 aar

A04(k) Plans

§ oy i ax .l o]

Exparan ¥ s F a7 5 290

1.5, emplovees meeting certan ehigibality requirements may
participate in the Firm's 400(k) plan.

Morgan Stanley 401{k) Plan

Eligible emplovees receive discretionary J01(k) matching
cash contributions as determined annually by the Firm. The
Firm matched eligible employee contributions up to the [RS
limit at 4%, or 5% up 1o a cerlain compensation level, n 2022
and 2021, Eligihle employees with eligible pay less than or
copanl o S100000 also receved a Nxed contnbution equal 1o
2% of ehgble pay. Transion contribulions rélating 1o
acquired entities or frozen emplovee benefit plans were
allocated o certain  eligible employees through 2020,
Comributions are invested among available funds according
o each panticipant’s investment direction and are incheded in
the Fim's 401(k) expense.

Hon-UL.5, Defined Contribution Pension Plans

3 iy el A mz 200
Enperaa 3 3 3 s i

The Firm maintams separte defined contribution pension
plans that cover eligible emplovees of certain non-113S,
subsidimries.  Under such  plans, benefits are  generally
determined based on a fixed rate of base sulary with certain
vesting requirements.

December 2022 Farm 10-K
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22, Income Taxes Dafarred Tax Assels and Liabilities
At M
WNMEMHMTM Dacambar 1,  Dacembsd 31,
$inmmons e Fliea ]
[T — HE? Freral a0 Gross dofarred tax assets
ELLi 2 : .
p) mlm e e 5 288 % ark
ok E g bl plare
Eacernl $ 2818 5 288 8 184 :ﬂw" e g,_mh" il ot
Smin and baeal 442 Er =] P 11 o
HondlS.: Wi e o i veetary,
UK e a1 305 hmhﬂ::;.r;’;n‘bh 1,743 474
npnn 165 105 185 ik » 18
Hong Kong Ex 182 10k “""_“"""‘“"_" it 5,148 Ao
__ O’ = B&T gl Ry Faluaten 205 208
T T T e garepe v s e
Grows daferred tax Babilitien
Daferrad Eiand ansais #or 1,287
e _aangibie nd goodil 200 o
Feeeerul OB ME 2am Fotal datamed s labikies 5 1838 5 3333
Suate and beal 142 = {28 Mt afaires e naaels 5 21T & 253
HonlS;
En ; *"’f ::" Deeferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
Heng Hong o & i differences between the financial reporiing and tax bases of
e e 2 E assels and lmbilties and are measured wsing the enacted tax
Totsl 3 mans a3 o rates and laws that will be m effect when such differences are
Prgcn for mcoren s ¥ Zow s gme s azme  SXpectediorevense
i Oaheet Mo L5 THE I FO22. X020 med 23D pram ke Dl H . &
ool e vt d The Firm believes the recognazed net defemed tax assets {after

valuation allowance] st December 31, 2022 are more hkely
Reconcilistion of the U5, Federal Statutory Income Tax Rate than not to be realized based on expectations as to future

te the Effective Income Tax Rale taxable income in the junizdictions in which # operates.
2022 2021 ] . . i T y
TP eree—— I A% Rk 'ﬁn earnings -::_E certain foreign subsidiaries and affilies are
PP e TR s 1nd:!i:ul5c|}' n:_url.'cal:t:d :It_m to regulatory and other capital
WS, fadaral rsons s beeaiin 18 Fa a0 requirements in foreign jurisdictions. As of December 31,
Dramasie e ofedics aARd K desfig] nosme (@3) I5) (8] 2022, the unrecognized deferred tax lability atnbutable 1o
Hon-lL5. samings i 14 11 ndefimtely remvested camings 15 5429 milhon.
Ervpleyion ahars haust maardy (.7 {06 L4
Othar (&3] 12} [N Roliforsard of Unrecognized Tax Benefits
Efezhd PLonu Wi Fati TR XS XBAR%
] Bk Ferd) Farrar]
Balance &1 Deginning of pere $§ ST § Tes S Tes
Inraases based on Y posions el e
e cLTent paeioa 256 o] 139
Incranses hagsd of s pomiions relaied =
g pasings [} il e
Ingreasss baied on the acoquisiton of
E*TRADE - = b1 ]
DCracraases hases o o positions rlated to
peior parings (134) 37 (27)
Drscrasiaind ralaladg i 580 e s wit laing
P L] [LL1] 118)
Dworsa ey relatnd o bapss of saauis of
Bmiations [£=] 1z} 190}
Balance al snd of paod 3 143 5 71 § 78S
Mt wr o 1mx banafis’ § 1007 § 220§ BER
i wmgwwmmmwh mpact oof e faceral
B of stula Baies wiin el fotimgn i o
offssts. # recogeiend. Hhess net banafis woukl “avoratly ipact the ettecive L
rals in fuhien paricds
It 15 reasorably possible that significant changes m the
balance of unrecognized tax bemefits may occur within the
next 12 months. A this time, however, it 15 notl possible 1o
Drecember 2022 Farm 10k 134
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reasorably estimate the expected change to the total amount
of unrecognized tax benefits and the impact on the Firm's
effective tax mte over the next 12 months

Interast Expansa (Banafil) Associated with Unmcognized Tax
Banefits, Nat of Federal and Stata Incoma Tax Banefits

£ in i a2 e
Rlﬁog'ln-dlr'hmn-m ,. ﬂ ; 14 5 ]
Mzoued at wnd of penoc 178 142 i34

Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are
recognized a3 & component of the provision for income taxes.
Penalties related to wnrecognized tax bemelits for the years
mentioned above were immatesial,

Eariest Tax Year Subject to Examination in Major Tax
Jurisdictions

Jotach-ilon T Yuar
u.s. I
e Yok Slate ard Mew York City v} [o]
UK. 2011
Japan B
Hong Kong T8

The Firm 15 routinely under examination by the IRS and other
tax authorities i certain countries, such as Japan and the
UK., and in states and locabties in which it has significant
basiness operations, sech as New York.

The Firm beleves that the nesolution of these tax
examinations will not have a material effect on the annual
financial swtements, afthough o resobwtion could have o
material impast in the income statement and on the effective
tax rate for any period in which such resolutions oceur.

Geographic

23 Segment, and  Revenue

Information

The Firm structures i85 segments primartly based upon the
nature of the financial products and services provided 1o
customers and it management organization. The Firm
provides a wide range of financial products and services to ais
customers m each of 115 business sepments: Institutional
Securities, Wealth Management and Investment Management.
For a further discussion of the business sepments, see Mote 1.

Bevenues and expenses  directly  assocunted with cach
respective business segment are meluded in determining iis
operating results. Other revenues and expenses that are not
directly artributable 10 a panicular business segment wre
generally  allocated based on each business sepment’s
respective nel revenues, non-inlerest expenses of other
relevant measures

As a result of revenues and expenses from transactions with
other operating segments being trented as transactions with
extermal parties for purposes of segment disclosures, the Firm
includes an Intersegment Eliminations calegory to reconcile
the business segment results to the consolidated results

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
Morgan Stanley
Salected Financial Information by Business Segmant
LT ;- L It VE Tenall

Irvasim barking 5 52315 § 43 §F = § (T4 5 5599

Tracing 14318 (433 (1) 53 13,928
v [4646) 1] 120 - 16
Comniasionrs mrd fees’ 1756 2,467 — (1 4338
Azl managemes:’ B30 13,872 6,332 (o€ 19,578
Crihae (298] 502 LE ] i
Tl non-inlses] reverue TRANS 16,088 5430 (E3d) 44340
Inises] iccome 13276 8,579 56 (1318 598
Intemest axpanss 1133 2,050 120 (M133H 12.m0

Mg irsistag] 1,955 TA4H 64] T 9,327

et revanuss $34.393 534,447 § 8378 3 {817 §53,868
Provision for creditlosses § 219 8 69 § 2— % — § 280

Companeston and benafis BME 1388 22713 — A
Hon-camgpansion g 8z 5,2H !,E‘II Asety 18,288
Total nan-dnterest B PR I-'l'l'.ll.'r '!‘"' TH '!-I 5“ l m!! ’ﬂ.m

Inconye Bl prindaion for
$ 8718 § 6583 § 00T 3 (1€ §4.0a80

OO LA

_P‘I’Wﬂhﬂrl:.lf!"?t_.‘ﬂ'll'l:lll . _1Aee 1444 162 4 20
M iz SART B.iﬂ 'MII ﬂa 14,478
M incorie apbcabis o

monconboiing et 185 - {15] - 480
Mt Encome applicabls to

Margan Stanley 3 5242 3 5,130 3 680 3 (9 §19.029
iy o [1:3 W I 1E Taisd

Inyaaimen) harking SN02TE 5 B2 % — & {100) 510,504

Trazing 12353 18 (L=1] 82 12310

Invesimanis BT &f T -_ 16

Commissiors and fees’ A 3.040 1 3 BEN

Assnl manspense 843 1A08E  BATE  (154) 10087

Oe s o @m () e

Total non-njerest revecyes A s A5 (8RN S1LNID

Iniems! rcome 3.TE2 5.8 3 q1ex mdN

It apanss 1 Il)'n‘ 41 IR (IS 1068

ot rmernet 2p4s  s3m (w12 s
Mt revenues

lﬂjﬂ-ﬂ- S24.24 36220 3 (541 550765

Provislon for credht losses 5 ins 1M E == - 4
Compsnsaion and bene'es 2168 13080 2373 - 4528
Moo -coumpiansaion aupanaes BESY 4581 2160 (R3S} 15485

Total nen-interest expenees  SIE088 § 14051 5 4542 51@ § 40003

Wi Beforn peiviaion Tor

GO TRERG S04 § Al SR S (B S 1SR
Previskon for income taxes ZT4E 1447 386 () 458
Mt income 0063 4FM 1322 -|-l-.'| 15120
Nl inconis applcebls 1o

_ morcontroling ineeests. (L] - 28} - B
Mt Bnconme whlblibn
Margan Smnliy 5 BOAET § 4,73 S1347 § A4 § 15,004
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00
$ i mesors b WM M Ve Toesd
Invesament barking § rad f 65008 — & (RS 1ET
Tirasting 12,087 Bad (213 I8 13963
Irvesimeis 166 12 o] - nas.
Commissiong and feas” 2w 2 LI N
Ansat marageemet' 481 10855 303 (98T 14202
Db fiF=] 403 () (i) BT
Teral P FeveeLec 24085 15064 3,740 (855) 42444
Intms] incoens sA00 4771 14 (432 10162
|r|llflgil_!|.u_ru :LM_II_ F&0 :E.'ﬂ {448 S@II}
Mol coarns Ie0 A0z (18F 16 B313
Hal Fravanues SIEATE S10086 §3.734 % (530) 548,757
Provision forcreditlosses 5§ 7§ 308 — 3§ — § 761
Cofigrsn kilion and banees 2342 1DATO0 1542 — 20.AB4

Hon-compensation expenses BaSd B0 a0 1T

Total nen-dnterest axparses  SIERGA S185660 € 2R £ (8d0) $33678

Inoomss bafore proviskon for
oo e 5 Hi51 § 4387 § B8R0 5 10 St14.4i8

Prisdsion fof oo Mes & () 1026 1" i 1A
Hat Fcome Fiil 3,381 L] i iiire
Hat ircomes appicable o

rorconimilng st 1] - =4 - T
ot ircoms a cable 1o

Wangan 5 7002 5 3361 5 618 § B 510,596

. Sabstanfinly ol i Wa oom coniracts with ousiores
2 inchades Cartmn e el rny elels B Servioes parodmed gl perods

Duatail of I Lttt Banking R

$ it e 032 w1 2020
IS Tonal SacutitisesAnisony 4
instiutional Secunties—iircermitng

eonimets with customen se% MW M

2,789 E_ 7RG 5,106

Trading Revenues by Product Type

£ i e ok Firrdl 2030

Intimst min i 2as 5 V40§ Zov
Forsign mxchangs 4,585 1,008 [15]
Euity’ 7518 Ta3 5,200
Commnaky and oher 1488 2EM 1782
Cresil [ 1932 pALL

5 13338 5 12810 5 13532

1. Eivwidired incor i incuiied within agulty conlrsts

The previous table summarses realized and unrealized pains
and losses, from denvative and non-derivative  financial
instruments, included in Trading revenues in the income
sttement. The Firm generally utilizes fnancial instniments
across @ vanely of product twpes in connection with its
market-making and related nsk management strategies. The
trading revenues presented in the table are not sepeesentative
of the manner in which the Firm manages s business
sclivities and are prepared in 4 manner smmilar o the
presentatton of trading revenues for regulatory reporting
purpases.
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Morgan Stanley

Investment Management  Investrments  Revanues—Not
Cumulative Unrealized Carried Interast

1} A
Ducembar 34, Decamber 30
5 iy i 2022 2021

Mt punimiative unrealired perfomaarce-
EBasad Tees & ik of reversing £ mip 3 fiF]

The Firm's portion of net cumulative performance-based fees
in the form of wrealized carned interest, for which the Firm
15 hed obligated to pay compensation, s ol risk of reversing
when the return in certmn funds fall below specified
performance targets. See MNote 15 for information regarding
general  partner  pguarantees, which include  potential
obligations to retum performange fee distributions previously
recerved.

Investmen! Managemant Assel Managament Revenues—
Reduction of Fees Due to Fea Wailvers

& iy oiiion) 202 el ] fraieanl
Fiadh Wil vefs F M 3 MBS 135

The Firm waives a portion of its fees in the Investment
Management business segment from cenain registered money
market funds that comply with the requirements of Rule 1a-7
of the Investment Company Act of 1940,

Certain Oiher Fee Waivers

Separately, the Fim's eémplovéss, meluding 5 seruor
officers, may participate on the same terms and conditions as
other investors in certain funds that the Fim sponsoss
primarily for client investment, and the Firm may waive of
lower applicable fees and charges for its emplovees

Other ExpensesTransaction Taxes

i o B L

Trarsacion mes 3 9w s wmes  em

Transaction taxes are composed of secunies ransaction taxes
and stamp duties, which are levied on the sale or purchase of
securities listed on recognized stock exchanges in cerain
markets. These taxes are imposed mamly on trades of equity
securties an Asta oand EMEA. Similar transaction taxes are
levied on trades of hsted denvative instruments in certain
countries,

136

382/415

oOoOooodn



OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
Table of Contenis
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Morgan Stanley
Hel Revenues by Region Assals by Business Segment
Ar A
Fhnmm Lo R Dostembar 31,  Dacsmbar 31,
Aperas § 40917 § 44E05 § Jh45G _s_!.i-._;._____—___:sgg;_____ﬁ W
EMNEA 6211 ¥ EaS EE4G it Secunties 5 TEIEIT § O35
Asin &0 FAsT & T Waalth Managamen TN Areaan
Tedal 5 SMEEL 5 80yAA 5 dATRY Irveaiman! Mehagemee] AT0ES i7.567
Total' k] 19803 & iddan
Income bafore Provision for Income Taxes T —
5t oy M2z 2 2020 .
k- el Total Assoeis
us. $ 5361 S 14082 § 10020 iso oy lion
Hondhs.! 70 BSRS 438 o AL
' Decomber 31, DCacambar 30,
Todsl § 14089 § 10AAR § wddnk in 2032 i
I MonUS mcoms i dened 88 incoms genssed from operstions located ot Americas £ 853,278 % B4R D01
B ELS, ENEL 187,387 204 082
The Firm operates m both 1.5, and non-U.5. markets. The Asta b 126158
. : A : : Total 3 180231 § 1188940
Fimm’s non-U1.5. business activities are principally conducted
and mamaged through EMEA and Asia locations. The net
revenues disclosed in the previows table refleet the regional 2 Parent Company

view of the Firm's consolidated net revemaces on a managesd
basis, based cn the following methodology:

Parent Company Only—Condensed Income Statemant and
Comprahansive Incoma Statemant

Instintional  Securities: Chent location for advisory and 3 i ol L R L
equity underwriting, syndicate desk  location for  deln Ravonuss
underwriting, trading desk location for sales and trading, Divictands froen bark sobricianios % 2A75 5 = § 2811
Cividends from BdC and rorchark subsidlaies  §8681 &8& 1470
Wealth Managemeni:  Amencas, where representatives Tl divicends. frons sulvaidisries 11,536 BEea 2681
operale. Trazing i1,14%) e <)
sl L d .5
Investment Management: Client Iocation, except certain Total non-inbensst ravenuin 10563 9431 37e2
closed-end funds, which are based on asset location Intares rdonme 5805 Zads  dps
bt L
Revenues Recognized from Prior Services [rrpnere— taeT (r4) mie
Mt Favanues 10206 BE5T 4387
— o e -
. Incoren beson incomme tems 9954 BS54 3580
) ) ) Prosision for {banaft feoemi) incoma tases BB ) s
The previous whle includes revenues from contracts with Mot incsna balore Uegitnbuied par o
customers recognized where some or all services were Submidtinies o410 BTE dnes
performed in prior periods. For the years ended December 31, Hadithomc i of winiiuie AL T LA
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Transactions with Subsidinrics

The Parent Company has transactzons with its corsalidated
siibeacharies deéternined on an agreed-upon basis and has
guaranteed certam unsecured lines of credit and contractual
obligations on certain of its consolidated subsidmrnes.

Guarantees

In the nommal course of its business, the Parent Company
puarantees certain of s subsidianes’ obligabions on a
transaction-by-transaction  basis under wvarious  financial
arrangements. The Parent Company has isued guaraniees on
behall of its subsidiares to vanms US and non-US
exnchanges and clearmghouses that trade and clear securities
andror futures contracts. Under these guamnates arangements,
the Parent Company may be requred to pay the Oinancial
obligations of its subsidiaries related 10 basiness transacted on
or with the exchanges and clearinghcuses in the event of a
gubsidiary™s default on its obligations to the exchange of the
cleannghouse, The Parent Company has not recorded any
contmgent liability in s condensed financial statements For
these ammangements and believes that any  potential
requirements o make payments under these arrangements are
remote

The Parent Company also, in the normal course of business,
provides standard indemnities to counterparties on behalf of
its subsidiaries for taxes, including U5 and foreign
withholding taxes, on mtérest and other pavments made on
denvatives, secwnies and stock lensding wansactions, and
certam anmuty products, and may alse provide indemnities 1o
or on behall of affiliates from time to tme for other
arrangements. These indemnity payments could be required,
as applicable, based on a change m the tax laws, change in
interpretation of apphicable tax rulings or claims ansing from
contractual relationships between affiliates. Certain contracts
contain provisions that emable the Paremt Company 1o
termirmte the sgreement upen the occurrence of such events.
The maximum petential amosmt of future payments that the
Parent Company could be required to make under these
indemnifications canncd be estimated The Parent Company
has not recorded amy contingent liability in its condensed
financial stastements [or these indemnifications and believes
that the occurrence of any events that would Ingger payments
umder these contracts is remole.

Morgan Stanley

Guaranteos of Debt Instrumants and Warranis |lasued by
Subsidiarias

Ar Al
Becamber 51, Decembe 31,

Agoregais balancae % 5,13 5 4T 130
Guarantees undar Subsidiary Leasa Obligations
At At
Dacamber 31, Decsmbe 31,
§ iy malicns o Az
Aggragnie belance” 3 s 3 LAl

1 Arounts primaiy relabe o the LK

Finance Subsidinry

The Parent Company fully and unconditionally guarantees the
secunties issued by Morpan Stanley Finance LLC, a wholly
owned fimance subsidizry. Mo other subsichary of the Parent
Company guaraniess these securities.

Resolution and Recovery Planning

A= indicated i the Firm's 2021 targeted resolution plan
submitted to the Federal Reserve and the FDIC, the Parent
Company has entered into an amended and restated suppont
agreement with s material entities (including 1is wholly
owned, direct subsidiary Morgan Stanley Holdings LLC (the
“Fundmg IHC™)) and certain other subsidiaries. Under the
amencded and restated secured support agreement, in the event
of a resolution scenario, the Parent Company would be
ohhgated to contnbute all of s contnbutable assels o s
supported entities and/or the Funding IHC. The Funding THC
would be obligated to provide capital and Dhguidity, as
applicable, 1 its supporied entities, The obligations of the
Parent Company and the Funding IHC under the amended and
restated support agreement are In most cases secured onoa
sentor basis by the assets of the Parent Company (other than
shares in subsidianies of the Parent Company ard certan other
assels) and the sssets of the Funding THC

Diecember 2022 Farm 10-K
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Changes in amd  Disagreements  with
Accountants on Accounting and  Financial
Disclosure

Mone.
Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure
Controls and Procedures

Unader the supervision and with the participation of the Firm's
management, including the Chiell Executive Officer and Chief’
Financual Offscer. the Firm conducted an evaluation of the
elfectiveness of the Firm's disclosure contrels and procedures
{0z defined in Rule 13- 15(¢) of the Secunties Exchange Act
of 1934, s amended (the “Exchange Act™)) Based on this
evaluation, the Chiel Executive Oficer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that the Firm's disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered

by this annual report.

Munagement's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting

The Firm's management is responsible for establishing and
mainiaining adeguate internal control over fimancial reporting
The Fum's imtemal control over fmancial reporting 1=
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of fnancial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with
penerally accepted accounting principles i the United States
of America (U5 GAAPT).

EDINETOOOO
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Morgan Stanley

The internal contrel over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

» Pertain to the mamtenance of records that, in reasomable
detml, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Firm,

+ Provide reasonable assurance that ransactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with US. GAAP amd that recepts and
expenditures are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of the Firm's management and directors, and

= Provide ressonable assurance regarding prevemtion of
timely detection of unauthonzed acquisition, wse or
disposition of Firm assets that could have a material effect
on the Firm's financial stalements.

Because of its nherent limitations, imemal control over
financi| reporiing may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivencss to future
periods are subject to the nsk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree
of complance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management assessed the eflectiveness of the Finm's imernal
contrel over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, In
making this assessment, management used the cnteria set
farth by the Commitiee of Sponsoning Organizations of the
Treadway Commission ("COS0™) in Internal Comtral
Integrated Framework (2013). Based on management's
assessment and those criteria, management believes that the
Firm maintained effective intermal comtrol over financial
reparting az of December 31, 2022

The Fam's independent registered public sccounting fim has
audited and issued a report on the Firms internal control over
financial reporting, which appears below,

Diecember 2022 Farm 10-K
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Morgan Stanley:

Opindon sn Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the intermal control over financial reporting
of Momgan Stanley and subsidiaries (the “Fiam™) as of
December 31, 2022, based on enitena establshed in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013} issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Crpanizations of the Trendway
Commusion (COS0), In our opinien, the Firm mamained, in
all materaal respects, effective intemal control over Nnancial
reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework:
(2013 issued by COSO,

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Cversight Board {United States)
(PCADB), the financial statements of the Firm as of and for
the vear ended December 31, 2022 and our report dated
February 24, 2023 expressed an unsuahfied opinion on those
financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Firm's management is responsible for mantaimng
effective mternal control over financial reporting and for its
asscsament of the effectvencss of inemal comtrol over
financial — reperting,  incheded ;o the  seccompanying
Management's Keport on Internal Comtrol Chver  Financial
Reporting. Cur responsibility 15 10 express an opinion on the
Firm™s internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
PCAOE and are required 1o be independent with respect 10
the Firm i accordance with the U5 federal secunties laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securitics and
Exchange Comm ission and the PCAOB

We conducied our awdit in accordance with the standards of
the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan amd
perform the audit to obtain reasonshle assurance  about
whether effective internnl control over fimancial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Owr audit included
oblaming an understanding of internal contral over financial
reporting,

/s Deloitie & Towche LLE

Mew York, New York
February 24, 2023

Diecember 2022 Foren V0K

assesaing the risk that a matenial weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effecuveness of inmemnal
control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures a5 we consedered necessary m the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion

Definilion and Limitations of Intermal Conirol over
Financial Reporting

A company’s internal contrel over (inancial reporing 15 a
process desmned 10 provide reasonable assarance regarding
the rehability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financea] statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted  accounting  principles. A company’s
internal contral over fmancial reporuing nchades those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain o the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,
(2) provide reasonable assurance thai tramsactions are
recorded as necessary 10 permil preparation of fnancial
stalements in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the com pany
are being made only i accordance with suthorztons of
management and directors of the company, and (3} provide
reasonable Assurance regarding prevention or tmely detection
of unawthorized acquisition, wse, or disposition of the
company’s &sscts that could have a material effect on the
financeal stalem enls

Because of vs inherent limilations, intemal control over
financial repariing may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Alsa, projections of any evalution of effectiveness to future
periods are subjest 1o the nsk that controls may become
madequate because of changes m conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Morgan Stanley:
Opinion on the Financiad Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Morgan Stanley and subsidiaries (the “Firm”) as of December 31,
2022 and 2021, the related consolidated income statements, comprehensive income statements, cash flow statements and statements
of changesin total equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes (collectively
referred to as the “financial statements’). In our opinion, the financia statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Firm as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2022, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have aso audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Firm's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated February 24, 2023, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Firm’s internal control over financia reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Firm’'s management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the Firm's
financia statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to the Firm in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financia statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on atest basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material
to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of
critical audit matters does not ater in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as awhole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or
disclosuresto which it relates.

Vauation of Level 3 Financial Assets and Liabilities Carried at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis—Refer to Note 5 to the
financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Firm'’ s trading and financing activities result in the Firm carrying material financial instruments having limited price
transparency. These financial instruments can span a broad array of product types and generally include derivative, security, loan, and
borrowing positions. As described in Note 5, these Level 3 financia instruments approximate $10.1 billion and $6.1 hillion,
respectively, of financial assetsand liabilities carried at fair value on arecurring basis at December 31, 2022. Unlike financia
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instruments whose inputs are readily observable and, therefore, more easily independently corroborated, the valuation of financial

instruments classified as Level 3 isinherently subjective and often involves the use of unobservable inputs and proprietary valuation
models whose underlying algorithms and val uation methodol ogies are complex.

We identified the valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on arecurring basis as a critical audit matter
given the Firm uses complex valuation models and/or model inputs that are not observable in the marketplace to determine the
respective fair values. Performing our audit proceduresto evaluate the appropriateness of these models and inputs involved a high
degree of auditor judgment, professionals with specialized skills and knowledge, and an increased extent of testing.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on arecurring basis
included the following, among others:

» We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the Firm’s internal controls that address fair value estimates, including model
review and price verification. The Firm maintains these internal controls to assess the appropriateness of its valuation methodol ogies
and the relevant inputs and assumptions used to determine fair value estimates.

» We independently evaluated the appropriateness of management’s significant valuation methodologies, including the input
assumptions, considering the expected assumptions of other market participants and external data when available.

» We developed independent fair value estimates for selected Level 3 financial instruments, using externally sourced inputs and
independent valuation models, and used such estimates to further evaluate management’s fair value estimates. For certain of our
selected Level 3 financial instruments, this included a comparison to the Firm’s fair value estimates for similar transactions and an
evaluation of the Firm’s assumptions inclusive of the inputs, as applicable.

* We tested the revenues arising from the trade date fair value estimates for selected structured transactions classified as Level 3
financial instruments. For certain of our selected transactions, we developed independent fair value estimates to test the valuation
inputs and assumptions used by the Firm and evaluated whether these methods were consistent with relevant Firm valuation
policies.

» We assessed the consistency by which management has applied significant and unobservable valuation assumptions used in
developing fair value estimates.

» We performed a retrospective assessment of management’s fair value estimates for certain of our selected Level 3 financial
instruments, for which there were events or transactions occurring after the valuation date. We did so by comparing management’s
estimates to the relevant evidence provided by such events or transactions, as applicable.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New Y ork
February 24, 2023

We have served as the Firm's auditor since 1997.
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